
 
 

CABINET 
 

 Wednesday, 20th November, 
2013 
To follow the Council Meeting  

Council Chamber - Civic Centre 
 

This meeting is open to the public 
 

 Members 
 

 Councillor Letts, Leader of the Council (Leader) 
Councillor Barnes-Andrews, Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
Councillor Jeffery, Cabinet Member for Change 
Councillor Bogle, Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services 
Councillor Kaur, Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Tucker, Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Leisure 
Councillor Rayment, Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Transport 
Councillor Shields, Cabinet Member for Health 
and Adult Social Care 
Councillor Payne, Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Sustainability 
 

 (QUORUM – 3) 
 
 

 Contacts 
  
 Cabinet Administrator 

Judy Cordell 
Tel: 023 8083 2766 
Email: judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk  
 

 Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
Richard Ivory 
Tel: 023 8083 2794 
Email: richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk  
 

  
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT INFORMATION 
 

The Role of the Executive 
The Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members 
make executive decisions relating to services 
provided by the Council, except for those 
matters which are reserved for decision by the 
full Council and planning and licensing matters 
which are dealt with by specialist regulatory 
panels. 
 

Executive Functions 
The specific functions for which the Cabinet and 
individual Cabinet Members are responsible are 
contained in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. 
Copies of the Constitution are available on 
request or from the City Council website, 
www.southampton.gov.uk  
 

The Forward Plan 
The Forward Plan is published on a monthly 
basis and provides details of all the key 
executive decisions to be made in the four 
month period following its publication. The 
Forward Plan is available on request or on the 
Southampton City Council website, 
www.southampton.gov.uk  
 

Key Decisions 
A Key Decision is an Executive Decision that is 
likely to have a significant  
• financial impact (£500,000 or more)  
• impact on two or more wards 
• impact on an identifiable community 
Decisions to be discussed or taken that are key 

Implementation of Decisions  
Any Executive Decision may be “called-in” as 
part of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
function for review and scrutiny.  The relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel may ask the 
Executive to reconsider a decision, but does not 
have the power to change the decision 
themselves. 
 
Mobile Telephones – Please turn off your 
mobile telephone whilst in the meeting.  
 

Procedure / Public Representations 
Reports for decision by the Cabinet (Part A of 
the agenda) or by individual Cabinet Members 
(Part B of the agenda). Interested members of 
the public may, with the consent of the Cabinet 
Chair or the individual Cabinet Member as 
appropriate, make representations thereon. 
 
Fire Procedure – In the event of a fire or other 
emergency, a continuous alarm will sound and 
you will be advised, by officers of the Council, of 
what action to take. 

Southampton City Council’s Priorities: 
 

• Economic: Promoting Southampton and 
attracting investment; raising ambitions 
and improving outcomes for children and 
young people.  

• Social: Improving health and keeping 
people safe; helping individuals and 
communities to work together and help 
themselves.  

• Environmental: Encouraging new house 
building and improving existing homes; 
making the city more attractive and 
sustainable. 

• One Council: Developing an engaged, 
skilled and motivated workforce; 
implementing better ways of working to 
manage reduced budgets and increased 
demand.  

 

 
Smoking policy – The Council operates a no-
smoking policy in all civic buildings. 
Access – Access is available for disabled 
people.  Please contact the Cabinet 
Administrator who will help to make any 
necessary arrangements.  
 
Municipal Year Dates  (Tuesdays) 

2013 2014 
21 May  21 January 
18 June 18 February 
16 July 18 March 
20 August 15 April  
15 October  
19 November  
17 December  

 

 



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE  
The terms of reference of the Cabinet, and its 
Executive Members, are set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this 
meeting. 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
The meeting is governed by the Executive 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

QUORUM 
The minimum number of appointed 
Members required to be in attendance to 
hold the meeting is 3. 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 
Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both 
the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Personal Interest” or “Other Interest”  they 
may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 

DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS 
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, 
or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:  
(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
(ii) Sponsorship: 
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City 
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by 
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes 
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you / 
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which 
goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been 
fully discharged. 
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton 
for a month or longer. 
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and 
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has 
a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

a) the total nominal value for the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body, or 

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest 
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 



 

Other Interests 
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership 

of, or  occupation of a position of general control or management in: 
Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council 
Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 
Any body directed to charitable purposes 
Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

Principles of Decision Making 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 
• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 
• respect for human rights; 
• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 
• setting out what options have been considered; 
• setting out reasons for the decision; and 
• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  The 

decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 
• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority 

as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 
• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 
• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 
• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 

the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 
• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 

basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 
 



 

 
AGENDA 

 

Agendas and papers are now available via the Council’s Website  
 
1 APOLOGIES    

 
 To receive any apologies.  

 
2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS    

 
 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 

Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer.  
 

3 STATEMENT FROM THE LEADER     
 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION BY CABINET 
 

 
4 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - CONFIDENTIAL PAPERS INCLUDED 

IN THE FOLLOWING ITEM    
 

 To move that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, specifically the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules contained within the Constitution, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting in respect of any consideration of the confidential appendix 
to the following Item 
 
Confidential appendix 1 contains information deemed to be exempt from general 
publication based on Categories 3 and 7a of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules.  It is not in the public interest to disclose this information 
as this appendix contains confidential and commercially sensitive information supplied 
by Capita Business Services Limited.  It would prejudice the Council’s ability to operate 
in a commercial environment and obtain best value in negotiations and would prejudice 
the Council’s commercial relationships with third parties, if they believed the Council 
would not honour any obligation of confidentiality.  
 

5 STRATEGIC SERVICES PARTNERSHIP (SSP) CONTRACT - PROPOSED 
CONTRACT EXTENSION  
 

 Report of the Leader of the Council, seeking approval for a proposed contract 
extension of the Strategic Service Contract, attached.   
 

Tuesday, 12 November 2013 Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Version Number:  1

DECISION-MAKER:  COUNCIL 
CABINET 

SUBJECT: *STRATEGIC SERVICES PARTNERSHIP (SSP) 
CONTRACT – PROPOSED CONTRACT EXTENSION  

DATE OF DECISION: 20 NOVEMBER 2013 
REPORT OF: LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

CONTACT DETAILS 
AUTHOR: Name:  Andy Lowe Tel: 023 8083 2049 
 E-mail: Andrew.Lowe@southampton.gov.uk 
Director Name:  Mark Heath Tel: 023 8083 2371 
 E-mail: Mark.Heath@southampton.gov.uk 

 
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 
Appendix 1 of this report is not for publication by virtue of categories 3 (financial and 
business affairs) and 7A (obligation of Confidentiality) of paragraph 10.4 of the 
Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules as contained in the Council's 
Constitution. 
It is not in the public interest to disclose this information as this appendix contains 
confidential and commercially sensitive information supplied by Capita Business 
Services Limited.  It would prejudice the Council’s ability to operate in a commercial 
environment and obtain best value in negotiations and would prejudice the Council’s 
commercial relationships with third parties, if they believed the Council would not 
honour any obligation of confidentiality. 

 
BRIEF SUMMARY 
The contract for the Strategic Services Programme (SSP) with Capita Business 
Services Limited (Capita) commenced on 1 October 2007 for a term of ten years.  The 
outsourced services comprise Customer Services, IT Services (including printing 
services), HR and Payroll Services (including health & safety, learning & development 
and occupational health), Property Services (comprising professional construction 
related services and valuation and estates management services), Local Taxation and 
Benefits Services and Procurement Services.   
Following negotiations, pursuant to the provisions in the SSP contract allowing for its 
extension, the Director of Corporate Services seeks authority to extend the contract 
by five years and to implement simultaneously changes to the contract which are set 
out in this report.  Five years is the maximum extension permitted under the SSP 
contract and the EU contract notice under which it was originally awarded and the 
extension would mean that the expiry date of the SSP contract would become 30 
September 2022 (rather than the currently scheduled 30 September 2017). 
In conjunction with service amendments included in the contract changes, the 
extension would produce forecast net savings for the Council of £24M over the period 
from 1 December 2013 (the intended date of implementation of the contract 
extension) to 30 September 2022. 

Agenda Item 5



 2

Further benefit would accrue to the City Council from the flexible charging 
mechanisms included in the proposed contract changes, which would enable the 
Council to deal with changing demand for many of the services delivered under the 
SSP in the future in a way which is more appropriate than the originally structured 
contract given the less predictable environment we now find ourselves in. 
Service delivery would be modernised in Customer Services and IT Services and 
revised Governance arrangements would be introduced. 
The purpose of this report is to enable Council to make a Policy Framework decision.  
Full Council is being invited to express a view as to whether or not the SSP contract 
should be extended.  This would form an addendum to the Council’s Policy 
Framework. 
If Full Council makes a Policy Framework decision to proceed, the Executive will then 
need to implement that decision.  If the decision is to extend the SSP contract, the 
Director of Corporate Services, who has overall responsibility for the SSP, together 
with the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services, 
will be given joint delegated authority to agree the detailed terms and conditions.  The 
Head of Legal HR and Democratic Services will be given authority to complete the 
necessary legal documentation. 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
COUNCIL: 
 (i)  Notes the Consultation process that was followed as outlined in 

paragraph 59 and Appendix 4.  
 (ii)  Notes the Equality and Safety Impact Assessment process that was 

followed as set out in paragraph 60 and Appendix 3.   
 (iii)  Approves as a Policy Framework decision, the extension of the SSP 

contract with Capita Business Services Limited for five years, so that 
its expiry date becomes 30 September 2022 (extended from 30 
September 2017), subject to the changes to the contract described in 
this report being made simultaneously, (except for that relating to sub-
£100,000 spend being brought within the Procurement Services). 

 (iv)  Recommends that the Executive implements the Policy Framework 
decision to extend the SSP contract by five years. 

 (v)  Approves the introduction of an IT Development Reserve to smooth 
the cost of future capital expenditure needed to maintain the desktop 
estate and associated hardware on an ongoing basis, thereby 
enabling effective planning to be undertaken over the medium term. 

 (vi)  Approves the introduction of a Pension Reserve to manage 
expenditure associated with employers’ pension contributions payable 
to the Hampshire Pension Fund for TUPE staff over the term of the 
contract and smooth the impact on the General Fund revenue budget 
in any one year. 

 (vii) Notes and endorses the governance arrangements set out in 
Appendix 2 (in so far as they are matters for Full Council). 
 
 



 3

 (viii) Notes that the changes made during final negotiations as set out in 
Appendix 1, have taken into account the recommendations of 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee which met on 16 
October 2013. 

 (ix)  Authorises the Director of Corporate Services, together with the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
to take any further action necessary to give effect to the decisions of 
Full Council in relation to this matter. 

 (x)  Notes that these decisions will form an addendum to the Council’s 
Policy Framework. 

CABINET: 
 (i) Notes that on 20 November 2013 Full Council approved the extension 

of the SSP contract with Capita Business Services Limited by five 
years with a new expiry date of 30 September 2022 (extended from 
30 September 2017), subject to the changes to the contract described 
in this report being made simultaneously. 

 (ii) Implements as a consequence of the Full Council’s Policy Framework 
decision, the extension of the SSP contract by five years, as 
recommended by Full Council. 

 (iii) Approves the proposal to bring sub-£100,000 spend within the 
Procurement Services delivered under the SSP Contract. 

 (iv) Delegates authority to the Director of Corporate Services, together 
with the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Legal, HR and 
Democratic Services to agree the detailed terms and conditions in 
connection with the above recommendations. 

 (v) Authorises the Head of Legal HR and Democratic Services to enter 
into the necessary legal documentation. 

 (vi) Notes and endorses the governance arrangements set out in 
Appendix 2 (in so far as they are matters for the Executive). 

 (vii) Notes that the changes made during final negotiations as set out in 
Appendix 1, have taken into account the recommendations of 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee which met on 16 
October 2013. 

 (viii) Authorises the Director of Corporate Services, together with the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
to take any further action necessary to give effect to the decisions of 
the Executive in relation to this matter. 

   
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
1.  There are a number of reasons for the recommendations and these are set 

out below.  Namely to : 
• Make a contribution towards the financial savings the Council has to 

find. 



 4

• Improve flexibility in the charging mechanisms under the SSP contract, 
so that the charges under the SSP contract can more closely reflect the 
changing size of the Council’s operation in the future. 

• Modernise service delivery under the SSP contract, particularly in 
relation to Customer Services and IT Services. 

• Postpone the cost of re-procuring, or bringing back in house, the 
services. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
2.  The prevailing pressures on the Council’s budget mean that it cannot afford 

the SSP contract in its current form.  Also, the contract does not contain 
sufficient flexibility to enable the Council to deal with changing demand for 
many of the services delivered under the SSP in the future in a way which is 
appropriate to the less predictable environment we now find ourselves in. 

3.  There are a number of alternative options which could have been pursued to 
address these issues and these are set out in turn in the following 
paragraphs. 

4.  Firstly, do nothing and allow the contract to expire naturally at the end of 
September 2017.  This option was not pursued, as it would do nothing to help 
meet the Council’s current financial challenges, improve flexibility or 
modernise service delivery. 

5.  Secondly, terminate the contract and bring the services back in house.  This 
option was not pursued, as it was deemed unaffordable (as set out in 
Appendix 1).  In addition, this option would increase the Council’s exposure to 
equal pay issues and require the Council to rebuild a management structure 
and recruit staff, depending on the mix of human resources transferring back 
to the Council under TUPE. 

6.  Finally, terminate the contract and re-procure the relevant services.  This 
would involve many of the costs associated with bringing the services back in 
house and would also require budgetary provision to be made for the cost of 
the procurement process.  It would also probably be a more difficult process 
to manage than bringing the services back in house, there would be a 
substantial lead time and there is no guarantee that the services could be re-
procured at lower cost.  Consequently, this option has not been pursued. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 
 INTRODUCTION 
7.  In view of the need to review the SSP as set out in paragraph 1 above and 

the dismissal of the alternative options, negotiations commenced with Capita 
in 2012 with a view to reducing the cost of the SSP contract and reshaping 
the contract to improve the long term flexibility and governance of the SSP.  
There were two submissions from Capita of its “SSP Relaunch” proposal, one 
in September 2012 and the other in November 2012 following discussions on 
the initial submission.   
The absence of competitive tension during the negotiations has resulted in a 
longer elapsed time to reach acceptable terms to the Council. 



 5

8.  The negotiations have focused on: 
• Realising immediate savings in the fixed charges by extending the 

contract by five years and by agreeing changes to service delivery 
• Enabling future savings by introducing flexible charging mechanisms, 

which would allow the charges to flex with changes in demand for the 
outsourced services. 

• Ensuring limited termination costs after the expiry of the current contract 
period in September 2017 should the Council choose to terminate the 
contract after that point in time. 

9.  As an interim measure during the course of the negotiations, savings 
initiatives from the SSP Relaunch proposal, which could be developed and 
delivered relatively easily, have already been implemented under the SSP 
contract change control procedure to take effect in accordance with the 
budget set for the current financial year, 2013/14.  These “early 
implementation” savings are set out in Appendix 1 to this report and they will 
continue to accrue regardless of the decision that is made in respect of a five 
year contract extension.   

10.  An additional interim measure adopted from the SSP Relaunch proposal has 
been the cessation of service level agreements between the Council and 
schools for the provision of IT Services and HR and Payroll Services with 
effect from 1 April 2013.  This has removed from the SSP contract the work 
required to support these service level agreements and Capita now seeks to 
contract directly with schools for the provision of the relevant services.  This 
has reduced the fixed charges under the SSP contract which balances the 
related loss to the Council of income from schools.  More importantly, the 
change has transferred to Capita the risk of schools choosing not to take up 
the services. 

 CURRENT SHAPE OF THE PROPOSAL 
11.  The detailed drafting to reflect final agreed negotiations for the SSP 

Relaunch is still continuing at the point of writing this report.  It is 
substantially complete and has been subject to legal review on behalf of the 
Council by Sharpe Prichard, the solicitors who originally advised the Council 
on the initial award of the SSP contract.  However, the documents are still 
subject to an internal commercial review by Capita and it is not known 
whether this will raise further substantial issues.  The recommendations in 
this report are written on the basis that it will not. 

12.  Subject to the caveat in the previous paragraph, the result of the negotiations 
on the remaining savings, relating to services currently in scope of the SSP 
contract, and other commercial issues is that an extended contract, in 
conjunction with the changes to service delivery proposed in this report, 
would deliver the following benefits to the Council in addition to those already 
secured through the “early implementation” savings: 
• Forecast net savings for the Council of £24M over the period from 1 

December 2013 (the intended date of implementation of the contract 
extension) to 30 September 2022, as set out in Appendix 1 to this 



 6

report. 
• Flexible charging mechanisms to enable the Council to deal with 

changing demand for many of the services delivered under the SSP in 
the future in a way which is more appropriate than the originally 
structured contract to the less predictable environment we now find 
ourselves in and offer the potential for future savings. 

• Revised measure of indexation to be applied to the charges, which will 
better balance risk through the more accurate reflection of the 
inflationary pressures that affect the cost of providing the services. 

• Manageable termination compensation from September 2017, which 
would not inhibit the City Council from considering terminating the 
contract at or after that point. 

• Developing One Guildhall Square (OGS) as a regional business centre, 
creating employment opportunities for local people. 

• Revised governance as summarised in paragraph 55 to 56 and set out 
in more detail in Appendix 2 to this report, which would reinforce co-
operation on the part of both parties to work together to leverage 
benefits in support of the Council’s change programme and key 
strategic priorities. 

• Corporate social responsibility (CSR) commitments from Capita, 
including a commitment that the changes in the SSP Relaunch proposal 
will be “jobs neutral”, that is any job losses arising from the savings 
initiatives will be off set with work for other clients delivered in OGS.  In 
the past 12 months Capita has brought 95 FTE jobs into the City. 

• Settlement of several long outstanding commercial issues within IT 
Services, including responsibility for upgrading software infrastructure, 
charging for the impact of projects on support requirements, the impact 
of third parties on Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and late delivery of 
the disaster recovery (DR) service and of Lagan (CRM) integrations. 

• Innovation and transformation in Customer Services and IT services. 
• Revised Profit Sharing / Gain Sharing arrangements as set out in 

Appendix 1. 
13.  The above benefits are not dependent on the outsourcing of additional 

services to Capita and more detail is set out in Appendix 1 to this report, 
which contains the key commercial and financial considerations for the SSP. 

14.  The following paragraphs provide additional information on some of the 
benefits which will be delivered  

 Flexible Charging 
15.  The SSP contract is currently based largely on fixed service charges, which 

are subject to a review procedure when there is a departure from the stated 
assumptions and / or volumes for a particular service area.   
However, the review procedure does not produce an automatic result and 
any outcome is often dependent on the result of protracted negotiation.  One 
of the objectives for the Council in negotiations on the SSP Relaunch has 
been to achieve greater control and influence over the charges.  The aim has 
been that a greater proportion of the fixed service charge should be subject 



 7

to flexible charging mechanisms resulting in a more automatic adjustment to 
the fixed charge as service drivers or volumes vary through agreed bands.  
This is not the same as variable charging, which constantly varies according 
to volumes and unit prices.  Flexible charging mechanisms would exist in the 
following service areas: 
• IT Services – Based on volumes of end user devices, data lines to 

supported sites, home-working and software or applications supported. 
• HR and Payroll Services – Based on volumes within discrete parts of the 

service, such as payroll and learning & development. 
• Customer Services – Based on contact time on telephone calls, in 

Gateway and on mail handling. 
• Local Taxation and Benefit Services – Based on volumes of properties for 

council tax, business premises for NNDR and applications for benefits. 
16.  The application of a flexible mechanism for Procurement Services was 

considered and it was decided to maintain but strengthen the current 
process rather than introduce a volumes driven method which is not easily 
applicable.  At present each year a work plan is agreed with Capita by the 
Head of Property, Procurement and Contract Management to match the 
resources within the contract price.  This work programme can be expanded 
and any additional costs flow through to the Council but the resources 
cannot be reduced.  As part of the negotiations this has been reviewed to 
ensure that the programme can be both expanded and contracted.  Whist 
the resulting financial impact is not be driven by an automatic mechanism, 
the aim is that the Council has a degree of control to manage the cost of this 
service as we move forward. 

17.  Property Services (to a greater extent) and Print Services (entirely) are 
already charged for on a variable basis and so flexible charging has not been 
further pursued in these service areas.  In addition, it is considered that the 
Health & Safety Service and the Occupational Health Service do not lend 
themselves to flexible charging.   

18.  The adoption of more flexible charging mechanisms will increase the 
Council’s ability to plan for the consequences of changes in the way it 
operates in the future.  Further information about the potential financial 
impact of these mechanisms is set out in Appendix 1. 

 Termination Compensation 
19.  Capita is not seeking to extend the time span of the existing obligation of the 

Council to pay compensation for loss of profit on termination for convenience 
(that is termination at the election of the Council). 

20.  Capita will however require a separate provision for “clawback” of profit 
which it is proposed will be smoothed.  The draft payment obligations that 
would arise on early termination under this new provision are set out in 
Appendix 1. 

21.  Consideration should be given to putting aside a portion of the savings equal 
to the profit “clawback” payable in 2017, to fund termination of the contract at 
that point.  This would enable the Council to retain ultimate flexibility at that 



 8

point in the event that that the anticipated benefits of the SSP Relaunch do 
not materialise.  Any decision to set aside a portion of the savings can be 
addressed as part of the development of the budget for 2014/15 or future 
years. 

 Regional Business Centre 
22.  Capita aims to create a shared service centre within OGS for the delivery of 

services to other customers and has already secured business from the 
London Borough of Lambeth, Hart District Council, Havant Borough Council 
and the Houses of Parliament, thereby creating jobs in Southampton. 

23.  However, the certainty of service delivery in OGS required by further 
prospective clients of Capita is undermined by the current SSP contract 
having less than five years to run, making OGS less attractive than other 
Capita business centres such as Swindon or West Sussex.  New service 
contracts are rarely let for less than five years and typically are let for 
between five and ten years. 

24.  An extension of the SSP contract period to 30 September 2022 would make 
OGS much more attractive to prospective Capita customers as a shared 
service centre, offering greater opportunities for new jobs and investment in 
Southampton.  Capita has committed to remain in OGS, if the contract 
extension proceeds and the Council will benefit from this.   

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
25.  Capita is already an active participant in Business Solent and is represented 

on the board of Business South.  The CSR obligations which it is prepared to 
take fulfil within the SSP Relaunch price are set out in Appendix 6 to this 
report. 

26.  These activities will provide real opportunities for local people to gain 
experience of working for a FTSE100 company and support local business.  
Local jobs in Capita would be publicised as alternative employment 
opportunities for displaced Council employees. 

 CHANGES TO SERVICES 
27.  The main changes to each of the services (with the exception of Property 

Services which is unchanged as a result of the Relaunch) are summarised 
below. 

 HR and Payroll Services 
28.  Payroll Automation - Capita would, through online forms and / or bulk upload 

spreadsheets, provide automated processing by Council managers of 
overtime, timesheets, expenses, casual claims, sickness and restructures 
(redundancy and post changes).  These automated processes would be 
mandated to the exclusion of manual systems in order to eliminate double 
keying; (the second time by Capita). 

29.  Payroll Simplification - The existing five payrolls, (600 weekly payees; 450 
fortnightly payees; 25 claims payees; 100 foster carers etc payees; 5,000 
monthly payees), could be simplified to a single monthly payroll.  This would 
reduce the administrative burden on the Capita payroll service and be in line 
with the practice of most local authorities.  Full consultation will be 



 9

undertaken with the unions before implementation is progressed and 
transitional arrangements would assist staff to transfer to monthly salary 
payments.  This consultation will be undertaken as part of the review of Pay 
and Allowances.  

30.  Job Evaluation - The current NJC job evaluation process would be reviewed 
and the administration required from Capita and the Council would be 
reduced by adopting a core suite of job descriptions within job categories 
and job families.  Job evaluations would only have to be carried out by 
exception.  A full review of the Council’s roles and existing job descriptions 
would be undertaken in consultation with the unions.  Progression of this 
change will be undertaken as part of the review of Pay and Allowances. 

31.  Learning & Development - The service would be re-designed to be more 
flexible in response to the needs of the Council and be provided with 20% 
less FTE resource by Capita. 

 Customer Services 
32.  Channel Shift Through Web Self-Service - This would be based on internet 

technology, to enable customers to use a quicker and more efficient channel, 
available 24/7, to access those of the Council’s services which are suited to 
this type of transaction.  Capita would use this technology to put online its 
existing automated processes for service lines within the Contact Centre, 
thereby driving down the call handling time in the call centre, enabling Capita 
to offer a saving in fixed charges in the SSP Relaunch pricing.  This 
technology is also key to transformation to the new target operating model in 
the People Directorate, and will allow other areas of the Council to exploit 
channel shift to drive savings in back office processes. 

33.  Gateway Refurbishment - In order to facilitate the movement of customers to 
the web-based channel, Gateway would be refurbished and self serve 
terminals installed.  This work is planned for 2014. 

34.  E-Forms - All relevant paper forms would be replaced with an electronic 
version and the paper version would only be available on request.  Gateway 
would no longer offer to check paper forms as they are handed in by 
customers.  These measures would encourage the use of online forms or 
other automated processes. 

35.  Automated Switchboard - All telephone customers would go through a full 
interactive voice response (IVR) solution with messages to encourage use of 
the web self-serve channel or other automated processes, before an option 
was presented to talk to a customer service agent (CSA).  It would therefore 
take longer to speak to a CSA, if that is what the customer wanted or needed 
to do.  Many organisations, including the London Borough of Lambeth for 
whom Capita provide customer services in OGS, now use automated 
telephony for their switchboard function.  This is a proven technology, 
developed over many years. 

36.  Face to Face Appointments - Except for vulnerable persons, face to face 
appointments with a CSA would only be available to customers after triage in 
Gateway or on calling the Customer Service Centre (CSC).  After triage, 
appointments would only be booked for a later date.  The objective of the 
triage process would be to ensure that face to face appointments were 



 10

offered only when the relevant process had to be done in Gateway.  For 
example, because there was not a relevant online process or other 
automated process, signatures were genuinely required or verification by a 
CSA was required of proofs in documentation provided by the customer.  
Internet booking would not be available for face to face appointments, 
because it would undermine channel shift to web-based services.  Capita 
staff would be trained to recognise contacts involving vulnerable persons, 
who would attract a same day face to face appointment.  Any customer (or 
other person involved in their enquiry) would be included in the category of 
vulnerable persons who: 
• was unable, (as opposed to unwilling), to use the online processes or 

other automated processes for self-service; 
• was facing an imminent threat to their safety, (including domestic 

violence or homelessness); or 
• would face an increased risk of loss of or damage to personal property or 

personal injury from delayed action. 
 IT Services 
37.  Flexible Staffing - Capita would have the flexibility to deploy staff on the 

provision of IT Services from both inside and outside the administrative 
boundary of the Council.  Exceptions to this would be Capita’s Head of IT 
Operations, the local Engagement Office (account and project management) 
and the most complex infrastructure and network support work, all of which 
would continue to be provided from OGS.  Also, projects would be charged 
on an agreed set of rates, wherever the work was carried out. 

38.  Investment - Capita would invest in technology and business process re-
engineering, including online benefits forms and greater integration of Lagan 
CRM with the Council’s website, to promote the web-self-serve as a channel 
for Council services. 

39.  Cloud / Shared Support Services - Capita would virtualise 80% of the Wintel 
servers by 1 May 2016, consolidating applications on fewer servers, to 
enable migration of software applications supported under the SSP to the 
“Cloud” or to a shared service centre off-site and outside Southampton.   
The migration would be subject to Capita obtaining the Council’s approval, 
on a case by case basis, of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) relating to the 
relevant application after migration and of subsequent exit arrangements, 
(including the cost of continued support on a scaleable subscription basis 
following expiry of the SSP contract, if the Council so elected).  The process 
would provide the Council with a robust and scaleable IT infrastructure and 
its realisation would be at Capita’s risk. 

40.  New Software or Applications (or major upgrades) - The Council will be able 
to procure software from the Cloud from other providers, subject to an 
evaluation exercise to determine whether in the Council’s view that offers 
best value in comparison with the software being supported by Capita their 
infrastructure.  This enables the Council to make savings from moving to 
Cloud services for upgrades of the major applications for which it retains 
licensing responsibility and for new applications. 



 11

41.  End User Computing Devices (EUDs) - The volumes would be rebased and 
compared quarterly with an assumed glidepath for reduction of their 
numbers.  There would be adjustment of the IT Service fixed charge 
depending on whether the volumes are below or above the glidepath at the 
quarterly review.  This will enable the Council to make further savings from 
careful management of volumes within the desktop estate. 

42.  Refresh Budget - The budget for refresh of EUDs would be returned to the 
Council.  The Council would be able to maintain technological currency 
through a service catalogue offering the latest technological options, to align 
with the Council’s future mobile workforce strategy and enable lowering of IT 
device costs.  This is a process that the Council will need to carefully 
manage and plan in order to maintain the cost of the desktop estate and 
associated hardware within affordable bounds and ensure it is fit for purpose.  
To support the management of this across financial years it proposed that an 
IT Development Reserve is approved and maintained as explained in more 
detail in paragraph 65. 

43.  Refresh Cycles - These would be extended for EUDs, servers and network 
equipment as follows: 
• With retrospective effect from 1 April 2013, EUDs would be refreshed 

every 5 years (currently 4 years). 
• With retrospective effect from 1 April 2013, servers would be refreshed 

every 6 years (currently every 5 years). 
• With effect from 1 December 2013, network equipment would be 

refreshed every 6 years (currently every 5 years). 
44.  Software Upgrades - Under the current contract both parties have been in 

dispute about the responsibility for funding the upgrading of software.  As 
part of the Relaunch, software upgrades would be provided on an agreed set 
of supported applications.  Capita would also complete a programme to 
upgrade the infrastructure software, including Email to Microsoft Exchange 
2013 from Microsoft Exchange 2003 and Microsoft Office to 2013 from 2003 
for all EUDs during 2014, with a target completion date of 31 May 2014. 

45.  The KPI performance mechanism would remain substantially the same 
although measurement of performance against monthly IT Performance 
Indicators and KPIs would be the average monthly performance over a 
rolling period of three months rather than month by month. 

 Local Taxation and Benefits Services 
46.  New Technology – New technology would be implemented by Capita to 

enable housing benefit and council tax reduction (CTR) claims, together with 
notification of change of circumstances, to be made online.  Assumptions 
have been made about the percentage of all claims and notifications made 
using online forms and adjustment to the Relaunch Proposal pricing will be 
made if they are not realised. 

47.  E-Forms - Online forms for claims and notifications have been implemented 
in a number of other Capita sites, most notably in Sheffield, where 98.8% of 
new claims are now made online.  There are significant benefits to the 



 12

claimant, as the form cannot be submitted until all the correct information has 
been included, which prevents claims being delayed.  Currently, if all the 
relevant information is not provided on a paper form, there can be delays, as 
assessors have to write to claimants for the information.  Additionally, as the 
information would be collected electronically, it would be more efficiently 
processed by the Capita’s administration team, saving time and errors. 

 Procurement Services 
48.  A proposal has been developed to give the Council central visibility and 

control over the procurement of the element of spend, which is currently 
devolved to Directorates (sub £100,000 spend).  The total estimated value of 
this spend is in the region of £35M per annum, (with almost £22M falling 
within the General Fund).  The proposal is to manage this spend centrally 
through Capita Procurement Services through a Southampton based team of 
purchasing specialists.  This service would provide an operational and 
commercial solution allowing the Council to procure its sub £100,000 spend 
in the most cost effective and operationally efficient manner.   

49.  The new service will provide the Council with a fully managed Order and 
Quotation Management Service at no service or financial risk to the Council.  
Capita is willing to implement the service with a guarantee of cost neutrality 
after five years - a Savings Guarantee, “Promise” - whereby Capita will 
refund its fee for this service if it does not save the City Council in excess of 
this amount at the end of the five year term. 

50.  The provision of this service should deliver improvements and benefits in 
terms of savings, greater efficiencies and improved controls.  A key benefit 
will be the ability to better influence sub £100,000 spend in terms of 
sustainable procurement and local sourcing.  The finalisation of the proposal 
has come too late for it to be implemented as part of the SSP Relaunch, 
because there is a considerable amount of work involved in drafting and 
agreeing the necessary amendment of the SSP Contract.  Therefore, a 
separate delegated authority is sought in relation to this matter. 

51.  This service will deliver sustainable procurement benefits across the Council 
and the estimated net savings which will accrue to the General Fund from 
2015/16 have been included in the Executive’s draft budget proposals which 
will be approved by Cabinet on 19 November 2013. 

 OTHER CHANGES 
 Performance Management 
52.  Ideally a full and comprehensive review of performance measures would 

have been undertaken as part of the Relaunch, but resources and time did 
not allow this to be completed before the Relaunch date.  A high level review 
of the performance measures has however been undertaken.  It is planned 
to hold a review of KPIs and other performance measures annually and the 
first such in depth review will take place in January 2014.  

53.  In the meantime, the Relaunch would see the removal of a performance 
measure originally intended to measure customer satisfaction across the 
partnership as a whole, which has proved costly and resource intensive to 
operate with little benefit.  In future we will focus on customer satisfaction 



 13

measures within individual service areas. 
54.  A new category of measures will be created in January 2014, namely Key 

Strategic Indicators (KSIs).  It is intended that KSIs will monitor the overall 
health and state of the Partnership relationship and support the overall 
objectives of the Council.  For example KSIs will be created around the 
apprenticeships, volunteering and jobs commitments contained within the 
Relaunch proposals. 

 Governance Arrangements 
55.  The partnership will be re-launched and more streamlined governance 

arrangements will be put in place with focused responsibilities at different 
levels as set out in Appendix 2.  These arrangement will centre around a 
Strategic Partnership board (SPB) which will meet twice each year and shall 
be made up of key members of the Executive, a representative from the 
opposition, senior officers and provider representatives.  Key functions of the 
SPB will be to oversee the strategic operations of the SSP, set strategic 
direction, consider new partnership initiatives, receive and approve the 
Annual Report and consider and resolve issues escalated to the SPB.  

56.  A number of operational level boards will operate under, and report by 
exception to the SPB.  Principally these will be: 
• Partnership Management Board, will meet monthly and will oversee the 

operational aspects of the SSP. 
• Service Area Reviews (SARs) will meet monthly and will review the 

business plan and in depth operational running of individual service 
areas. 

• Cross Partnership Review Board (CPRB) will meet monthly and will focus 
on commercial issues, risks and communications across the SSP. 

 FUTURE SAVINGS 
57.  Capita recognises there will be regular reviews in the future to find further 

savings from the SSP contract. 
 ADDITIONAL PROPOSALS 
58.  The Relaunch Proposal contained a number of suggested changes which 

were not progressed and these are set out in Appendix 1. 
 CONSULTATION 
59.  The Council has received legal advice from Sharpe Pritchard, solicitors, on 

the form of consultation which should be undertaken in connection with this 
decision.  They advised how the consultation should be conducted in such a 
way as to satisfy the requirements of both best value and equalities 
legislation, which has meant focusing on the proposed contract extension 
and on the proposed changes in Customer Services and in Local Taxation 
and Benefits Services.  The best value and equalities consultations are set 
out in Appendix  4 to this report and they have been posted on the Council’s 
website since 10 July 2013.  The responses to the consultation exercises, 
together with an analysis and summary are also set out in detail in Appendix 
4. 



 14

60.  An Equality and Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) has also been prepared 
which is Appendix 3 to this report.  The original ESIA was drafted prior to the 
consultation so that the consultation process could be guided by it.  It has 
subsequently been developed and updated to take into account comments 
received and the consultation responses. 

 Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) 
61.  OSMC approved at their meeting on 16 October 2013 the following 

recommendations: 
• That the Executive encourage Capita to consider how they can develop 

their Corporate Social Responsibility offer in Southampton. 
• That the Executive explore opportunities for additional services to be 

added to the Capita contract as soon as possible, where advantageous 
for the Council to do so. 

• That the Leader be requested, during further negotiations, to encourage 
Capita to sign up to the Council’s Living Wage pledge. 

• That membership of the SPB includes a member of the opposition. 
• That a list of the current Capita contract KPI’s be circulated to OSMC. 
• That in recognition of the reputational risk to the Council and the channel 

shift proposals, the developing KSIs and KPIs place an emphasis on 
customer service. 

62.  OSMC’s recommendations have been taken into account in subsequent 
negotiations and updates are as follows: 
• Corporate Social Responsibility – Further dialogue with Capita to develop 

the social responsibility aspects of the SSP has secured the following: 
- Allow its employees working on the SSP 519 volunteering days per 

Contract Year to work in the Southampton community via the 
Provider’s employee volunteering programme. 

- Run one event per quarter in support of the STEM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Maths) programme and employability 
skills initiatives in schools 

- Capita has implemented a new policy to support reservists for the 
armed forces, where any individual undertaking this role would be 
entitled to ten days paid leave per year for training. 

- Capita will run a second IT innovation fair for local businesses during 
Contract Year 9 (2016). 

• Additional Services - As explained by the Leader of the Council at OSMC, 
the Executive will explore further opportunities to add additional services 
to the Capita contract, where it is advantageous to do so, after signing of 
the Relaunch. 

• Living Wage - Further dialogue has resulted in the Council and Capita 
reaching an agreement which will see all staff working within OGS being 
paid the Living Wage. 

• Strategic Partnership Board - The governance provisions at Appendix 2 
have been amended to include the Leader of the largest opposition group 



 15

(or their nominated representative) on the board. 
• Key Performance Indicators - These were circulated to OSMC members 

on 28 October 2013. 
• Customer Service - A full review of the KPIs and PIs is scheduled for 

January 2014 and customer service will be included in the review.  Some 
members at OSMC expressed concern at the quality of some of the 
responses received by members of the public to their telephone enquiries 
to the Customer Service Centre.  This is one of the most difficult aspects 
of the service to bring within a performance measurement regime, but 
there is already a KPI which enables us to focus on the quality of 
responses to telephone calls by checking the quality of a cross sample of 
recorded responses.  It is intended that this should continue. 

63.  Since the presentation of the shape of the Relaunch proposals to OSMC on 
16 October 2013, a number of outstanding issues have been finalised and 
for clarity these are set out in detail in Appendix 1.  Issues which have been 
finalised include the application of the Living Wage, flexibility mechanisms 
and new arrangements for profit sharing and gain sharing.  Detailed drafting 
on some of these points which have only just been concluded is underway 
as set out in paragraph 11.  It is substantially complete and has been subject 
to legal review on behalf of the Council by Sharpe Prichard, the solicitors 
who originally advised the Council on the initial award of the SSP contract.   
However, the documents are still subject to an internal commercial review by 
Capita and it is not known whether this will raise further substantial issues.  
The recommendations in this report are written on the basis that it will not. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Capital/Revenue  
64.  The key financial and commercial considerations of the SSP Relaunch are 

set out in detail in the confidential Appendix 1 to this report. 
65.  The budget for refresh of EUDs would be returned to the Council under the 

SSP Relaunch proposals and responsibility would pass to the Council to 
maintain technological currency as set out in paragraph 42.  In addition, 
investment required for infrastructure software and some telephony 
hardware will be the responsibility of the Council to fund.  This is a process 
that the Council will need to carefully manage and plan in order to maintain 
the cost of the desktop estate, associated infrastructure software and some 
telephony hardware within affordable bounds and ensure it is fit for purpose.  
This will require additions to be made to the General Fund Capital 
Programme on an ongoing basis.  The scale and timing of capital 
expenditure in the medium term has not yet been fully scoped, but the 
funding for this which has been factored into the financial assessment of the 
Relaunch, will need to be set aside to enable effective planning to be 
undertaken over the medium term and it is therefore proposed that an IT 
Development Reserve is created for this purpose.  More detail is set out in 
Appendix 1. 

66.  As part of the SSP Relaunch the mechanism for the payment of employers 
pension contributions to the Hampshire Pension Fund for TUPE staff will 



 16

change.  Under the current contract these payments are made by Capita and 
included in the charges to the Council.  However, a specific amount was 
included within the current contract charges to cover these costs which 
would then be reconciled to the actual payments at the end of the contract.  
Ultimate responsibility for these costs and hence any risk remained with the 
Council.  Under the SSP Relaunch these payments will be removed from the 
charges and instead dealt with as a “pass through” cost so the need for any 
reconciliation will end.  The Council will need to budget for these costs 
directly and due to a level of uncertainty around the timing and scale of these 
costs will need to make use of a reserve to manage expenditure over the 
term of the contract and smooth the impact on the General Fund revenue 
budget in any one year.  It is therefore proposed that a Pension Reserve is 
created for this purpose.  More detail is set out in Appendix 1. 

67.  Should the decision be made on 20 November 2013 to proceed with the 
extension of the SSP contract with Capita Business Services Limited by five 
years with a new expiry date of 30 September 2022 (extended from 30 
September 2017), subject to the changes to the contract described in this 
report being made simultaneously, further work will be required to reconfigure 
budgets.  This work will need to ensure that budgets reflect the new 
contractual arrangements and that provision is made for any transfer of 
financial responsibility from Capita to the Council. 

Property/Other 
68.  The proposed contract extension would secure continued occupation by 

Capita of accommodation in OGS until 30 September 2022. 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  
69.  The legal powers to pursue the course of action recommended in this report 

are contained in the Local Government Acts 1972, 1999 and 2000 and the 
Localism Act 2011.  Both Full Council and the Executive will need to make 
their decisions in accordance with the Council’s normal statutory duties, for 
example the duty to achieve best value in the manner in which it discharges 
it functions under the Local Government Act 1999, section 3 of which 
requires the Council as a best value authority to:- 
“…make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which 
its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness”. [Local Government Act 1999 – Section 3]. 

Other Legal Implications:  
70.  All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following 

principles: 
• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired 

outcome); 
• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 
• respect for human rights; 
• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 
• setting out what options have been considered; 



 17

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 
• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

71.  In exercising discretion, the decision maker, (in this case, the Council and 
Executive), must: 
• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives 

effect to it. The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 
• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law 

requires the authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into 
account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 
• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 
• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, 

(also known as the "rationality" or "taking leave of your senses" 
principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on 
an annual basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, 'live now, 
pay later' and forward funding are unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
72.  To be lawful, a decision:- 

• if taken in full Council, Committee or sub-committee must comply with 
the principle of being reached by a majority of Councillors present and 
voting at a properly constituted meeting; 

• be one which the decision-maker is empowered or obliged to take, 
otherwise it is ultra vires; 

• not offend against Wednesbury reasonableness; 
• if intended to secure action (as opposed, for example, to a resolution 

merely expressing the Council’s collective view on an issue), be capable 
of execution or will be of no effect; and 

• not purport to undo what has already been done irrevocably (but it can 
rescind an earlier decision where this is feasible). 

 
POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 
73.  A Policy Framework decision of Full Council is required prior to the Executive 

deciding whether or not to enter into a contract to extend the SSP contract.  
This is consistent with the decisions made prior to entering into the SSP 
Contract in 2007 and reflects the legal regime applicable to a decision of this 
nature given its impact on the Council’s budget and service delivery 
arrangements.  This report recommends that Full Council approves as a 
Policy Framework decision the extension of the contract with Capita Business 
Services Ltd to 30 September 2022, detailed terms and conditions to be 
delegated to the Director of Corporate Resources, together with the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services.  The 
Executive would then implement that decision. 



 

Version Number:  18

 
KEY DECISION?  Yes (Executive decision) 
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED:  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices  
1. Financial Summary Report (Confidential) 
2. Governance Arrangements 
3. Equality and Safety Impact Assessment 
4. Report on Consultation Exercises 
5. Delivery to Date under the SSP 
6. Corporate Social Responsibility 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
1. N/A 
2.  
Equality Impact Assessment  
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

Yes 

Other Background Documents 
Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 
Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  
 



Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

by virtue of paragraph number 3, 7a of the Council’s Access to information Procedure Rules

Document is Confidential



This page is intentionally left blank



APPPENDIX 2 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The governance arrangements define how the City Council and Capita work together 
in partnership.  They are designed to ensure the Council retains control of the 
strategic direction and priorities for the partnership and that the partnership delivers 
the agreed outcomes. 
As part of the Relaunch revised governance arrangements have been developed 
which will reinforce co-operation on the part of both parties to work together to 
leverage benefits in support of the Council’s change programme and key strategic 
priorities; 
The revised arrangements are set out below: 

1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 
1.1 The City Council and the Provider shall establish and maintain throughout 

the Contract Period the following boards and reviews, through which the 
governance of the partnering relationship between the City Council and the 
Provider shall be managed:- 

1.1.1 the Strategic Partnership Board (“the SPB”) 
1.1.2 the Partnership Management  Board (“the PMB”) 
1.1.3 the Service Area Reviews (“the SARs”) 
1.1.4 the Cross Partnership Review (“the CPR”) 
1.2 The Provider shall also attend the City Council’s Scrutiny Board upon 

request by the City Council. 

2. STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
2.1 Role 
2.1.1 The role of the SPB is to set the overall vision and strategic direction for the 

SSP. 
2.2 Membership 
2.2.1 The membership of the SPB shall comprise:- 

2.2.1.1. City Council representatives:- 
• City Council Leader or their nominee 
• Portfolio Member for Resources 
• Leader of the largest Opposition Group or their nominee  
• Chief Executive 
• Director of Corporate Services 
• Chief Financial Officer 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



• Head of Contract Management 
2.2.1.2. Provider representatives:- 

• Managing Director of Capita Local Government Services 
• Regions South Director (Local Government Services) 
• Regions South Finance Director 
• Southampton SSP Partnership Director 

2.2.2 The SPB members listed above may be amended by agreement, to reflect 
organisational changes and to deliver the functions of the SPB.  

2.2.3 A member of the SPB may appoint an alternate (who may be another 
representative of that party).  

2.3 Functions 
2.3.1 The SPB’s functions are to:- 

2.3.1.1. set, and be the custodian of, the strategic objectives, values and 
culture of the SSP (including the partnership success criteria) and 
to review these on an annual basis;  

2.3.1.2. set and review targets associated with SSP savings and growth 
and development of the SSP; 

2.3.1.3. discuss areas for potential expansion of the Services, including the 
introduction of new service elements in accordance with the 
Change Control Procedure or Further Services Approval Procedure 
set out in Schedule 14 and 15 to this Agreement;   

2.3.1.4. identify and consider new business and trading opportunities for the 
SSP, including how parties can collaborate to realise benefits; 

2.3.1.5. agree and trigger communication of key messages about the SSP; 
2.3.1.6. consider and resolve issues escalated by the Partnership 

Management Board; 
2.3.1.7. promote continuous improvement by challenging strategic 

performance of each Service Area; 
2.3.1.8. promote the SSP and the Services with key external stakeholders; 
2.3.1.9. receive and approve the Annual Service Report (as set out in 

Schedule 13) on SSP performance, service improvement targets 
and any other initiatives agreed by the parties.  

2.4 Chair 
2.4.1 The role of Chair of the SPB shall alternate between the City Council’s Chief 

Executive and the Provider’s Managing Director of Local Government 
Services (or their deputy where appropriate). 

2.5 Frequency of meetings 
2.5.1 The SPB shall meet twice each year or as agreed by the parties. 
2.6 Minutes 
2.6.1 Minutes of all at meetings of the SPB shall be kept by the City Council and 



copies circulated to the Provider, normally within 10 Business Days of the 
meeting.  A full set of minutes shall be kept by the City Council and shall be 
open to inspection by the Provider at any time upon request. 

3. PARTNERSHIP MANAGEMENT BOARD 
3.1 Role 
3.1.1 The PMB shall report to the SPB. 
3.2 Membership 
3.2.1 The membership of the PMB shall comprise:- 

3.2.1.1. City Council representatives:- 
• Head of Finance and IT 
• Head of Contract Management 
• Contract and Governance Manager 
• Commercial Manager 

3.2.1.2. Provider representatives:- 
• Regions South Finance Director  
• Southampton SSP Partnership Director 
• Commercial Manager 

3.2.2 The PMB members listed above may be amended by agreement, to reflect 
organisational changes and to deliver the functions of the PMB.  

3.2.3 A representative on the PMB may appoint and remove an alternate (who 
may be another representative of that party.  

3.3 Functions 
3.3.1 The PMB is responsible to the SPB and its functions are to:- 

3.3.1.1. oversee the day to day management of the SSP;  
3.3.1.2. ensure the SSP strategic objectives are being implemented through 

the Service Delivery Plans and such other documentation as may 
be required from time to time, including the encouragement of 
continuous improvement and innovation across the SSP; 

3.3.1.3. manage the performance of the SSP and the relationship between 
the parties;  

3.3.1.4. manage operational elements of the SSP including priorities, 
delivery, people and culture, financial and strategic alignment; 

3.3.1.5. on an exception basis, monitor Monthly performance of the 
Services against KPIs, volumes and delivery of programmes and 
projects; 

3.3.1.6. ensure resources are aligned to deliver SSP priorities agreed by 
the SPB; 

3.3.1.7. maintain a positive commercially sustainable position for both 
parties; 



3.3.1.8. develop and maintain SSP risk register and ensure appropriate risk 
mitigations are in place; 

3.3.1.9. ensure that the cultures and behaviours set out by the SPB are 
adopted by the SSP at all levels within the organisations of the 
parties; 

3.3.1.10. resolve outstanding issues identified from the Service Area 
Reviews; 

3.3.1.11. escalate issues to SPB where resolution cannot be agreed; 
3.3.1.12. prepare and submit the Annual Service Report (as set out in 

Schedule 13) to the SPB; 
3.3.1.13. discuss contractual commitments and change requests; agree and 

submit proposals for Further Services to the SPB. 
3.4 Chair 
3.4.1 The role of Chair for the PMB shall alternate between the City Council Head 

of Contract Management and Capita’s Southampton SSP Partnership 
Director (or their deputy where appropriate). 

3.5 Frequency of meetings 
3.5.1 The PMB shall meet Monthly or as agreed by the parties. 
3.6 Minutes 
3.6.1 Minutes of all meetings of the PRB shall be kept by the City Council and 

copies circulated to the Provider, normally within 10 Business Days the 
meeting.  A full set of minutes shall be kept by the City Council and shall be 
open to inspection by the Provider at any time upon request. 

4. THE SERVICE AREA REVIEWS (SARs) 
4.1 Role 
4.1.1 The SARs are the forum for the City Council and Provider to discuss service 

specific performance and issues. 
4.2 Membership 
4.2.1 A SAR shall be constituted for each of the Services Areas and its 

membership shall comprise:- 
4.2.1.1. City Council representatives:- 

• client representative 
• representative of Head of Contract Management 

4.2.1.2. Provider members:  
• Head of Service 

4.2.2 Additional representatives from the City Council and/or Provider may also 
attend regularly or when required to contribute to specific discussions. 



4.3 Functions 
4.3.1 The SARs report to the PMB and their functions are to:- 

4.3.1.1. agree the business plan for the Service Area for each Contract 
Year;  

4.3.1.2. review service management and operation against the business 
plan for the current Contract Year; 

4.3.1.3. share information regarding changes for either party which may 
have an impact on the Services, including availability of resources 
and their deployment 

4.3.1.4. monitor performance of the Services including identifying any areas 
of the Services which are underperforming or where the Provider is 
failing to achieve KPIs or PIs; 

4.3.1.5. agree actions to improve service performance and mitigate risk 
when required; 

4.3.1.6. review the Services against the Output Specification; 
4.3.1.7. discuss and consider options for cross-service working;  
4.3.1.8. discuss and implement continuous improvement, innovation, best 

practice and learning opportunities associated with the Services 
and across the SSP, including identifying areas where new 
applications of technology or innovation may be of benefit to the 
City Council or the Provider; 

4.3.1.9. manage delivery of service specific projects, including receiving 
and reviewing highlight reports and service improvement 
programmes within the Services, ensuring that interdependencies 
between the Services and other City Council services are identified 
and managed and dealing with escalated project issues; 

4.3.1.10. act in accordance with the objectives, values and culture set by the 
SPB;  

4.3.1.11. escalate issues to the PMB when resolution cannot be reached by 
a SAR; 

4.3.1.12. continually review the Services to ensure that value for money is 
consistently achieved, options for savings are identified and 
implemented and the Services are customer-focused; 

4.3.1.13. review and discuss the current relevant Change Controls. 
4.4 Chair 
4.4.1 The role of Chair for each SAR shall alternate between the City Council 

client representative and the Provider’s Head of Service (or their deputy 
where appropriate). 

4.5 Frequency of meetings 
4.5.1 The SARs shall meet Monthly or as agreed by the parties, with more 

frequent meetings at points of major transition or change. 



4.6 Minutes 
4.6.1 Minutes of all meetings of each SAR shall be kept by the City Council and 

copies circulated to the Provider, normally within 10 Business Days of the 
meeting.  A full set of minutes shall be kept by the City Council and shall be 
open to inspection by the Provider at any time upon request. 

5. CROSS PARTNERSHIP REVIEW BOARD 
5.1 Role 
5.1.1 The CPRB is the forum for the contract management representatives from 

the parties to discuss cross-SSP performance and delivery issues and 
themes. 

5.1.2 The CPRB will initially focus on commercial/risk and communication. 
5.2 Membership 
5.2.1 The membership of the CPRB shall consist of contract management 

representatives from both parties. 
5.2.2 Additional representatives from the City Council and/or Provider may also 

attend when required to contribute to specific discussions. 
5.3 Functions 
5.3.1 The CPRB reports to the PRB and its functions are to:- 

5.3.1.1. share information regarding changes for either party which may 
have an impact on cross-SSP delivery, including availability of 
resources and their deployment; 

5.3.1.2. monitor the effectiveness of the commercial and communication 
processes and agree improvements in accordance with SSP 
requirements; 

5.3.1.3. support and promote cross-service working, programmes and 
projects; 

5.3.1.4. review service provision to ensure best value and identify 
opportunities and monitor progress of savings; 

5.3.1.5. escalate issues to the PMB when resolution cannot be found; 
5.3.1.6. discuss and implement continuous improvement, innovation, best 

practice and learning opportunities, including identifying areas 
where new applications of technology or innovation may be of 
benefit to the City Council or the Provider; 

5.3.1.7. help to improve the perception of the SSP through stakeholder 
engagement, communications and cross-service planning; 

5.3.1.8. act in accordance with the objectives, values and culture set by the 
SPB; 

5.3.1.9. work towards additional objectives agreed by the parties. 
5.4 Chair 
5.4.1 The role of Chair for the CPRB shall alternate between the parties. 



5.5 Frequency of meetings 
5.5.1 The CPRB shall meet Quarterly or as agreed by the parties, with more 

frequent meetings when the requirements of the SSP dictate. 
5.6 Minutes 
5.6.1 Minutes of all meetings of the CPRB shall be kept by the City Council and 

copies circulated to the Provider, normally within 10 Business Days of the 
meeting.  A full set of minutes shall be kept by the City Council and shall be 
open to inspection by the Provider at any time upon request. 

6. AMENDMENT OF THE PARTNERING GOVERNANCE 
6.1 The parties recognise that the partnering governance arrangements and 

structures set out this Schedule will need to be reviewed regularly 
throughout the Contract Period, to ensure that they remain appropriate and 
workable. 

6.2 This Schedule shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the PMB and, if 
appropriate, shall be amended through the Change Control Procedure. 

7. STATUS OF GOVERNANCE MEETINGS 
7.1 This Schedule is not intended to supplant or undermine the Change Control 

Procedure in Schedule 14 or the Further Services Approval Procedure in 
Schedule 15. 

7.2 The governance boards and reviews established and maintained under this 
Schedule (including the individual members acting in their capacity as such) 
shall not have any authority to vary the provisions of the Agreement or to 
make any decision binding on the parties. 

7.3 Neither shall either party rely on any act or omission in the governance 
boards or reviews (including those of the individual members acting in their 
capacity as such), so as to give rise to any waiver or personal bar in respect 
of any right, benefit or obligation of either party under this Agreement.  No 
discussion, review or recommendation by the boards or reviews shall relieve 
the parties of any liability or vary any such liability or any right or benefit. 

7.4 Where the boards suggest any Changes to the Services or to the 
Agreement, these will be referred to the Change Control Procedure.  Where 
the boards suggest that any services be considered for implementation and 
delivery by the Provider as Further Services under the SSP, these will be 
referred to the Further Services Approval Procedure. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
 
The public sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of the Equality Act) requires public bodies to have due 
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good relations 
between different people carrying out their activities. 
The Equality Duty supports good decision making – it encourages public bodies to be more efficient and 
effective by understanding  how different people will be affected by their activities, so that their policies 
and services are appropriate and accessible to all and meet different people’s needs.  The Council’s 
Equality and Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) includes an assessment of the community safety impact 
assessment to comply with section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and will enable the council to better 
understand the potential impact of the budget proposals and consider mitigating action.  

Name or Brief 
Description of 
Proposal 

Strategic Services Partnership (SSP) – Possible Extension of Contract 
with Capita on Revised Terms. 
 

Brief Service Profile 
(including number of 
customers) 

The SSP commenced in October 2007. It covers the following service 
areas: 

• Customer Services: the front line contact with the council's 
customers through Gateway and the customer service centre, 
internal post and document management. 

• Human Resources & Payroll: recruitment, payroll, employee 
relations, health and safety, occupational health, learning & 
development, and strategy & reward. 

• Property Services: professional consultancy, project 
management, valuations, managing investments, 
accommodation strategy, repair and maintenance, highways and 
bridges, regulatory services and property records. 

• Procurement Services: undertaking procurement projects to 
source appropriate suppliers able to meet the Council's needs 
on high value projects. 

• Local Taxation & Benefits: administering the collection of council 
tax, national non-domestic rates and the calculation and 
payment of housing and council tax benefits. 

• IT Services: grouped into the four main areas of strategy and 
planning, service delivery, technical infrastructure and  
applications development and support. 

• Print Services: providing a one stop shop for all printing and 
printed related services, including a central photocopying 
service, finishing and any print related projects. 

 
The contract was awarded to Capita for a period of ten years (until 
September 2017), with the option of a five year extension (until 

Equality and Safety Impact Assessment 
Agenda Item 5

Appendix 3



2 APPENDIX 3 
 

September 2022). The proposal under consideration includes awarding 
the five year extension, changes to the services provided and more 
flexible contract terms (including an overall reduction in cost). 
 
Other than Customer Services and Local Taxes and Benefits, the 
services provided by the SSP are internal support services.  
 
Customer Services Statistics 
 
Over the twelve months from June 2012 to May 2013 Gateway 
received 114,000 visits from customers. The biggest proportion were 
regarding benefits (32%), Council Tax (11%) and Parking (10%). 
 
Over the same period the call centre received 770,000 calls of which 
177,000 (23%) were taken by the switchboard and so are directly 
affected by the automation proposals. Other areas with large call 
volumes are: Actionline (14%) Children and Families (11%), Council 
Tax (10%), Benefits (9%), Adult Services (6%). 
 
The council achieved four stars from the Socitm Better Connected 
Survey which evaluates council web sites on usability. Web site 
statistics have been somewhat distorted by the impact of the EU 
Directive on cookies. However Google Analytics shows the number of 
visitors over the six months to June 2013 as nearly 600,000. On 
average each visitor made 2.2 visits. 
 
Survey results show that 30% of visitors to the web site visit it at least 
monthly. 59% of visits are just to find information, but 18% of visits are 
to undertake a transaction. Satisfaction results are: 
Very satisfied 30.2% 
Quite satisfied 22.8% 
OK 22.4% 
Quite dissatisfied 10.9% 
Very dissatisfied 13.7% 
 
 

Summary of Impact 
and Issues 

The main concern is that some people may be prevented or hindered in 
accessing services because of the changes proposed in Customer 
Services (i.e. online self-service and the automated switchboard).   
 
The people most likely to be affected are those that are “digitally 
excluded” through lack of access to the internet or through lack of skills 
and confidence. Digital exclusion is most likely in the elderly, disabled 
people and people in poverty. In Southampton the Housing Services 
tenant feedback questionnaire 2012 showed that 49% of respondents 



3 APPENDIX 3 
 

never use the internet outside of work.  
 
The trend towards reliance on the internet for administering the benefits 
system (both local and national Government) led the Southampton 
Citizen’s Advice Bureau (along with the New Forest and Basingstoke 
Bureaux)  to undertake a survey of their clients. 158 responses were 
received and the headline results are: 

• 8% of all respondents said they had no access to the internet 
• 35% said they were not confident about completing forms online 
• 67% of those over 65 did not have access to the internet at 

home. 
• 78% of those over 65 did not feel confident filling in forms online. 

 
The problem is of course not unique to Southampton and the move to 
“digital by default” is taking place across national and local government. 
In particular Universal Credit must be claimed online and initiatives are 
underway to support people who may have difficulty with this approach. 
 
In one of these the government is investing £50 million in an “assisted 
digital” project to address digital exclusion. It is aimed both at people 
without internet access at home and people lacking the skills and/or 
confidence to use computers. It is likely that a series of partnerships or 
consortia will form to run the project, involving organisations such as 
UK Online Centres; Citizens Advice; major high street retailers and 
digital access charities. A supplier workshop was recently held for 
potential suppliers. 
 
Southampton City Council has a good record in providing public access 
to the internet in libraries and is currently providing 169,000 hours of IT 
access in libraries per year across 11 sites and 159 computers. Over 
92% of people in the City live within 1 mile of a library and 100% live 
within 2 miles. Free public WiFi will also be operational by end July in 
five main district libraries and Thornhill library. 
 
It is reported by the Libraries Service that the average job search 
application, form filling activity or subscription takes over 30 minutes of 
support for a user who is computer able but not skilled and using the 
system for the first time. For those who have not used a computer it 
can take 2-3 sessions. Libraries are well placed to provide such 
support and are contracted to provide support to 200 job seekers on 
computer skills this year. Additionally UKonline/Tinder Foundation have 
contracted them to introduce 200 people to computers and support 150 
with greater IT skills within the learning centre. 
 
The Libraries Service points out that it is imperative that libraries are 



4 APPENDIX 3 
 

 

involved in early planning stages of initiatives to provide meaningful 
information on patterns of usage, the non-computer user’s experience, 
support required based on existing initiatives (Universal Job Match, 
HomeBid, Schools Admissions) and how it can be delivered 
economically and what training is required. For any initiative to be 
successful, it needs to take into account the following: 

• Library opening hours decreased by 11 % last year and are 
among the lowest for unitaries in the whole country 

• Library staffing has reduced by 36% in the last 5 years. 
• The additional time/cost to support further users. 

 
 

Potential Positive 
Impacts 

For the majority of residents, who already have internet access, this will 
mean quicker service and better interactions with the council. For those 
who could use digital public services, but lack skills and confidence, 
support will be provided thus boosting their knowledge and confidence 
when using such services again in future. This has the potential to help 
towards reducing digital exclusion, for example by giving access to 
other benefits from being online, such as job adverts. 
 
A recent study by O2’s Local Government Practice found that 48% of 
citizens like to use the internet, mobile apps or social media for 
essentials like paying for council tax or getting information on local 
services, however just 7% have used these technologies to 
communicate with their local authority in the last year – either because 
they are unavailable or don’t provide the information and services they 
need. The study also noted that smartphone penetration is expected to 
reach 90% in the next three years. 
 

Responsible  
Service Manager 

Rob Harwood 
Head of Contract Management 
 

Date  

 
 

Approved by Senior 
Manager 

Andy Lowe 
Head of Finance and IT 

Signature  
Date  



5 APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
Version control 
Version Date  

0.1 5 June 2013 Initial draft provided by Carol Harwood 

0.2 16 July 2013 Updated by Paul Medland with statistical information and further 
detail. 

0.3 30 July 2013 Incorporate comments from Carol Harwood. 
Include information from O2’s Digital Community Study. 
 

0.4 6 August 2013 Incorporate comments from Raymond Clowes.  
Tidy up for publishing on consultation website.  
Updates following meeting with Spectrum Centre for Independent 
Living.  
 

0.5 7 November 
2013 

Updated following consultation results. 

1.0 11 November 
2013 

Final following internal review and sign off 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 APPENDIX 3 
 
Impact 
Assessment 

Details of Impact Possible Solutions & 
Mitigating Actions 

Age 
 

The proposed changes may make it 
harder for some older people, who are 
statistically less likely to go online, to 
access services. 
The ONS statistical bulletin shows a 
high correlation between age and 
internet use. Almost all people aged 16 
to 44 are internet users, but this reduces 
to just over 30% for those aged 75 and 
over. 
The survey of council tenants shows 
that for this population this trend is even 
more pronounced. 49% of respondents 
to the survey were aged 66+ which 
perhaps indicates that the impact on 
council tenants may well be more 
pronounced than in the general 
population of Southampton. 
The CAB survey also supports this view. 
CAB clients are likely to be Gateway 
customers. Their survey found that 67% 
of those over 65 did not have access to 
the internet at home and 78% did not 
feel confident filling in forms online. 
A survey of visitors to the council’s web 
site gave the following age profile: 
80 and over 1.2% 
65-79 19.3% 
60-64 13.5% 
50-59 25.9% 
40-49 17.1% 
30-39 10.6% 
18-29 10.1% 
17 and under 2.1% 
Total for 65+ is 20.5% 

For Gateway the profile is: 
75 and over 2.4% 
65-74 7.0% 
55-64 11.8% 
45-54 15.0% 
35-44 20.8% 
25-34 27.6% 
18-24 15.1% 
Total for 65+ is 9.4% 

For the call centre the profile is: 

Where the problem is one of 
access to equipment, 
information about sites with free 
access to the internet is already 
being promoted to all residents 
(for example in the last City 
View).  The Council’s libraries 
offer 2 hours free use per day. 
Support will be given in 
Gateway to people who need 
assistance with the self-service 
terminals. It is likely that a high 
proportion of elderly visitors will 
require such help. 
The option of telephoning will be 
available.  Also, face-to-face 
interviews will still be available 
by appointment on a same day 
basis to  “vulnerable persons”, 
i.e. 
- to any customer who is 
unable (as opposed to 
unwilling) to use the online 
processes or other automated 
processes for self-service; 

- where any customer or other 
person related to their enquiry 
is facing an imminent threat to 
their safety (including 
domestic violence or 
homelessness); or 

- where delaying action may 
otherwise give rise to the 
customer or other person 
related to their enquiry facing 
an increased risk of loss of or 
damage to personal property 
or personal injury. 

The consultation process, 
including the distribution to 
public contact points of leaflets, 
has increased awareness of 
alternatives to online access 
and further public 
communication will be 



7 APPENDIX 3 
 

75 and over 8.3% 
65-74 11.6% 
55-64 16.5% 
45-54 19.3% 
35-44 19.8% 
25-34 18.5% 
18-24 5.8% 
Total for 65+ is 19.9% 

 

undertaken as part of the roll-
out of any change 

Disability 
 

The proposed changes may make it 
harder for some people with visual, 
audio or learning impairments to access 
services.  
The ONS statistical bulletin shows that 
individuals with no disability are over 
three times more likely to have used the 
internet than individuals with a disability 
In Southampton a sample of visitors to 
the council’s web site were asked: “If 
your use of the internet is impeded 
please indicate how”. The responses 
indicate that 2.6% of visitors had a 
vision impairment; 4.0% had mobility 
difficulties; 1.1% had a cognitive or 
learning difficulty and 2.6% had a 
hearing impairment. 
Similar questions were asked of users of 
Gateway and the Call Centre. A similar 
breakdown by impairment is not 
available, but 15.7% of visitors to 
Gateway and 20.4% of callers to the call 
centre responded that they considered 
themselves to have an impairment. 
 
Self-service terminals must be at heights 
that are accessible for all users. The 
layout and interior design of Gateway 
must meet the needs of people who 
have impaired vision, mobility difficulties, 
a hearing impairment or who have 
cognitive or learning difficulties. 
 
The automated switchboard may be a 
barrier for people who do not 
understand (because of language or 
learning difficulties) or who cannot make 
themselves understood by the system. 
 
Some individuals will have difficulty 

The information on the website 
and phone services will be 
accessible and the language 
used to access services will be 
simple and easy to understand. 
Where a customer is unable to 
use the internet or phone 
options, appointments can be 
made. 
The design of Gateway will 
include self-service terminals 
which are at wheelchair height. 
Capita will also engage with 
representatives of service users 
who have disabilities when the 
final Gateway design is being 
developed. 
Where a caller to the automated 
switchboard cannot understand, 
or fails to make himself/herself 
understood, the system will 
transfer the call to an operator. 
Floorwalkers will be available to 
assist customers. They will be 
trained to identify and approach 
customers who seem lost or 
uncertain. The quality of this 
training, and monitoring of its 
effectiveness, will be important 
in order to ensure that no-one 
slips through the net.  
The council uses the 
Readspeaker speech system on 
its website so that visitors with 
visual problems can hear the 
content of the pages. At the 
bottom of every page there is a 
link titled "Listen" which will 



8 APPENDIX 3 
 

understanding the environment and will 
not know what to do. 
 
The consultation results highlighted 
concerns about accessibility to services 
for people with disabilities and 
highlighted that an impairment that may 
not be severe can still prevent use of 
keyboards and phones (for example 
early arthritis or an inability to read and 
write). There was also concern about 
the difficuly in identifying “vulnerable” 
people and a feeling that many may not 
be identified and will not access the 
services they need. 
 
 
 
 
 

open up Readspeaker. The web 
content can then be listened to 
in whole or part by using the 
different controls to activate the 
speech system. 
All web content produced by 
Southampton City Council will  
conform to W3C/WAI's Web 
Content Accessibility Guidelines 
1.0, Conformance Level AA 
wherever possible. New, 
updated, and existing web 
content provided for the 
council’s site by third-parties will 
conform to Conformance Level 
A. 
Web pages can be made easier 
to read by magnifying the page 
(zooming in). Everything on the 
Web page will be magnified 
(including text, images, and 
controls). Zooming will change 
the magnification of the web 
site, regardless of the web site's 
formatting. 
The consultation process, 
including the distribution to 
public contact points of leaflets, 
has increased awareness of 
alternatives to online access 
and further public 
communication will be 
undertaken as part of the roll-
out of any change 
The option of telephoning will be 
available.  Also, face-to-face 
interviews will still be available 
by appointment on a same day 
basis to  “vulnerable persons”, 
i.e. 
- to any customer who is 
unable (as opposed to 
unwilling) to use the online 
processes or other automated 
processes for self-service; 

- where any customer or other 
person related to their enquiry 
is facing an imminent threat to 



9 APPENDIX 3 
 

their safety (including 
domestic violence or 
homelessness); or 

- where delaying action may 
otherwise give rise to the 
customer or other person 
related to their enquiry facing 
an increased risk of loss of or 
damage to personal property 
or personal injury.  

Gender 
Reassignment 

The proposed changes should not 
disproportionately impact in this 
category.  

Not applicable 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

The proposed changes should not 
disproportionately impact in this 
category.  

Not applicable 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

The proposed changes should not 
disproportionately impact in this 
category. 

Not applicable 

Race  The proposed changes may make it 
harder for people, for whom English is 
not their first language, to access 
services. 
A sample of the visitors to the council’s 
web site were asked to provide their 
ethnic origin. The results are: 
 
White English   81.1% 
White Irish   1.3% 
White Northern Irish   0.7% 
White Scottish   2.4% 
White Welsh   1.3% 
White Any Other White 
Background  

 8.1% 
White Total   94.9% 
Mixed White and Black Caribbean   0.1% 
Mixed White and Black African 0.2% 
Mixed White and Asian   0.5% 
Mixed Any other mixed 
background  

 0.6% 
Mixed Total   1.3% 
Asian or Asian British Indian   0.8% 
Asian or Asian British Pakistani   0.2% 
Asian or Asian British Bangladeshi   0.1% 
Asian or Asian British Any other 
Asian background  

 0.6% 
Asian or Asian British Total   1.7% 

Where the problem is one of 
access to equipment, 
information about sites with free 
access to the internet is already 
being promoted to all residents 
(for example in the last City 
View).  The Council’s libraries 
offer 2 hours free use per day. 
Support will be given in 
Gateway to people who need 
assistance with the self-service 
terminals. 
The information on the website 
and phone services will be 
simple and easy to understand. 
Where a customer is unable to 
use the internet or phone 
options, appointments can be 
made and an interpreter can be 
booked. 
The consultation process, 
including the distribution to 
public contact points of leaflets, 



10 APPENDIX 3 
 

Black or Black British Caribbean   0.4% 
Black or Black British African   0.4% 
Black or Black British Any other 
black background  

 0.0% 
Black or Black British Total   0.8% 
Chinese   0.4% 
Any other ethnic group   0.9% 
 
For Gateway and the call centre the 
results are not as detailed: 
 
White UK   81.7% 
White Other 8.1% 
Mixed 1.3% 
Asian 5.7% 
Black 2.1% 
Other 1.1% 
 
Black and minority ethnic individuals 
(BMEs) made up 12.0% of callers to the 
call centre and 33.7% of visitors to 
Gateway. 
 
Clearly BMEs proportionately use 
Gateway far more than non-BME’s. 
 
In the conclusion to their Internet Access 
Survey, Southampton CAB note that 
many EEA citizens who come to live and 
work in the UK have little understanding 
of English and the forms they need to fill 
in when they arrive. They add “It would 
seem that, in order to ensure that 
minority groups are not discriminated 
against, government and local 
government services will still need to 
provide face-to-face access for these 
people. 
 
The exit survey in Gateway confirmed 
that a number of customers chose to 
come in because of difficulties 
understanding and speaking English. 
They found it easier to communicate 
face-to-face, rather than in writing or on 
the phone. 
 

has increased awareness of 
alternatives to online access  
and further public 
communication will be 
undertaken as part of the roll-
out of any change. 
The option of telephoning will be 
available.  Also, face-to-face 
interviews will still be available 
by appointment on a same day 
basis to  “vulnerable persons”, 
i.e. 
- to any customer who is 
unable (as opposed to 
unwilling) to use the online 
processes or other automated 
processes for self-service; 

- where any customer or other 
person related to their enquiry 
is facing an imminent threat to 
their safety (including 
domestic violence or 
homelessness); or 

- where delaying action may 
otherwise give rise to the 
customer or other person 
related to their enquiry facing 
an increased risk of loss of or 
damage to personal property 
or personal injury.. 

 

Religion or Belief The proposed changes should not 
disproportionately impact in this 
category. 

Not applicable 

Sex The proposed changes should not Where the problem is one of 



11 APPENDIX 3 
 

disproportionately impact in this 
category for the majority of customers. 
The gender profile for use of the web 
site is: 
Female 55.6% 
Male 44.4% 

However the ONS statistical bulletin 
shows the older females (65+) are less 
likely to use the internet than older 
males.  This is confirmed by deeper 
analysis of the council’s web survey: 

 Female Male 
80 and over 23% 77% 
65-79 47% 53% 
60-64 48% 52% 
50-59 57% 43% 
40-49 62% 38% 
30-39 58% 42% 
18-29 65% 35% 
17 and under 70% 30% 

For Gateway 52.8% of visitors are male 
and 47.2% female. For the call centre 
34.3% of callers are male and 65.7% 
female. 
In the online survey there was a 
significant difference between the views 
of men and women on one question in 
particular – i.e about whether public 
access PCs and the phone service are 
alternatives that meet the needs of 
people without access to a PC or 
smartphone of their own. 80% of women 
felt this did not meet their needs 
compared to 54% of men. The 
difference is unexplained, but may 
reflect a reluctance to use public PCs. 
  

access to equipment, 
information about sites with free 
access to the internet is already 
being promoted to all residents 
(for example in the last City 
View).  The Council’s libraries 
offer 2 hours free use per day. 
Support will be given in 
Gateway to people who need 
assistance with the self-service 
terminals. 
The option of telephoning will be 
available.  Also, face-to-face 
interviews will still be available 
by appointment on a same day 
basis to  “vulnerable persons”, 
i.e. 
- to any customer who is 
unable (as opposed to 
unwilling) to use the online 
processes or other automated 
processes for self-service; 

- where any customer or other 
person related to their enquiry 
is facing an imminent threat to 
their safety (including 
domestic violence or 
homelessness); or 

- where delaying action may 
otherwise give rise to the 
customer or other person 
related to their enquiry facing 
an increased risk of loss of or 
damage to personal property 
or personal injury. 

The consultation process, 
including the distribution to 
public contact points of leaflets, 
has increased awareness of 
alternatives to online access 
and further public 
communication will be 
undertaken as part of the roll-
out of any change. 
 

Sexual The proposed changes should not Not applicable 



12 APPENDIX 3 
 
Orientation disproportionately impact in this 

category. 

Community Safety  The proposed changes should not 
disproportionately impact in this 
category. 
 

Not applicable 

Poverty The proposed changes mean residents 
may spend longer on the telephone, 
may have to visit Gateway twice (to 
book an appointment and for the actual 
appointment) and are designed to push 
them to use the internet. These factors 
could have a negative impact on people 
with lower incomes who may not have 
access to the internet at home and who 
could struggle to find additional 
telephone or transport monies. 
Homeless people (and those in 
imminent danger of homelessness) are 
often assisted by third parties (e.g. 
advice agencies or potential landlords) 
who will find it inconvenient to deal with 
an appointment system. 
  

Where the problem is one of 
access to equipment, 
information about sites with free 
access to the internet is already 
being promoted to all residents 
(for example in the last City 
View).  The Council’s libraries 
offer 2 hours free use per day. 
Support will be given in 
Gateway to people who need 
assistance with the self-service 
terminals. 
Where the customer is unable 
to use the internet then the 
existing phone and face-to-face 
options are available, although 
face-to-face will require an 
appointment. 
The consultation process, 
including the distribution to 
public contact points of leaflets, 
has increased awareness of 
alternatives to online access 
and further public 
communication will be 
undertaken as part of the roll-
out of any change. 
The option of telephoning will be 
available.  Also, face-to-face 
interviews will still be available 
by appointment on a same day 
basis to  “vulnerable persons”, 
i.e. 
- to any customer who is 
unable (as opposed to 
unwilling) to use the online 
processes or other automated 



13 APPENDIX 3 
 

processes for self-service; 
- where any customer or other 
person related to their enquiry 
is facing an imminent threat to 
their safety (including 
domestic violence or 
homelessness – this will deal 
with the specific example 
given opposite); or 

- where delaying action may 
otherwise give rise to the 
customer or other person 
related to their enquiry facing 
an increased risk of loss of or 
damage to personal property 
or personal injury.  

Other Significant 
Impacts 

Impact on advice agencies and libraries 
as providers of free internet access. 
 
 
 
 
Other impacts identified by the 
consultation process are: 
• Dealing sensitively with customers 

who are emotionally vulnerable (for 
example have suffered a death in the 
family). 

• People with poor literacy skills may 
not be identified as requiring 
assistance. 

• People may have difficulty fitting in 
appointments around work 
commitments. 

• Some people have difficulty 
remembering appointments. 
 

• There is a perceived inequality 
around some people having to wait 
for an appointment when others are 
seen without an appointment 

As part of the rollout of the 
online benefits claim form 
(which is likely to be the most 
complex service to be provided 
online) briefings/training will be 
offered to advice agencies and 
library staff so they can assist 
their clients or customers. 
 
The training to identify 
vulnerable people will address 
this point. 
The training to identify 
vulnerable people will address 
this point. 
There should be sufficient 
appointments available to 
ensure flexibility. 
A system of phone/text 
reminders will be investigated. 
Floor walkers can explain why 
there is a need to see some 
people urgently to customers to 
anyone who complains or 
makes comment. 
 



14 APPENDIX 3 
 
 



 APPENDIX 4

� � �

Page 1 

REPORT ON CONSULTATION EXERCISES

Introduction

1. This report sets out the outcomes from the consultation exercises which ended on 1 

November 2013. A summary is given below, but there are a number of annexes that 

give further information about the consultation exercises and the detail of the 

responses.  

2. The annexes are: 

Annex 1 - Consultation methods and timescales. 

Annex 2 – Best value consultation. 

Annex 3 – Equalities consultation. 

Annex 4 – Summary of responses to the on-line consultation. 

Annex 5 – Analysis of on-line responses by ward. 

Annex 6 – Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation. 

Annex 7 – Detailed responses to the paper version of the consultation. 

Annex 8 – Responses received by other means. 

Annex 9 – Results of survey undertaken in Gateway. 

Summary Results

3. Equalities issues have been raised by respondents through all forms of response to the 

consultation and have been particularly highlighted by Spectrum Centre for 

Independent Living and at a meeting with the Southampton Learning Disability 

Partnership Board. Many of these had already been recognised in the consultation and 

in the mitigating actions included in the Equality and Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA). 

4. The consultation did though highlight that there should be more consideration of some 

circumstances or groups of people and the ESIA has been amended to take account of 

these. They include: 

• People with literacy difficulties. 

• People with comparatively minor disabilities, such as arthritis, which make using 

a keyboard or a phone very difficult. 

• People who are homeless and those supporting them.

• People with language difficulties. 

• The difficulty in identifying people who are vulnerable and so need to be seen 

without an appointment. 

5. The consultation also highlighted some other aspects that people were concerned 

about, including: 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



 APPENDIX 4

� � �

Page 2 

• The potential additional cost of longer telephone calls. 

• The potential cost of additional journeys to Gateway in order to make and then 

attend an appointment. 

• The perceived inequality of some people having to make an appointment whilst 

others are seen without an appointment. 

• The difficulty of fitting appointment times around work commitments. 

• The number of “no-shows” as often customers’ lifestyles mean they do not have 

the ability to organise themselves to attend an appointment. 

• Access to computers in libraries has been restricted as library opening hours 

have reduced. 

6. A common sentiment expressed was regret that the council was becoming “faceless” 

and would be seen as uncaring. The importance of personal contact to many people 

was stressed. There is support for increasing the services available online, which is 

seen as particularly helpful for those at work and who have the ability to use 

computers. However there is little support for compulsion or making alternative 

channels more difficult to access. 

7. Many views were expressed about the extension to the Capita contract. A letter in 

favour was received from Business South who comment that “Capita is doing a good 

job for Southampton in partnership with Southampton City Council”. This view is 

echoed by a number of respondents, but the majority of views have been quite 

negative. Often the views expressed reflected an ideological stance, for example a 

belief that services are best provided by the public sector, but there are also criticisms 

of the service currently being provided. The need to demonstrate best value through a 

competitive process is also mentioned. 

8. Overall the consultation results show that the majority of respondents are not in favour 

of the proposed changes. However many concerns expressed were because of a 

perceived compulsion to access services only online and the majority of the inequalities 

highlighted are addressed in the ESIA. It is also of course a largely self-selecting 

sample, with people supporting change being less likely to respond. 



 APPENDIX 4 

Consultation Methods and Timescales Annex 1 

Page 3 

Interest Groups Methods Timescales Lead 

All Stakeholders Questionnaire 
available through the 
council’s website. 

10 July 2013 Paul Medland 

Meetings with 
specific interest 
groups 

Meeting with 
Spectrum Centre for 
Independent Living. 

16 July 2013 Paul Medland 

Southampton 
Connect, partners 
and external 
organisations 

Email with link to 
consultation 

8 August 2013 Carol Harwood 

Email to Anti-Poverty 
Network with link to 
consultation 

7 August 2013 Sarah Crawford 

Meeting with Anti-
Poverty Network 

16 September 2013 Sara Crawford 

Southampton Inter-
Generational 
Network 

20 August 1013 Paul Medland 

Learning Disability 
Partnership Board 

10 September 2013 Paul Medland 

Leaflets sent to 
welfare rights groups 
for customers 

2 October 2013 Paul Medland 

Specific groups such 
as community and 
voluntary sector 
organisations 

Meeting with Block 
representatives 
(followed by leaflets 
sent to reps).  

3September 2013 

24 September 2013 

Paul Medland 

Exit survey of 
Gateway users. 

w/c 14 October 2013 Paul Medland 

Leaflet available in 
Gateway, Libraries 
and Local Housing 
Offices. 

24 September 2013 Emma Howard 

Service users 

E-alert 28 August 2013 Lucy Calvert 



 APPENDIX 4 

Consultation Methods and Timescales Annex 1 

Page 4 

Interest Groups Methods Timescales Lead 

Businesses Letters to Business 
South, Chamber of 
Commerce, 
Business in the 
Community 

30 July 2013 Paul Medland 

Staff  Article in Weekly 
Bulletin  

31 July 2013 Lucy Calvert 



 APPENDIX 4 

Best Value Consultation         Annex 2

Page 5 

The consultation described below concluded on the 1 November 2013.  The findings from 

this, and the consultation on equalities, are included elsewhere in this report. 

Strategic Services Partnership – Possible contract extension

Since October 2007 Southampton City Council has been in contract with Capita to provide 
a number of services.  This arrangement is known as the Strategic Services Partnership 
(SSP).  The services covered are: 

• Customer Services - The front line contact with the council's customers through 
Gateway and the customer service centre, and internal post and document 
management. 

• Human Resources & Payroll Services - Including recruitment, payroll, employee 
relations, health and safety, occupational health, learning and development, and 
strategy and reward. 

• Property Services - Including professional consultancy, project management, 
valuations, managing investments, accommodation strategy, repair and 
maintenance, highways and bridges, regulatory services and property records. 

• Procurement Services - Undertaking procurement projects to source appropriate 
suppliers able to meet the Council's needs on high value projects. 

• Local Taxation & Benefits Services - Administering the collection of council tax, 
national non-domestic rates and the calculation and payment of housing and 
council tax benefits. 

• IT Services - Grouped into four main areas; service delivery, technical 
infrastructure, applications development and support, and programme 
management. 

• Print Services - Providing a one stop shop for all printing and printed related 
services, including a central photocopying service, finishing and any print related 
projects. 

The council’s contract with Capita currently runs until 30 September 2017, but the council 
is considering whether to extend it by five years to 30 September 2022 (this extension was 
allowed for in the original contract). 
We would like your views about the possible extension of the contract with Capita. The 
main alternatives at the end of the contract term would be to bring the services back “in-
house”, so that they are provided directly by the council; to enter a partnership 
arrangement with another council; or to retender the contract in full or in part. 

Why extend the Strategic Services Partnership?

The council and Capita have recently been discussing changes to the SSP that would 
benefit the council and reduce the cost as part of an extended contract. 
There is no intention to extend the services outsourced or to transfer council staff to Capita 
as part of this proposal.  

The main benefits are: 

• Guaranteed financial savings totalling almost £24 million over the next nine years 
(compared with costs projected over that period on the basis of the current cost of 
the contract due to expire on 30th September 2013);

• Flexibility in pricing for future volume changes. The flexibility in pricing for volume 
changes will give opportunities for further savings if the council’s staff shrinks and 
provides a sound framework for as yet unknown changes; 



 APPENDIX 4 

Best Value Consultation         Annex 2

Page 6 

• Capita will develop One Guildhall Square as a Southampton business centre, 
providing job opportunities for local people, guaranteeing that any job losses from 
the changes to the SSP will be offset by additional jobs from business with other 
Capita clients. In the past 12 months, Capita has brought 95 FTE worth of new jobs 
into the City. 

• Capita will support the greater community by providing volunteering opportunities 
for Capita staff through their Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programme. 

• Capita will promote apprenticeships, internships and work experience opportunities 
in local Southampton schools, colleges, and universities and will itself commit until 
September 2022 to offer a minimum of: 

- 40 apprenticeships.  
- 100 summer internships and/or work experience placements. 

• Capita will support the SME local business community with expertise and practical 
services, for example with free of charge local workshops for business on public 
sector procurement to enable them to bid effectively for local public sector 
opportunities. 

• In Customer Services, Capita will invest in technology and process re-engineering 
to allow changes necessary for channel shift (moving more services online). These 
changes are subject to a separate consultation which can be found on the Council’s 
website 

• In the IT Services, there will be transformation activity including deployment of the 
latest technology strategies:-  

- cloud based hosting and server virtualisation, which will provide a robust yet 
flexible infrastructure;  

- a major project in 2013/14 to upgrade the council’s Microsoft Windows, 
Office and Exchange desktop environment and the server software 
infrastructure;  

- a shared service model in which resources and service elements are 
provided from one or more of Capita’s sites around the country. 

• Both parties will work together to support the Council’s change programme. 
• The proposal will bring long-term clarity and assurance for Capita staff, improving 

morale and providing opportunities during this period of major change. 
• Delaying from 2015/16 to 2020/21the need to undertake a procurement exercise 

costing at least £2 million. 

The consultation process

Consultation on these proposals runs until 1 November 2013.  You may give your opinion 
on any aspect of the proposals by writing to the address below.  Comments will be 
consolidated into a report which will be available to Members of the Council when they 
make a decision on the proposals. This is expected to be later in October 2013. 

Please send your views to: 
Paul Medland  
Lower Ground Floor  
Civic Centre  
Southampton  
SO14 7LY  
Email: paul.medland@southampton.gov.uk



 APPENDIX 4 

Equalities Consultation         Annex 3 

Page 7 

The consultation described below concluded on the 1 November 2013.  The findings from 

this, and the consultation on equalities, are included elsewhere in this report. 

Have your say on how you access our services

We’re making changes to the way you can contact us and access our services, but before 
we make any final decisions, we’d like your views on our proposals.  In order to modernise 
our services and reduce the running costs, we need to enable and encourage online and 
automated phone access to services wherever possible.  

We recognise that these changes may not suit everyone; therefore we’re keen to find out 
how these changes may affect you and others you know, in order to keep any negative 
impacts to a minimum.  Please help us make the right decisions by completing a short 
questionnaire (link below) about access to our services. The deadline for entries is 1 
November 2013. 

Our proposals

Wherever possible we want to ensure that any contact with you is via our online and self-
service facilities that do not require you to speak to a member of staff face-to-face or over 
the phone.  

Changes to our website  

We will need to make some improvements to our website and plan to introduce more 
online forms so you can request a range of services including applications for housing 
benefit and council tax reduction over the internet.  We will also develop mobile-friendly 
web pages so you can access our website easily using a smartphone.  

Many of our services can already be accessed online and more are becoming available all 
the time.  Our proposed changes will improve the current online arrangements and expand 
the services on offer with the aim of making the internet the preferred method of access to 
services for most people.  To help reduce costs and improve efficiency, paper forms will be 
significantly reduced and will only be provided in exceptional circumstances.  

It is now commonplace within many organisations to expect customers to use the internet 
to purchase and manage products and services.  We also know that the number of people 
who are able to access the internet has increased substantially over the last few years and 
this trend seems set to continue.  We’re therefore bringing ourselves up-to-date with this 
trend and are confident our online services will be more convenient for many customers.  
This approach has been adopted successfully for a number of central government services 
(for example car road tax and HM Revenue & Customs self-assessments) and in future 
other major services such as Universal Credit will be dealt with online. 

Changes to our call centre 

In addition to our online improvements, we will be making changes to our call centre to 
enable you to self-serve over the phone.  Our switchboard will be automated and simple 
transactions will be carried out without the need to talk to a member of staff.  However, 
please be assured that if our extended self-service menu options do not meet your needs; 
you will be able to speak to someone at the call centre.  

Changes to Gateway, One Guildhall Square  

Changes will also be made to our ‘one-stop-shop’ for services at Gateway.  You will be 
encouraged to use the self-service terminals which are going to be installed, and a 



 APPENDIX 4 

Equalities Consultation         Annex 3 

Page 8 

member of staff will be on hand to help if you’re having difficulty with the system.  If you 
require a service which you cannot access using our automated or online facilities, you will 
be able to meet a member of Gateway staff on an appointment basis only. 

The consultation process and questionnaire

You may give your opinion on any aspect of the proposals, but we have set out some 
questions which may help guide you in an online questionnaire available here:  

Changes to our customer contact arrangements online survey

Alternatively, you can submit your response in writing to:  

Paul Medland  
Project Manager  
Lower Ground Floor  
Civic Centre  
Southampton  
SO14 7LY  

Please note the deadline for feedback to this consultation is 1 November 2013. 

Our customer services

These customer services are provided on behalf of the council by Capita as part of a 
Strategic Services Partnership. The council’s contract with Capita runs until 30 September 
2017 but, to bring in these changes, reduce costs and secure flexible pricing in the future, 
the council is considering extending it by five years to 30 September 2022 (this extension 
was allowed for in the original contract). This is subject to a separate 'best value' 
consultation which can be found on the council’s website here.  

Other services provided by Capita under the same partnership arrangement are: 

• Local Taxes and Benefits  
• Procurement Services  
• Human Resources  
• IT Services  
• Property Services  
• Print Services 

We would like your views on proposals to extend the contract with Capita. The main 
alternatives would be to bring the services back “in-house” so that they are provided 
directly by the council; to enter a partnership arrangement with another council; or to 
retender the contract in full or in part.



 APPENDIX 4 

Summary of responses to the on-line survey.     Annex 4 

Page 9 

A full listing of the comments received is given in annex 6. 

Questions 

Replies 185  

Yes 30 16% 

No 132 71% 

Not Sure 23 12% 

1.  Not everyone will have access to their own PC or 
smartphone.  Public access PCs will be available in 
Gateway and libraries.  A phone service through an 
automated switchboard will also be available. 

 Do you feel providing these facilities meets the needs of 
people without access to the internet? 

 Any comments? 

Comments highlight the difficulties that some people have using online and phone services, 
particularly some people with disabilities, including learning disabilities, people with language 
difficulties and the elderly.  The fact that library hours have been reduced has been raised by a 
number of people and there is concern about capacity both in libraries and in Gateway.  A 
preference to talk to a person rather than deal with a machine is expressed by a number of 
respondents.

Replies 187  

Yes 63 34% 

No 75 40% 

Not Sure 49 26% 

2. There will be people who will have difficulty using or are 
unable to use an online service including: 

� People with visual impairments 

� People with learning difficulties 

� Some elderly people 

 These people will still be able to use the phone service or 
can make an appointment to see someone face-to-face in 
Gateway. 

 Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? 

3.  Are there other groups of people who may have difficulty 
with online access? 

  Any comments? 

Responses included:  

• People with physical disabilities who have difficulty using computer or phone keyboards. 

• People who are emotionally vulnerable. 

• People with poor literacy skills. 

• People with language difficulties. 

• Homeless people. 

Comments tend to echo those to the first question.  The cost to the caller of long calls to the 
council is also mentioned.

Replies 181  

Yes 52 29% 

No 90 50% 

4. There will be people who will have difficulty using or are 
unable to use the automated phone switchboard including: 

� People with hearing impairments 

� People with learning difficulties 

� People who have difficulty understanding spoken 
English 

Not Sure 39 22% 



 APPENDIX 4 

Summary of responses to the on-line survey.     Annex 4 

Page 10 

� Some elderly people 

 These people will still be able to use the online service if 
they are able to do so, or can make an appointment at 
Gateway to see someone face-to-face (with an interpreter if 
necessary).   

      Do you feel this approach would meet their needs?  

5. Are there other groups of people who may have difficulty 
with an automated phone service? 

 Any comments? 

Responses included: 

• People with physical disabilities who have difficulty using computer or phone keyboards.  

• People who are emotionally vulnerable. 

• People with poor literacy skills. 

There are many negative comments about automated phone services which are perceived as 
difficult to use, unfriendly and time consuming.  Many respondents emphasised the desirability of 
interaction with a person.  There is also concern that there would be additional pressure on 
Gateway from people visiting rather than using the phone service. 

Replies 186  

Yes 114 61% 

No 42 23% 

Not Sure 30 16% 

6. Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will 
encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals 
(with assistance from Gateway staff as needed).  However 
some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not 
be appropriate that they wait for an appointment.  Gateway 
staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and 
an immediate interview will be available in these 
exceptional cases. 

 Can you see any difficulties with this approach? 

 Any comments? 

There are many negative comments about this approach.  These include: 

• Scepticism that vulnerable people will be recognised, particularly at busy times. 

• Training is unlikely to help. 

• That the service will be seen as “unfriendly and uncaring”. 

• There will be long waiting times, even for self-service. 

• Customers will be aggressive so that they are seen immediately. 

• It is unreasonable to expect people to call twice, once to make an appointment and once to 
attend. 

Again the desirability of interaction with a person is emphasised. 

Replies 130 7. Other than online via the web and automated phone 
services, are there other approaches that the council 
should be considering when looking at customer contact? 

 Please give your reasons for your answer. 

There is an emphasis on face-to-face contact, either maintaining the status-quo or expanding 
face-to-face to include more visits or training library/housing staff to be able to help with more 
queries.  Other suggestions include mobile phone apps and greater use of email with more timely 
responses. 

8. Over time the council will move as many services as Replies 116 



 APPENDIX 4 

Summary of responses to the on-line survey.     Annex 4 

Page 11 

possible to online and/or phone self-service. 

 Are there any services that you feel should not be 
considered for this approach and why do you think they are 
not suitable? 

Responses include: 

• Adult and children’s social services. 

• Safeguarding. 

• Any dealings with people with learning difficulties. 

• Homeless support 

• Financial problems 

• Cash office 

Replies 185  

Yes 96 52% 

No 56 30% 

Not Sure 33 18% 

9. To encourage people to use online forms the number of 
paper forms will be substantially reduced and they will not 
be widely distributed.  There will always be a paper version 
if it is needed, but one will have to be requested.  

 Can you see this causing any difficulties? 
10. Are there any council services where this approach is not 

appropriate? 

Knowing that a paper form can be requested is seen as an issue, as is queuing to get a form 
where one can just be picked up currently.  The difficulty this would create for people being 
visited in their homes was raised – visiting officers take paper forms with them. 

Replies 139 11. The council is considering whether to extend its contract 
with Capita by five years beyond the current end date of 30 
September 2017. 

 Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the 
alternatives that you would like the council to take into 
account? 

Mixed views, but with the majority being against an extension to the contract.  Views expressed 
include: 

• Services should be provided by council staff. 

• There should be competition to ensure best value. 

• The contact is providing good value. 

• There are issues with the current service provision by Capita 

• The current arrangements are too restricting 

• The contract has moved work to council managers 

15. Any further comments? Replies 70 

There is some support here for modernising services and providing more on-line access, but the 
concerns over automated phones and reduced face-to-face access are repeated. 

There is some criticism that the consultation has not been publicised wider and that the paper 
forms have been delayed.  Others thanked the council for the opportunity to comment. 

NB. Questions 12 to 14 ask for sex, age range and postcode



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

o
n

-l
in

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 b
y
 w

a
rd

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 5

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
 

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

 
Q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

 1
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 2
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 4
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 6
 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 9
 

  
Y

e
s

N
o

 
N

o
t 

s
u

re
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

t 
s
u

re
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

t 
s
u

re
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

t 
s
u

re
Y

e
s

N
o

N
o

t 
s
u

re

B
a

rg
a

te
 

2
 

8
 

1
 

3
 

6
 

3
 

4
 

6
 

2
 

7
 

4
 

1
 

6
 

4
 

2
 

B
a

s
s
e

tt
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

4
 

1
 

1
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

B
e

v
o

is
 

1
 

7
 

0
 

1
 

5
 

2
 

1
 

4
 

3
 

7
 

0
 

1
 

7
 

0
 

1
 

B
it
te

rn
e

 
0

 
4

 
0

 
0

 
2

 
2

 
0

 
2

 
1

 
3

 
0

 
1

 
2

 
0

 
2

 

B
it
te

rn
e
 P

a
rk

1
 

7
 

1
 

3
 

4
 

2
 

1
 

6
 

2
 

3
 

1
 

5
 

4
 

2
 

3
 

C
o

x
fo

rd
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

2
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

1
 

F
re

e
m

a
n

tl
e

 
2

 
8

 
4

 
4

 
6

 
3

 
2

 
7

 
3

 
8

 
3

 
3

 
7

 
3

 
4

 

H
a

re
fi
e

ld
 

1
 

5
 

1
 

3
 

2
 

2
 

2
 

3
 

1
 

4
 

3
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

M
ill

b
ro

o
k
 

3
 

4
 

1
 

5
 

0
 

3
 

4
 

3
 

1
 

4
 

3
 

1
 

1
 

4
 

3
 

P
e

a
rt

re
e

 
4

 
5

 
1

 
5

 
4

 
1

 
6

 
3

 
1

 
6

 
4

 
0

 
7

 
3

 
0

 

P
o

rt
s
w

o
o

d
 

2
 

1
0

 
2

 
4

 
5

 
5

 
4

 
6

 
4

 
9

 
3

 
2

 
6

 
5

 
3

 

R
e

d
b

ri
d

g
e

 
0

 
5

 
0

 
2

 
1

 
2

 
1

 
3

 
1

 
3

 
0

 
2

 
3

 
1

 
1

 

S
h

ir
le

y
 

1
 

3
 

3
 

3
 

2
 

2
 

3
 

3
 

1
 

4
 

1
 

2
 

4
 

1
 

2
 

S
h

o
lin

g
 

1
 

2
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

S
w

a
y
th

lin
g
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

W
o
o
ls

to
n

 
4

 
7

 
1

 
5

 
4

 
4

 
5

 
4

 
3

 
7

 
2

 
3

 
6

 
6

 
1

 

N
o

t 
k
n

o
w

n
 

5
 

5
0

 
7

 
2

0
 

2
8

1
5

 
1

3
 

3
4

1
4

 
4

0
 

1
6

7
 

3
4

 
1

8
9

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

0
 

1
3

2
2

3
 

6
3

 
7

5
4

9
 

5
2

 
9

0
3

9
 

1
1

4
4

2
3

0
 

9
6

 
5

6
3

3
 

N
B

 –
 W

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 w
a

rd
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
s
 n

o
t 

k
n
o

w
n

 t
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
: 

•
 

T
h
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
n

’t
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
, 

o
r 

•
 

T
h
e

 p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 g

iv
e

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
, 

o
r 

•
 

T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
n

. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 1 - Not everyone will have access to their own PC or smartphone. Public access PCs will be available in Gateway and 

libraries. A phone service through an automated switchboard will also be available. Do you feel providing these facilities meets the 

needs of people without access to the internet? Any comments?

Page 13 

Not everybody wants to use a computer - not every query fits nicely into a tick box survey. 

Some of the people I visit on behalf of the council can not get out of the house, they do not have internet feel isolated without it already as evey thing 

they read or watch tells them there is isnofmation on the web.  If changing is going to make the phone call longer when they do try to phone in they 

will give up and could be at risk in the community with they feel no support.  I mayself is in my 50's and have internet conection in my home I would 

still rather speak to a human being whenb trying to sort things out, i would especilly want a quick contat if i was going through a crisis. 

Needs to cater to the older generation, people with visual impairment and without computer knowledge. 

I believe people attending Gateway need at the very minimum the service that is currently being offered 

Its all very well saying that libraries have Public Access PCs yet they've been hit hard with budget cuts and opening hours have been cut and will 

continue to be cut, not all of us can get into Gateway. 

I am cocerned that it will not always be possible for Customers to come into Gateway therefore their enquiry may not be dealt with. 

For older or less mobile people who find it difficult to travel, it will be very difficult to regularly arrange an appointment and get to the library/gateway 

each time they need to use a service. These more vulnerable people may also find it harder to use an automated phone system, and be more used 

to talking to someone. If they have to wait a long time to get through to a 'real person' on the phone this will add to their phone bills too. 

Because a number of people are still unable to use the internet and they will also feel 'time pressured' to complete items e.g. forms on-line if they are 

sat in Gateway with a large queue behind them 

Pointing them in the direction of a free PC is not enough. There needs to be adequate support for people who have not used a PC before or do not 

use them regularly.  I'm concerned about directing people to libraries. Whenever I go to the central library the computers are all in use.  Library hours 

have been reduced.  Will there be more library staff to help people? 

I t will be elderly people who will suffer from these proposals they don't all understand the internet and it would take them longer to get through to 

spaek to someone if they understand all the options!! 

Many of our clients do not have internet access and furthermore find it difficult to leave the house. Extended telephone menus can be extremely 

confusing and run up high phone bills for clients with little money to spare. An option to speak to an adviser should be offered on the first menu to 

avoid running up high bills and confusing clients who find it difficult to take in information. 

There are a significant number of people in the city such as vulnerable adults living in supported housing and older vulnerable people living in their 

own homes who not only don't have access to the Internet but also have other problems, such as physical and mental ill health, that make it very 

difficult for them to leave their homes and access the Internet through public facilities. 

A lot of people without Internet access have, in our experience, one of the following issues:  Mobile phone only household - calls to call centres are 

expensive for mobile only households, particularly if they have to listen to lots of options and it takes a long time to speak to a human.  Maybe look 

at 0300 numbers and 0303  numbers, though I'm not sure if these are free to the user or just low cost.  This is important as across the board, people 

with the lowest incomes - often includes mobile only households, are the ones that pay the most to access services and pay bills.  Not addressing 

this, would not be good from an equality impact point of view.  Poor literacy - 1 in 5 of the U.K. population do not have functional literacy (includes 

ability to fill in forms)and this is higher amongst people who access a lot of council services.  People with poor literacy struggle to use the Internet 

and fill in forms.  Phone may work, but in many cases face-to-fac e is the only option.  Need to make sure there are face-to-face options which are 

adequately staffed.  Disabilities - again people with disabilities tend to be over represented in the lower socio economic groups, who tend to access 

council services more.  Both physical and mental characteristics of illnesses can make the Internet or phone unviable options depending on the 

disability and extent.  Need to ensure there is still a face-to-face options that is well staffed.  Older people - whilst many older people do use the 

Internet, there are many who do not, especially amongst the frail elderly. In our experience older people often preferred a face-to-face service in 

order to ensure their understanding of what is happening.  Need to ensure there is a face-to-face service that is well staffed, and that the needs of 

older people are well understood.   Even for those with Internet access who can use it, it needs to be borne in mind that a lot of people do not have 

print ers/ opportunity to print copies of forms they have filled in, which is of concern to some if it is all online, especially if it is something like Planning 

Permission.  Also how will you confirm that the form has been received successfully and what to expect will happen next? 

Not everyone is confident enough to use PC's 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 1 - Not everyone will have access to their own PC or smartphone. Public access PCs will be available in Gateway and 

libraries. A phone service through an automated switchboard will also be available. Do you feel providing these facilities meets the 

needs of people without access to the internet? Any comments?

Page 14 

Will the telephone contact arrangements be free? Otherwise the more vulnerable/less well off may incurr costs not incurred by others accessing 

services. 

Not everyone can use PC's 

Many of the most vulnerable customers will always  need face to face support and advice. In addition people may be vulnerable at key times eg 

trauma, ill health  or bereavement .I recently had to deal with DWP about a bereavement issue and they have a specialist section for face to face 

work for people in these circumstances . Pensions service do home visits for benefits take ups   From my knowledge of working in Southampton 

over many years I estimate about 30%of residents  need more not less face to face help and ideally it should be nearer where they live as having to 

come into  Gateway is a huge effort on public transport. Its also not always able to help peole and the service can be expensive £1.25 for 1 A4 

photocopy I would advise you to have a focus group for block reps and for tenants and residents associations 

Not completely. will there be enough computers available to meet demand based on the amount of caller traffic into gateway currently? your brief 

also suggests that it may be time consuming for people using the remote phone service whcih again can lead to customer dissatisfaction. 

we have already learnt from the new smart city card for the bridge that people do not want to use on line ,this is the reasson they still come in to 

housing offeices as they want to speak tosomeone and its very frustrating when yoyu ring the SCC for any thing all you get are a long list of options. 

Not if (like my parents) they have no knowledge of using a PC and avoid them like the plaque. I think the two sustems need to run paralell for a while 

yet. 

As long as there are still enough customer support advisors available for a face to face service for those who do not have access or are not IT 

literate. 

Yes if the libraries are open at times which are convenient for people who are working 

People with disabilities will find it difficult to access libraries and Gateway for use public PCs.  Automated switch board can be very confusing for 

hard of hearing, older people and those with learning difficulties. 

People with low literacy and/or poor English will have difficulty using PC based services.  They will also lack the confidence to use them and will be 

discouraged from sorting out problems at an early stage leading to complications which can take SCC staff longer to resolve. 

If people cannot go out due to a physical disability or an anxiety issue they will not be able to access these. 

the option to talk to a person must still be available as these are usually the most vulnerable 

"meets the needs" - the answer is in the question. Every case is different, needing nuanced answers not available from a robot. 

Many people do not have internet access at home and have to rely on library facilities, which have been significantly reduced lately 

People feel that it is a way of cutting costs, and also increasing the costs of getting hold of people in the council for a variety of things. Plus the 

automated switchboards are not always the most clearest of things to understand as there will be times when they don't direct you to the place you 

want to go to. 

There will be some people who do not have internet access 

Not everyone is able to actively leave their home, everyone they want to contact you. What if the weather is bad or the nearest public internet 

access is far away. Not everyone can use s pc or what if they forget their details. 

Opening hours of libraries is not enough. Is it possible for one pc in each library to be reserved for gateway use? 

Yes, but only so long as the council can give a commitment to keep libraries open.  To close libraries or shorten opening hours will discriminate 

against those members of the public without access to the internet. 

Public services providing these PCs have reduced opening hours compared to a year ago, and the risk that they are gradually eroded further will 

mean that access to these resources and therefore the council's communication will be reduced too. 

some older people get confused with automated phone services, there must be access to a person. Sheltered housing usually have a community 

room these could be accessed to help train the local older population in the use of the internet. Child services and domestic violence in the home 

should always stay staff orientated. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 1 - Not everyone will have access to their own PC or smartphone. Public access PCs will be available in Gateway and 

libraries. A phone service through an automated switchboard will also be available. Do you feel providing these facilities meets the 

needs of people without access to the internet? Any comments?

Page 15 

Although it may be off putting for the elderly 

providing they are clear and easy to use 

Depends on how many libraries survive cut backs and the hours they are open.  People work shift patterns and people have more than one part time 

job so a 9-5 Monday to Friday opening of libraries and the Gateway would not be sufficient.  Automated phone systems need to professionally 

designed and should not be money making premium numbers.  The number(s) provided should be included in the included number range in the 

common phone packages provided by mobile and fixed service providers. 

Most people who do not have internet are too concerned or frightened to learn how to use it - then automated telephones are just as nad to them. 

Elderly may find automated system daunting 

Going to use a terminal somewher is not always convenient and you only get a set timne on the terminal in some settings 

Older Persons need to talk to a human via a direct line not via 10 prompts to get to the right Dept. Older Persons do not have or want PC skills they 

want someone to talk to. Council should make arrangements for persons over 50 years of age to have paper forms.... 

Everyone knows that automated switchboards are universally disliked so while I support the introduction of more online services, why on earth would 

you introduce a service you know will be disliked by almost everyone. 

older people often need help and these are the very people who are unlikely to be able to use the internet.As people get older they are not as 

capable of doing things which they perhaps could have handled at a younger age. 

Those without internet are more likely to be elderly. They may not even be able to get out and access any facility. 

whilst I am happy with this I have elderly relatives who would not use the internet so would be totally reliant on a phone service which you describe 

as slow and will take longer to get through to an operator 

Unfortunately the people most likely to require assistance with services are those without access to the internet (via whatever medium. these people 

will be further alienated from participation in society. 

a lot of elderly people will not use new technology

Need to speak to local people when you need to phone up.  Haven't heard good things about Capita. 

Some matters are better discussed face to face or perhaps given personal difficulties of communication /understanding or a personal issue being 

discussed a f2f meeting would be preferred by the customer 

My answer is qualified with 'so long as there is enough funding for the extra PCs'. 

No when ever I have gone to gateway, I have had to leave before seeing anyone because its takes to long and i run out of time. It's OK if your not 

working but difficult for a working person to be able to wait around. 

most people can make it to libraries 

For the majority yes, but its ensuring that those that are vulnerable won't be disadvantaged by these changes. 

Not enough access points 

People like to be dealt with face to face and there is nothing worse than automated response. This does not allow for peoples questions. 

You need to consider vulunerable clients.  Some clients have never used PCs, or smartphones.  Automated switchbord is not good for elderly clients  

There are not enough staff to help those unsure/unable to use internet. also saying they are available in Libraries may be so but there is a cost to 

printing which isn't taken in to account. 

Unsuitable for some elderly people (eg my mum, who although still independent has early stages of Alzheimers))who cannot use computers and are 

confused by automated switchboards. They rely on letter writing or face-to-face contact 

The fittest and most able will manage to make use of public internet provision and will benefit from learning to use this technology. I am concerned 

about the situation of older and vunerable people. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 1 - Not everyone will have access to their own PC or smartphone. Public access PCs will be available in Gateway and 

libraries. A phone service through an automated switchboard will also be available. Do you feel providing these facilities meets the 

needs of people without access to the internet? Any comments?

Page 16 

Many people especially those with mental health problems, older people with hearing difficulties have difficulty conducting phone conversations.In 

my experience the options offered are often phrased in such a way as not to seem relevant to the query or not include anything about the query. An 

example is Southern Water  one of whose options is 'If you want to pay your bill' there is nothing that says 'If you want to amend your direct debit'. Is 

this paying a bill or something completely different and not included in their menu. 

there will be a loss of privacy and that may give a worry about security too 

It will not be appropriate for those who are not comfortable with technology and would prefer to speak to a real person. 

Some people have no experience of computers and may not want to use them.  They should not be made to use something they do not want to. 

Older people may not use opublic PCs and unless the switchboard is very clearly and simply organised 

please realise that not everyone has access to the internet. this applies mostly to the elderly who are most likely to need help or information 

Concerned that phone calls will involve longer waits 

Will not meet the needs of those with English as a second language or low education/levels of understanding. 

Not everyone is computer literate and even those who are can often not negotiate thier way arojnd the system. Face to face contact is essential. 

help for vulnerable consumers on a personal basis must also be available 

It needs to be remembered that many libraries are being closed or reduced services, hours etc.  It PC's are provied at Gateway, how are these 

managed, time allocated, queuing system etc.  If someone has made a special visit to Gateway, surely they may as well speak to an Advisor in 

person? 

Those most in need of information and help such as elderly may well not have access to on-line or mobile facilities 

There is a risk that the most vulnerable will suffer. It is not clear how 'unable' will be diferentiated from 'unwilling'. 

Even if they have access they may not be able to use a computer or understand the site 

Long waiting periods for both public and internal staff listening to public service announcements.  Callers wrongly transferred by Contact Centre and 

note announce, failing to give recipients chance to respond by saying the call is not for our team,  Phone just put down as soon as transferred so 

caller has to go through the whole explanation they have just given to contact centre operative again; very poor customer service.  It seems the 

Contact Centre are not able or willing to go the extra mile to find out what a customer really wants, particularly if they have language difficulties, 

hearing or speach problems and seem to just transfer callers to get them off their line for someone else to sort out.  Callers are therefore, very 

frustrated by the time they get put through to us.  As for transferring back wrongly directed callers to the Contact Centre, even by calling internally 

we have to queue with the public and are subject to the same public announcement s, sometimes taking as long as 15 - 20 minutes, by which time 

the caller we are trying to put back through who was wrongly transferred in the first place has hung up. Members of the public, particularly social 

care clients should not be expected to wait for such lengthly periods at cost to them, particularly as often their only form of contact is via a mobile 

phone so long waiting periods eat in to their credit, and may well learning difficulties or mental health problems which may be exacerbated by lenthly 

periods of waiting for an answer, on the telephone causing stress, frustration and anxiety.    As for public access to PCs in Gateway, many social 

care clients, and indeed members of the public do not have these at home, nor the inclination or ability to use one.  They are often frail and elderly, 

and unable to travel any distance to access one, and would not know how to anyway. As an employee of the council, I, myself do not find the council 

w ebsite user friendly and often find difficulty getting the information I need, and find that I often find outdated information which raises concern about 

reliability of what a search throws up.   Extending the Capita Contract is deffinately a bad idea for both Council staff and members of the public, 

particularly the social care client group and the elderly. 

But it does not help those who need additional support by face to face contact with a person.  People who have a disability or who are intimidated by 

computers / dont have the skills to use them. 

I work in the Central Library where people without internet access are directed to use our public machines.  The problem is that without a computer, 

many of them do not have IT skills to use the computers without a lot of staff help which we do not have now.  It would be good if the city promoted 

IT skills in a big way.  The learning centre in the Library does some courses for job seekers but more is needed. 

Leaflets and brochures (especially gides to better care and support and residential care guide) are not ordered, or only provided in very limited 

numbers, this makes it difficult to give information to clients who do not have access to the internet. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 1 - Not everyone will have access to their own PC or smartphone. Public access PCs will be available in Gateway and 

libraries. A phone service through an automated switchboard will also be available. Do you feel providing these facilities meets the 

needs of people without access to the internet? Any comments?

Page 17 

Because some people don't have internet for a reason, they don't want it! Some do not wish to travel or can't without support or assistance 

especially the elderly & it won't help people who do not speak or read English. 

more free wireless internet access across the city would be good (in tower blocks and sheltered housing schemes 

Not everyone can get gateway and my understanding is that they are not prepared to help people when they do, other than point to the nearest pc. 

Not everyone is comfortable using a computer you know! Phone service? oh come on! 

an automated phone service is always frustrating to use and hard to get ones head round if you are old or disabled, personally I struggle with them 

even though I am fit, technology literate and in my prime... 

This will have specific implications for disabled/blind etc. No access to online facilities and/or 'phone conact costing/taking more time. 

Does this work successfully in other councils? 

Gateway access via PC will be limited to those who can use the machines. The crush in Gateway always puts me off, will there be enough 

machines? Phone service - will there be dozens of alternatives following press 1 for.. etc? 

Still difficulties with people who have certain disabilities. 

Will enough public access PCs be available? 

Phone services tend to be 0845 or other premium rate numbers. Those who are unable to access on-line are often the poorest in society who 

cannot afford this type of phone service. These phone services also then often have a list of options and you never speak to anyone. There are very 

few pcs available in Libraries and most libraries have just experienced a cut in hours. If you have to come into Gateway to use a pc it will be easier 

to speak to some-one and more cost effective. PC and/or phone only often lead to second or thirds requests to get it right, when one meeting gives 

you the opportunity to ask and answer questions and get it right first time. 

Too many libraries are no longer open as much as they used to be, if at all 

Some people will need face to face contact and they will not have straightforward matters that can easily be resolved. 

dont you feel that removing the human element in such a draconian way will endanger us to become an insular society. how will people with mental 

health issues cope if the online system isnt in a logical format that they might require. I consider myself of average intelligence and I find this 

compulsive need to replace people with machines extremely worrying. as for increasing Capita's contract, do you happen to know what they are 

known as? Bring on the profits!!! 

a) there are not enough  public access PCs in public libraries b) the regrettable cut in library opening hours  means a corresponding  difficulty in 

accessing these PCs c) what about those residents who do not have easy access to a library, through physical difficulties, lack of public transport 

etc? d) what about those who are unable for various reasons to  use the internet etc? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 2 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use an online service including: people with visual 

impairments; people with learning difficulties; some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the phone service or can make 

an appointment to see someone face-to-face in Gateway. Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? Are there other groups of 

people who may have difficulty with online access? Comments?

Page 18 

Elderly people and those with learning difficulties are not going to want to sift through a multitude of options on the automated phone service.  How 

that system is setup is key to whether it's adequate. 

Anybody who wants to talk to a human being. 

contary to belive there are a lot of people in the city that does not have internet conection.  tis is not just a young persons City. 

There are still many people who are not able/comfortable with using computers. Also people usually prefer seeing someone face-to-face, soo the 

appointment system is likely to be subject to high-demand. 

face to face contact must be maintained 

People who have to provide support to relatives will need to be able to drop into gateway to access services with the relative to provide assistance 

 As long as it does not take in excess of 2 Mins to get an answer to a telephone call which is not uncommon at present.Having to wiat in excess of 3 

mins is also not unheard of. 

There are a considerable number of people out there that will not do things online as they dont want to or dont trust computers, fraud and the like 

and I have to say that I know at least 4 people in their 20s & 30s who refuse to use computers and self service anything 

These 'customers' pay the wages of all the employees of the City Council and of Capita - is it too much to ask that a 'customer' speak to a real 

person and not have to run the gauntlet of automated services. 

Peoople who prefer to speak to a person 

Difficult for those who have English as a second language, or those who do not have someone to assist them make an appointment or who cannot 

physically come into Gateway 

Person report things online, but still phone to check it has been received. So repeat contact 

 People without experience in IT/computer skills. Could also be confusing for people for whom English is not their first language. 

A number of these people will probably also have difficulty in working out which 'option' to select when using the automated phone system. As for 

face-to-face appointments, how long will people have to wait? How many appointments will be available, will there be evening and weekend 

appointments to suit everyone? 

Some people who are physically disabled, whose impairment prevents them from using a PC. 

Anyone who is long-term sick or disabled may have difficulty accessing online services. Our clients have mental health problems - many cannot 

afford broadband and are unable to use libraries or other public spaces due to anxiety and other issues. Furthermore it is not just the groups 

described above who may have difficulty learning to use the internet - again many of our clients struggle with basic tasks due to poor memory and 

concentration caused by their mental health conditions. 

People without access or skills in IT 

Adults with mental health problems and substance misuse problems, of which there area large number in the city. 

People with poor literacy, people with poor IT skills and people with disabilities affecting memory will struggle with online services.  Many people who 

do not regularly use the Internet may need some hand holding the first couple of times - need to ensure this help is easily availiable.  The phone can 

cause problems for people with learning difficulties - both mild and severe, and people with poor memory problems.  People tend to say 'I think I said 

that on the phone and I'm not sure if that was right', or 'I can't remember what I said', and become concerned/ confused about what was said/ 

agreed.  A drop in service face-to-face service should still be availiable, as many people will travel over especially, costing money. 

Vulnerable people who have problems around drugs / alcohol addictions etc 

Many clients i deal with who either have poor use of English language, mental health issues or poor confidence/ intellectual ability need help to even 

access any phone service with too many options and also need help to access appointments system 

Many people prefer talking to a human being rather than a machine! 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 2 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use an online service including: people with visual 

impairments; people with learning difficulties; some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the phone service or can make 

an appointment to see someone face-to-face in Gateway. Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? Are there other groups of 

people who may have difficulty with online access? Comments?

Page 19 

People that cannot afford PC's 

The cost of access at home is beyond many households budgets and an increasing number of people are on low incomes  Those who do have 

access via mobile phone often dont have a printer so cant fill in and check forms prepare for meetings , take part in consultation etc.   Access online 

via libraries is more difficult  as libraries close  branches and reduce opening hours Demand for services when libraries are open is increasing as 

benefits have to be claimed on line and students need places to study  A significant number of people who need to contact the council do not have 

the literacy and technical skills to go on line.  Phone services are expensive from Mobiles  The council's switchboard is in my own experience slow 

and poor at connecting you to the correct  section or individual  I think people should be seen closer to where they live  I suspect that many people 

will ,like me , have made an appointment at Gateway  and find that  the information isnt available  so  the journey needs to be repeated .  the 

proposed changes discriminate not just against those in your list  above but against people on low incomes , 

the most effectvie communications mechanism for difficult/complex or unpaletable messages is often face to face 

Those over 65 who are the ones who mostly need the services often without computer facilities. 

people whose first language is not english. also a lot of people still have poor I.T skills which may make it difficult for them to know 'how to' even if 

they know where. 

Only if there is a one stop option to talk to an operative. 

Those who are not IT literate or do not have access to online facilities. 

Adults with poor literacy numeracy 

English as a second language speakers might find it difficult too 

People for whom english is not their first language and others will limited reading and writing skills. 

People with poor English or learning difficulties may struggle with a telephone service. An appointment-only service still requires them to use a PC or 

telephone to make the appointment in the first place! 

Some people who suffer with mental health problems.

Deaf people as they do not always understand English as it is not there first language 

I am not a member of this group 

Physically getting to a terminal if you are at work all day or even on shift work. 

People who do not have access to the net either at home or through a public access venue, and there will be some people who do not have a 

telephone but not many but a few. 

People with learning difficulties 

Foreigners, people without technology skills 

Online services can be designed with people with visual impairments in mind 

There are people who cannot afford to have internet access/buy a pc/smartphone 

the homeless, victims of domestic violence 

There will be some instances where an elderly person may struggle to get their request across so home visits may be required to fully understand 

the requirements for a council-requested job. 

This coiuld work if there were enough people to assist but I doubt if there would be. This would mean that the most vulnerable people would be left 

waiting and confused 

people whose disability causes problems with using their hands eg. severe arthritis, parkinsons disease 

some disabled people with limited had mobility, 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 2 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use an online service including: people with visual 

impairments; people with learning difficulties; some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the phone service or can make 

an appointment to see someone face-to-face in Gateway. Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? Are there other groups of 

people who may have difficulty with online access? Comments?

Page 20 

My cousin is over 90 years old and his wife 87years old. They still pay their community payment in cash at he Gateway each month. It will confuse 

them if this method is changed. 

Whilst online access to some services is welcomed for those who can or want to use it, it is not ideal for everyone and any situation. Anyone who is 

either not familiar with computers (whatever age) or not trusting them especially with sensitive information. Some people actually want to deal with a 

human rather than an automated service. You can't always get an answer from a computer. Making an appointment is also not ideal for everyone. 

Losing the ability to pop in when convenient would in my opinion be a big loss. People with for example mental health issues may not be able to 

judge in advance when they could make it down for an appointment. 

If you can't use the online or phone service how will you make an appointment to see somebody?  Attending the Gateway to make an appointment 

and then having to return another day is not acceptable.  What help, if any, will be available to people who visit libraries to access online services?  

Will housing offices be able to help?  Will Gateway staff have regular surgeries at libraries rather than sitting in their ivory tower? 

If the phone service is easy to use yes, but invariably it will be press 1 then 6 then 5 then 4 with questions that do not fit purpose for the vulnerable. 

Some people with physical difficulites 

The over 50 years of age have no PC skills and do not want to use this type of system 

Some people just do not want to use the internet as they are scared of change and may need extra education in its use. 

there will always be people who are uncomfortable with computers, not able to afford a computer or would just rather deal direct with a real person. 

there are many disabilities where people would find this difficult not just visual impairments and learning difficulties 

Arthritic and similar conditions. 

the young unemployed and other disadvantaged groups who are being more and more alienated by political dogma and bureaucratic B.S. 

many elderly can not use online methods 

Gateway is already a total shambles with exdisting Staff-long delays inevitable.Reduce or eliminate Staff and the service must deteriorate even 

further 

Our most vulnerable should not have to make an appointment 

People where english is not their first language. People with complex / detailed needs or requests especially in housing / homelessness situations 

Complainants may wish to speak to someone f2f 

Some groups of disabled people - any with problems affecting fingers/hands will also have problems as they can't always eaisly use keyboards or 

phones. 

Those with no literacy skills - through my experience some people still cannot read People who do not speak/read English (their primary language 

isn't English) 

There seems to be a big assumption that the  younger generation are computer literate or intelligent enough to use on-line. Having worked in 

schools this is not accurate.  This statement also applies to any person of any age, not necessarily whether elderly etc, that some people do not use 

computers at all.  This is a personal choice. 

Vulnerable Children and clients who can't read or write or speak English. 

People need people!!!! Online forms and contact are not helpful to many, face to face is important.  Phone services are poor for people with hearing 

disabilities and even making an appointment to see someone face-to-face sounds as if it would be made on the phone or online.  MANY do not have 

easy computer access or knowledge. 

you say if they ring it will take longer to actually get through to a person or the right department! how frustrating is that? Not acceptable and not a 

service. 

Homeless 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 2 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use an online service including: people with visual 

impairments; people with learning difficulties; some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the phone service or can make 

an appointment to see someone face-to-face in Gateway. Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? Are there other groups of 

people who may have difficulty with online access? Comments?

Page 21 

Any person who is not IT literate will have a problem.  It is not always older people or people with learning difficulties. 

Speakers of languages other than English. This is likely to affect a high percentage of middle-aged women from Muslim families. 

Making an appointment to meet someone is preferable. People with Metal Health problems may have difficulties accessing a phone service but may 

also forget appointment times. They often do things spontaniously. Many peole do not have a landline therefore how much will the phone call cost 

from a mobile phone? Will this be too expensive for those on a low income How will peole whose first language is not English cope?  What system 

will be in plce for those who are deaf and do not have a computer 

Prople with no knowledge of computer technology??, how easy will it be to book an appointment? 

some elderly people and some people with learning difficulties will not be comfortable using an automated phone service, they need to be able to get 

through to a real person with a minimum number of selection options 

different languages 

Why always the need to make an appointment? 

Will depend on quality and speed of phone service 

Illiterate people and those with English as a foreign language 

Please keep the human interface. 

Nearly everyone needs to be able to have face to face contact just to ask simple questions and be pointed in the right direction. Even if you have to 

wait a while at the moment you know hoh will see some one that day to explian things. The fact you can call to make an appointment will only add to 

worry time and stress levels. Too manh organisations have gone this route and it means nothing but trouble. 

There are still many people who are unable to navigate through the internet who do not have learning difficulties but not high achievers at school.  

There are still many adults who are unable to read properly, how are they going to manage? 

People with English as a second language 

People for whom English is not their first language may find contact more difficult. If those with other difficulties are faced with more menu options 

and / or a longer wait for contact, they may give up or put more pressure on other agencies, such as Social Services, to help them. 

People who are computer illiterate 

People form other ethnic backgrounds how's first language is not english. 

Providing there are enough staff to cover the appointments on daily basis and a appointment can be made within a number of hours as opposed to 

days. 

A phone service in its current form would not meet the requirements of the above because of the long delay in getting a reply and the apparent  lack 

of understanding/experience of some of the operatives as decribed previously.    This could be very frustrating and stressful for people with 

psychological and mental health problems (not covered in the list above, who often see this as an obstacal to getting to where they want to be. I 

myself have had incident where people have complained to me about the inept abilities of the Contact Centre.   As I said previously, for people with 

severe physical disability or for those who are very frail, even getting out of the house is a callenge, let alone making their way in to the city centre to 

access the free pc or face to face contact. 

See previous rant. 

People with medical conditions or mental health problems. Because listening to the annoying automated messages again and again will give you 

mental health issues if you don't already have them. What about people with speech impairments who cannot talk propley over the phone & cannot 

travel without assistance? How long will they have to wait to resolve a problem. 

Sit for hours trying to phone a real person. People will just love that. Nothing like press 1 then 2 then 3 then 4.... getting the picture? 

people with hearing impairments 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 2 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use an online service including: people with visual 

impairments; people with learning difficulties; some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the phone service or can make 

an appointment to see someone face-to-face in Gateway. Do you feel this approach would meet their needs? Are there other groups of 

people who may have difficulty with online access? Comments?

Page 22 

People who are not used to using computers - because they do not have them at home, nor internet access. So although terminals are to be 

provided, these people will feel at a disadvantage, and may avoid coming for advice because they don't want to stand out. This is not silly, but a 

common human reaction when people feel they lack skills they are expected to have. 

Previous comment refers 

Staff without PC access.  Even if PC made available, additional lost time incurred by managers helping them to complete forms 

People with limited means. To get into town requires bus fare to phone requires money. Often multiple visits are required. Cant facilities be made 

available more locally. Also there are many people in the City who do not fall into these groups and are not conversant with technology and they will 

be the ones who require the service. people who work in offices and use computers all the time will be fine. 

See previous answer and some people dislike the 'coldness' of computer access, preferring to speak to a pleasant human being who can 

understand subtlety in the way a pedantic computer cannot. 

Mental health. Promoting good mental health means COMMUNICATION. 

The call staff will need to be very helpful to these people as it is sometimes extremely confusing, even for us being sent through a series of 

alternative. Sometimes I have even been returned to the start. Other information relayed whilst waiting can only add to this confusion. 

Please see previous answer. Your own stats show that only 70% of the population of Southampton interact on-line with you. As Southampton has 

high levels of poverty, a majority of people will not be able to afford a pc, printer and the telephone connections. This will put additional pressure on 

the inevitable reduced staffing in Gateway. People will give up. 

There are those who choose not to use the internet following bad experiences (such as our less than reliable online payments system) and bad 

press. Not all issues are related to Revs and Bens!

Homeless Non English reading 

people with low literacy levels / people who have trouble reading and comprehending written information 

As before, for those with more complex problems a face to face contact is better 

Most people prefer to be dealt with by a person. Go into Asda at any given time and the only ones using the self service check outs are students and 

people in a rush. I ring the call centre regularly to get through to my local library and it is so frustrating as I have to go through the whole gammat of 

questions before they finally agree that I need to be put through. as for making an appointment to see someone at Gateway, is this going to end up 

like a Gps where you have to wait 2 weeks to get an appt yet only have 1  days in which to pay the council tax bill!!!! 

homeless, less organised and disengaged people who tend only to use drop in services.  Illiterate people.   In other words, people with serious 

needs. 

What about those with mobility difficulties? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 4 and 5 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use the automated phone switchboard 

including: people with hearing impairments; people with learning difficulties; people who have difficulty understanding spoken English; 

some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the online service if they are able to do so, or can make an appointment at 

Gateway to see someone face-to-face (with an interpreter if necessary).  Do you feel this approach would meet their needs?  Are there 

other groups of people who may have difficulty with an automated phone service? Any comments?

Page 23 

Anybody who suffers from even a mild form of stress disorder.  Automated switchboards are great for everybody except the users. 

Please do not automatically assume people with disabilities are unable to use technology - many if not most are more than capable.  Add translation 

features to the website 

If you have say arthritis, and are unable to mobilise outside they are unable to get to Gateway.  Also if we are asking them to try to do this will there 

be someone there that is able to answer any of there concerns wether it be for housing, care needs, benefits ECT.  If it is felt they can then be sign 

posted and have cronic depression or Dementia they will not be able to  follow the advice 

Members of the public and professional customers often find automated phone systems very frustrating-especially if they are ringing with complaints 

or concerns. 

automated phone services do not meet anyone's needs and the vast majority of people dislike them intently and have nothing but trouble from them. 

In fact I believe many companies are moving away from them and using this fact as a positive maketing excercise to attract more customers. You 

have not mentioned above people on limited incomes who make up the vast majority of Gateway Customers, once the phone is answered by the 

machine the charges start to rack up, by the time you've pressed 1 for this and 2 for that you are then held in a queue and could be on the phone for 

30 minutes before you speak to a human. Are you going to make these calls free from landlines and mobiles? If not this idea should be dismissed 

out of hand! 

Automated phone services are slow, clumsy and increase customer frustration. A menu system that is complex or has two many choices makes 

service worse instead of better 

Blind etc 

Anyone that has had a brain injury as they wont necessarily be able to compute whats being asked of them. Will Automated phone services allow for 

a carer to help? 

Anyone already irritated by the endless options, repeated (usually inappropriate) automated messages which seem to have replaced human contact 

and actual service 

Costly if too long on automated service, 

Persons get fed up with press this option for this and this for that. It will be as bad as ringing the bank 

See my previous comments 

People who are unable to use online services and also unable to use the phone system, for example an elderly person with a hearing impairment.  

Will they still be able to walk into Gateway and be seen? 

It depends on how easy the phone system elderly people find it confusing now!! 

As previously, our clients with mental health needs may struggle with an automated service. Extended menu options can be confusing particularly 

for those with concentration and memory problems. Furthermore there is the issue of increased phone bills due to having to go through multiple 

menus. 

Very elderly people with vision impairments who simply can't react quickly enough to automated instructions. 

I suspect lots of people will drop in, as if they stuggle with understanding and contacting organisations, in some cases they are unlikely to be able to 

call to arrange an appointment.  Need to ensure there is still a drop in face-to-face service that is well staffed.  People with conditions affecting their 

memory recall will struggle - includes lots of conditions including learning disabilities, dyslexia, people who have had stroke, head injuries, mental 

illness, substance misuse, people on certain medications, Alzheimers/ dementia etc. 

In course of work with people who have debts i come accross many whose lack of confidence / mental issues and lack of experience with 

technology conspire against them using automated systems 

People that only use mobiles as the prices will be expensive 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 4 and 5 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use the automated phone switchboard 

including: people with hearing impairments; people with learning difficulties; people who have difficulty understanding spoken English; 

some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the online service if they are able to do so, or can make an appointment at 

Gateway to see someone face-to-face (with an interpreter if necessary).  Do you feel this approach would meet their needs?  Are there 

other groups of people who may have difficulty with an automated phone service? Any comments?

Page 24 

Phone services are expensive from Mobiles  The long list of options costs money and is very confusing and hard for people to remember . Many 

peole do not read or write well  The council's switchboard is in my own experience slow and poor at connecting you to the correct  section or 

individual The automated system is useless for most people 

those with limited understadning of what the right questions are to ask, telling thier own story is not going to be possible through tis system? 

As before 

there are a lot of people who lack the confidence to contact official departments by phone - not knowing what to say or who to ask for. these people 

are often represented by support agencies who may not always have the time to deal with urgent issues.

Success will be dependent on how obstructive we are to facilitate face to face appointments. (If we are measuring success in terms of customer 

satisfaction). 

They still need to use a phone or PC to make an appointment. If it is a simple problem it can waste advisers' time reserving a whole appointment slot 

for something that can be dealt with in a few minutes. People may not think it worth making an appointment until the problem has got out of control 

and has become more complex to resolve. 

If you feel excluded, you don't ask. It is far too humiliating. What you are doing is reducing the level of service so that only those who can cope with 

it, use it and then you can say how the numbner of queries has gone down. What will the cost be of the automated service? Experience has shown 

that you spend a significant amount of time holding on for a reply and it is always on a premium rate.

Depends on how quick it is to get through and the cost of the call. 

Disabled people who probably have a special phone service which will be incompatible with yours. 

There are text comm facilities for hearing impaired people 

If an elderly person has difficulty using an automated phone, it is likely that they will also have difficulty accessing transport to get into 

town/arranging an appointment 

the homeless 

Again would there be sufficient staff to meet the needs of vulnerable people 

Automated switchboards are very impersonal and can be confusing with too many options and levels. If it was limited to 2 levels with not too many 

options this would be more manageable. 

My 90 year cousin can't use the phone very well. So how will he cope? 

Anyone who actually wants to speak to someone when they ring. An extended automated service is all very well for those that want to use the 

service but for people who purely want to speak to someone it is a great irritation to have to navigate through numerous options before getting the 

opportunity to speak to someone. It may prove too stressful for those that already find phone calls difficult. A simple option at the beginning of the 

call for either self service or a human would be preferred. 

Having to attend the Gateway to make an appointment is not acceptable if you cannot use the phone or online services.  Help should be available at 

any council office including schools anywhere in the community for these people to be helped to make appointments and Gateway staff should 

venture out to regular surgeries. 

Even educated and IT savvy people like me regularly get confused by the variety of options and the continual messages that just add time plus more 

confusion. 

Over 50's do not want a prompt press No 5 for whatever service you require then press No 6 for..........what/who ever ( Answer the phone with a real 

person! 

As I said in my previous comment automated phone services are disliked by almost everyone and they would much rather speak to an operator.This 

proposal has no positive points so must just be a cost cutting  excercise 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 4 and 5 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use the automated phone switchboard 

including: people with hearing impairments; people with learning difficulties; people who have difficulty understanding spoken English; 

some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the online service if they are able to do so, or can make an appointment at 

Gateway to see someone face-to-face (with an interpreter if necessary).  Do you feel this approach would meet their needs?  Are there 

other groups of people who may have difficulty with an automated phone service? Any comments?

Page 25 

People want personal contact at the first point of contact 

said it yourself, deaf or hard of hearing people 

people are already fed up with the endless list of possibilities when they try to phone 

In all these cases you have already said in your proposals that it will take longer to answer people's queries when they phone. There are bound to 

be situtations that do not fit neatly into the boxes "on line" and they too will be inconvenienced 

People who cannot afford to pay to phone a computer

people with mental health issues 

Arithic and similar conditions. 

The general public who are increasingly feed up with automated phone lines. press 1 for this, 2 for that, 3 for something else. what is wrong with 

talking to a person straight off. 

some people will not use new technology as they are frightened of it 

our most vulnerable should not have to make an appointment 

As above; those with physical disabilities preventing them from doing so. 

How will those who become or are homeless access services? 

Same as before - automated responses do not allow for questions to be asked - unless they fall in the categories provided.  Its also extremely time 

wasting, having spent time myself trying to get through to a government dept with automated response. 

Its so frustrating listening to automated machine, it takes 5 minutes to listen to automated services. It might be easier for us, However elderly clients 

do not have patience to listen and stand for that long. 

Calls cost money and to have to wait and go through the long process these automated systems put you through cost the already vulnerable and 

poor. 

People without phones or ability to pay for a phone call 

Visiting Gateway to make an appointmen and then returning for the appointment could be quite expensive in terms of bus fare. 

how will they make the appointment to see someone face-to-face, and what if they are unable to get there? 

community support might be needed for less mobile 

encourage those who live in this country to learn or have access to speak our language 

Will depend on ease of getting a convenient Gateway appointment.  People with speech problems have difficulty in responding to automated phone 

systems, e.g. I have had my voice box removed and speak through a voice prosthesis 

We need to keep the option of a human interface as the First Priority. The websites are very good but should not supercede an active and prompt 

"first port of call" managed by real people! 

It depends on the system, many automated systems take ages to get through, you keep having to press option x, and then get further choices.  This 

costs money unless it is a freephone number which is being provided. 

Many people find automated phone services difficult to navigate due to the number of unclear options that need to be chosen 

People with visual impairments and how will they be able to make an appointment. Some poeple will get frustrated if they turn up and are told that 

they can't be seen until they make an apointment 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 4 and 5 - There will be people who will have difficulty using or are unable to use the automated phone switchboard 

including: people with hearing impairments; people with learning difficulties; people who have difficulty understanding spoken English; 

some elderly people. These people will still be able to use the online service if they are able to do so, or can make an appointment at 

Gateway to see someone face-to-face (with an interpreter if necessary).  Do you feel this approach would meet their needs?  Are there 

other groups of people who may have difficulty with an automated phone service? Any comments?

Page 26 

Same comments as before.  Staff at Gateway would have to be very patient, trained to a high level and be able to spend sometimes a considerable 

time in order to understand and correctly deal with caller.    People with psychological or mental health problems might find an automated phone 

service challenging and frustrating. 

People will feel very lost and will miss the personal approach. For libraries it is a social opportunity for some. 

How will they be able to make an appointment to meet someone face to face in gateway if they are unable to use the automated phone service. 

Yes people with mental health, they do exsist! 

Automated ... meet needs. You really have no idea do you? Can you make an appointment without an automated service? Can you? 

anyone who is not an auditory kind of person and finds it hard to process information delivered to them acoustically, that does not have to be a 

disabled person, in the normal course of events not everybody can relate to this method of communicating 

I am a member of my GP practice consultation group, and one of the main complaints the surgery gets is against the automated phone service, 

especially from older clients. 

Not everyone can get to Gateway. I have hearing issues and have difficulty in dealing with automated services. It cost a lot more to, because i have 

to keep going back to understand what options are available. 

I assume this does not apply to staff wishing to contact Capita. 

Maybe see previous answer. I personally dislike Gateway with the queuing and crush 

Everyone in the whole universe HATES automated phone services, FACT. Don't become like everyone else and lose your customers voice, and 

staff for that matter. 

some people with mental heaklth issues find it very difficult to communicate using the phone and may not have access to internet facilities at home. 

Still a lot of people with poor IT skills in community. 

Telephone operators will need to be extremely helpful especially for these groups of people. Trawling through alternatives can become very 

frustrating and confusing. At times I have been returned to the start without any reason. Also information relayed whilst waiting can be frustrating 

any, at times irritating. It must also be remembered that prolonged telephone calls cost money and time. 

If you can't use the phone, how do you make an appointment. As the service provider's aim is to reduce costs, there will be an automated service in 

order to amke an appointment with the aim being to deter appointments. It will be a humiliating process. Automated phone services are expensive 

and those who are on low incomes whether through work or benefits will be unable to affird the service. 

An automated phone service is reknown for putting callers off making contact this way, which means we loose a payment opportunity. 

Again making an appointment for help??!! please, that is just unbelievable service. 

Less confident people. People whose names are not recognised by some systems.   People who cannot make appointments.Not everyone has a 

phone. 

See previous comment re those with mobility problems 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 6 - Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals (with 

assistance from Gateway staff as needed). However some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not be appropriate that 

they wait for an appointment. Gateway staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and an immediate interview will be 

available in these exceptional cases. Can you see any difficulties with this approach? Any comments?

Page 27 

The public will not like being turned away by staff; they'll end up quickly feeling devalued by the council. (I've never had need to use Gateway, 

personally) 

lONGER WAITING TIMES AND POORER CUSTOMER SERVICE 

what happens to the people that are house bound will Capita have a service to go out and visit to find out what the person needs. 

There is an expectation that people can drop-in and have their queries dealt with off-spec and so this change would need to be carefully 

communicated. Also, the self-serve terminals would need proper staff support to assist people with any technology issues. It is also important to 

note, that system failures can really undermine the service. Overall, I think this creates an inpersonal and unfriendly impression of the Council. 

An appointment based system is good in theory but people that drop in need to be seen also and will not take kindly to people jumping the queue - it 

will give the appearance of Gateway pandering to the people that shout the loudest getting the service - this should not be the way a professional 

organisation such as the council should run 

The aim of the changes are to reduce SCC costs, however the number of staff required to service gateway will remain the same for a considerable 

time or as part of a proving period to see if the solution works. 

Capita use a lot of staff with limited knowledge and experience. While the theory is good the staff are routinly not up to the job. 

exceptional cases?? just because a member of staff has been trained doesnt mean that they necessarily understand whats exceptional to any given 

customer - judging on this is going to be incredibly difficult and deemed as unfair to others waiting.

Your 'customers' deserve the right to speak to your servers and have their queries answered without having to book an appointment or to use the 

hugely impersonal online facillity. For a 'people' organisation the face to face contact should be paramount. 

This feels like a 'you don't really matter to us strategy' maximum inconvenience to the public 

As long as there are enough staff to help the Customers as they will not want to have to wait to use the computers or wait. 

Would need more staff at busy times of the day, and consequently more appointments should be available. Some people will not want to admit that 

they cannot use self service terminals. 

Not the amount of staff on hand as there is now and persons escalating what there issue is to be seen sooner 

It could be difficult to distinguish which cases are seen as needing immediate attention - individuals may have travelled in especially and feel their 

need is urgent only to be turned away. While many things are straightforward cand could be done through self service, it is all the more complex 

individual issues that will present a problem. 

Spotting people in desperate need of assistance may not actually be that easy. Sometimes those people most in need make the least fuss. Also 

offering help with self-service terminals could take up a lot of staff member time, you only need to take a look at self-service tills in supermarkets! 

will there be enough staff to cope with this? because i can imagine a lot of people will want to spaek to someone personally 

In my experience Gateway staff do not have a good track record for recognising those in distress or those who need immediate attention, and 

indeed I have had to complain to Gateway formally about treatment of clients with mental health issues and serious housing problems in the past. I 

would not be confident that staff would recognise these situations nor deal with them appropriately. 

I think this will encourage people to make a scene in order to be seen quickly which will only result in irritating people who initially were prepared to 

wait. 

The staff would have to be well trained to decide where an immediate appointment is required as many people's opionions will be different. 

The biggest concern, in my experience, is the potential loss of the drop-in service.  My concerns would be:  1) that staff will not be good at 

recognising who does/ does not need to use this service - for example we worked with a lady with severe dyslexia who looked perfectly normal but 

this caused significant memory recall difficulties as well as poor literacy.  This individual would need instant support (would not recall appointment 

time otherwise), but could well be missed. I am concerned about how staff will decide who needs help and how they will be able to pick up on people 

with vulnerabilities, which are often hidden.  2) I suspect, from our experience, that these cases will not be exceptional and I am concerned that good 

staffing levels will not be in place to meet this demand.  Not having sufficient staffing will likely lead to a number of problems, including:  a) people 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 6 - Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals (with 

assistance from Gateway staff as needed). However some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not be appropriate that 

they wait for an appointment. Gateway staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and an immediate interview will be 

available in these exceptional cases. Can you see any difficulties with this approach? Any comments?

Page 28 

not paying their bills on time etc - concerned that action will be taken  against them or that the council will not get the revenue in it expects  b) stress 

caused to residents, especially vulnerable residents 

Many people feel they need to be seen and heard immediately, so could cause some disagreements IF staff are not available as you state they will 

be 

The disadvantaged groups mentioned already will be unable to use self service terminals. If the 'meet and greet person is able to give people time to 

explain their problem and always offers face to face option if CLIET sees it as urgent. Asking to come back for appointment will incurr another lot of 

bus fare - very unfair to many on low income 

A perception may be created whereby you can simply turn up - possibly compain and be seen immediately. This could encourage others not to 

bother with the appointments system 

self service terminals need people to staff them . When I have been in gateway people have been struggling to access information  and even when 

an agency has accompanied someone they still find it difficult  Training staff to recognise vulnerable people is unlikely to be successful .Check the 

work done by secret shoppers many years ago.  via choices advocacy  . 

Computers do not explain people do. 

customer understanding.unfortunately people do not always appreciate the needs of others may be greater than their own. some people could 

constrew this approach as queue jumping and could potentially lead to difficult to manage situations for staff and possibility of a danger to the public 

Managing the volume of enquiries if only a small staff team available. Managing the expectations of the general public who may want to speak to 

someone in person. 

I do not believe that this ad hock approach - to "recognise" the need is good enough. People find it dificult to resolve the issues now; the mistakes 

are made all the time.... 

Possible lack of staff 

See answers to the previous questions. Anything that discourages people from sorting out simple problems straight away leads to them becoming 

large, complex problems that are more difficult to resolve. 

The ticket system at the moment seems to work well.

For deaf people they will need to speak with someone who signs or need an interpreter present straight away 

Stand by the self service checkouts in supermarkets and note how often staff are needed to sort out problems & how many self service checkouts 

there are in relation to staffed tills. This is simple scanning of barcodes. Dealing with a myriad of human issues is far more complex. 

Everyone should be entitled to a face to face adviser. It is what we pay our Council Tax for. 

Not having enough trained staff available to deal with people coming in that need an immediate interview. 

Some people have trouble with travel arrangements 

Not always obvious who needs help and who doesn't. Also unless staff member is trained and supported by management and on a permanent 

contract they won't stay long. 

how will the queuing system work 

Although I agree with the idea in principal, the council should make clear in which incidences immediate interviews will be required visually and to 

take a strong stance with people who abuse the situation. 

As long as staff are well trained to recognise this need 

What about original documents (that may be valuable/sensitive)that need to be copied that people don't want to leave in a post box? Parking permits 

etc, will you need to make an appointment for things like that? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 6 - Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals (with 

assistance from Gateway staff as needed). However some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not be appropriate that 

they wait for an appointment. Gateway staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and an immediate interview will be 

available in these exceptional cases. Can you see any difficulties with this approach? Any comments?

Page 29 

Who defines what 'exceptional cases' are and what appeal process will there be?  The danger is that those who make a scene will be given an 

immediate appointment while those in real need will just walk away. 

I hope the training offered is much better than presently given ! 

With public transport access so poor it will be very difficult for people to commit to a set appointment without wasting a lot of time. 

I think people with problems generally need a personal contact.Life is far too `automated' as it is. 

People are worried about feeding info into a Terminal.....The over 50's 

As long as there enough staff on duty to see people straight away and still keep to appointment times.

A drop in service is always more accessible and approachable. Maybe s blend of appointments only and drop in availability at different times. 

You are providers of a public service and you should aim to provide as much public contact 'on demand' as possible. The only appointment I have 

made was with a person who freely admitted she was not a person who could answer the questions outlined prior to the appointment. 

staff are never trained well enough to deal with difficult situations 

Why can staff just not answer the query? 

Again some people will find this embarrassing and difficult, even using self service terminals is difficult for a lot of people 

Not enough staff and to many people at once.Should this happen. 

yes technology in all its guises is notorious for not working when required. so much so that you would have to employ a person to stand by it to 

assist. why not just employ the two people and save the cost of the technology. 

not all staff are tolerant f elderly people and can be quite rude to them 

Requires the provision of committed,interested and efficient Staff-Can this be provided from the existing base? 

if a member of the public has an emergency situation then this should also be dealt with 

Sometimes people may not present clear or overt signs that their need is urgent or immediate or know that the system allows them to jump the 

queue.  Also once people realise this will some people try to use the system to jump the queue? How will staff be checking for signs or is there a 

triage system in place? 

Obviously some people will feel that others are getting preferential treatment. The Gateway staff will need to be trained to deal with those customers. 

Having the correct number of staff to deal with with this system will be challenging.  Will the Gateway be centrally based, if it is an appointment 

system could not the appointments be more local for residents in alterative venues eg libraries 

it may be astruggle toget her for some residents, and may be difficult toget back again without assistance. elderly people in particular will have 

difficulties 

This will only work if there is enough staff available 

You can only ever see the obvious people but there are many people who will become quietly distressed by this and will cause anxiety and illness 

and they will then possibly ignore bills as they are too frightened of the system. 

Not everyone can travel which means we are saving money, vulnerable clients will have to pay for transport. 

Disabilities are not always obvious.  Sufferers of conditions such as M.E. have difficulty waiting and certainly with standing, but often don't use aids.  

How is one to 'recognise' this? This is only one example. 

Will there be enough staff to help those using the automated systems? 

Depends on level of training provided which should include dealing with people with learning difficulties or early dementia 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 6 - Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals (with 

assistance from Gateway staff as needed). However some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not be appropriate that 

they wait for an appointment. Gateway staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and an immediate interview will be 

available in these exceptional cases. Can you see any difficulties with this approach? Any comments?

Page 30 

There may be a higher proportion than expected on some occasions. It is difficult to see how Gateway staff wll be able to manage high demand and 

I am afraid that the criteria may be altered when this is the case. 

I would like to be optimistic and hope that anyone who needs an immediate appointment will get one, but my concern is the training staff will get to 

recognise those in need and identify those who may not be included i the categories they have been trained in. Not everyone fits into a neat box 

This may cause resentment with people who are queuing.. 

This sounds like a move to quite a faceless and unapproachable organisation.  A lot of queries may be resolved quickly by technology.  Why does 

someone who simply wants to discuss something face to face have to be viewed as an exception? 

Need to be very well trained 

I feel people would still prefer direct contact  whatever the issue. 

every case is different and i find it hard to believe there will be enough staff to meet this need. I believe you want to save money. 

Border line cases will be diffivclt to decide on without casusing upset to some 

Treat people as valued customers and see them in person in a minimum time frame. 

I am not sure it's always easy to spot those who need help, but time and experience will help 

As long as there are sufficient resources to manage this. 

Much the same as previous comments 

There will be a long bedding in time while people get used to the new arrangements and the transient population will need to be supported each 

time. The system is likely to put a lot more pressure on those Gateway staff who remain on the front line. 

It is short-sighted to believe that staff can determine what needs to be dealt with immediately and what does not. What would the criteria to make  

decisions consistent 

some people have problem communicating and may be accepting of being told to book an appointment when the matter could be very urgent 

How are staff trained? 

It will create confussion and also disruption for people who are already stressed in some cases. 

Success will depend on the quality of the training and the staff. 

Having used Gateway myself I found the system confusing, I was given a differently numbered ticket than the number they called out for me (luckily I 

went first thing in the morning and was the only one waiting) staff were rude and obstructive and unhelpful. It was the first time I had used Gateway 

and I hope, based on this experience, I never have to again. If I had any type of difficulty or was aggitated in any way I would not feel confident in 

staff's ability to manage effectively or prioritise. 

What about when there isn't staff available? 

Trained! trained, is customer service? As they now? haaaa! ohh! haaaa! 

Gateway is busy now.  This will only inrease waiting times and frustarate customers further.  Customers usually come in when the problem has got 

really bad so they expect to see someone on the same day not to be told they have to make an appointment for another day. Service will be poorer. 

Not clear what are the signs that the Gateway staff will be trained to recognise. The general 'feel' of this proposal is that it will put people off 

approaching the Council due to shyness or shame. Having someone to talk to immediately, who might then do a sort of 'triage' might be a better way 

of deciding who needs what 

Cannot see any benefit in encouraging people to visit gateway, hjust to go online to make an appoinment, when staff will be available anyway? 

Busy sessions may mean staff do not see the problem

The waiting time at Gateway is already long how will you ensure that it does not rise further? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 6 - Moving to an appointments system in Gateway will encourage drop-in callers to use the self-service terminals (with 

assistance from Gateway staff as needed). However some people will have to be seen immediately and it will not be appropriate that 

they wait for an appointment. Gateway staff will be trained to recognise where this is the case and an immediate interview will be 

available in these exceptional cases. Can you see any difficulties with this approach? Any comments?

Page 31 

I don't see how Gateway staff can recognise this. Last time I was there I joined a long queue to hand in a letter as I was not sure if the drop box was 

appropriate. I waited as explanations of others were listened to and help given (the lady was very good at this)but nevertheless I didn't feel I could 

jump the queue. I handed in a letter destined for Marlands House where the porter refuses to accept it telling me to go to Gateway (and giving me 

further to walk when I was tired and had a hurting leg) 

Why would you want to dissociate from your client base, embrace your public instead of pushing them into isolation. 

A lot will depend on the IT equipment installed in order to be able to assist individuals with their enquiries and how many units are installed. 

The aim of the service provider is to reduce costs. This they already do by ensuring that the Gateway service already does not have enough staff 

and by ensuring that most probationary staff in their call centre never meet the standard to move onto anything above the minimum wage. There will 

be less staff and I have nofaith in the service provider ensuring that staff have the necessary training. 

Gateway staff do not have the scope of knowledge required to handle all queries and there is a continuing risk of inappropriate advice/direction 

being given 

you'll need more staff at the Gateway, it would b nice to have these appointments held more locally instead of making people travel into town 

if the service is very 'short staffed' how will staff be able to manage this? 

I know some people don't keep their appointments and have an expectation that they can just turn up and see someone - there needs to be that 

culture shift really on the part of the public 

Think if I'm sat there with a big problem in my eyes yet a member of your team has said no you need to make an appointment and someone else 

comes in and is deemed as urgent that a lot of ill feeling will persist. Not very well thought of but then again this is the council that closed their 

visitors centre and put in a self service machine in its place!! 

It would depend on how exceptional these cases are.   Speaking to a person makes one feel positive towards a service.   Compulsory  on-line and 

automatic call centres make me and most people I know feel extremely hostile.   If there is waiting time, one pays from the start. 

This system is too reliant upon the ability of one member of staff to spot problems which may not be easily seen by other than trained professionals 

e.g. in mental health 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 32 

Being able to talk to someone face to face. 

Provided your staff are trained to help people who need urgent advice / services and provided you have a range of options, I see no reason why a 

move to online and phone should be a problem.  You may want to look at facilitating community outreach 'surgeries' eg in libraries to widen access 

routes 

There will be people who need face to face advice in thier own homes.  There will be people who need interpretors.  For some people one call or 

visit will not be enough assistance to get things back on the right track with problems they have 

Yes! Continuing to run Gateway to serve the public rather than putting a cheap money saving plan into place that pays lip service to the customers 

but suplies tham with a unsuitable service. 

Use libraries for sharing services  A local library could be used for housing staff, social services staff and for gateway staff. Better use of physical 

council assets, more local service for city residents. 

face to face contact 

Any telephone number that is rang should be a free phone number so if the delays that currently take place continue then the public will not have to 

pay for being kept waiting. 

Face to Face - stop making everything computerised or automated, by the time 'Crapita' finishes their contract people will have forgotten how to 

communicate with each other. 

The Council should be considering not considering the impersonal and socially isolating use of computers and automated, not local, phone systems. 

Real human beings to deal with real human situations.  The recent introduction of the 'green bins' in our area shows that no one, not even IT savvy 

neighbours actually looks at the council webiste- why would they?  Consequemntly large  numbers  contiued to put ot green bags for several weeks 

totally unaware of the new charging service.  Green bags are minor stuff compared to some of the issues dealt with at the Gateway 

Having staff fully trained in all aspects that they are to cover. If mistakes are made in the first contact that a customer has, it can take months to 

remedy which causes grief to the customer. Not to mention the complaints or MP enquiries which may result from the initial error and the extra work 

for the department involved. 

For each service area have at least one customer service contact with a direct phone number, so that if people aren't sure of where to go or have 

more specific questions they can speak to someone. Offer of arranging appointments to come and see people in their own homes or a more local 

venue for those who find travelling in to town difficult. 

Keep Gateway as it is 

Many people still prefer face to face contact.  Although it is more expensive, cutting off access to staff makes the council feel inaccessible.  If the 

council wants to put customers first, as stated in the newly refreshed Council Plan, it needs face to face contact. 

Personal contact has got to be the best way customers can be reassured immediately 

It should be easy to contact the council by letter and simple to find the relevant addresses to write to for the appropriate departments - this is helpful 

for agencies such as ourselves who provide support to users of council services as it can be quicker and simpler than telephoning. There are also 

difficulties with online/automated only access when we are not with a client so there need to be other options such as speaking to a member of staff. 

I think there is a danger in moving towards these type of automated systems, that can in general work quite well, as there are groups of people who 

will simply not be able to have their questions or concerns responded to because they can't manage automated systems, have no Internet access 

and can't afford to have Internet access or because of health issues end up being isolated from their community and from the local authority which 

has a duty to ensure that local people get the services they pay taxes for. 

There always needs to be a back up if people do no want /like using automated services, as long as there is still a facility to speak to a person if 

required it should be ok. 

Drop in and appointment service is vital.  Mobile phone reminders?  Resourcing community organisations to help people complete forms/ provide 

Internet access 

There probably are, I need to think about it! 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 33 

Face to face contact is always better - there is nothing more frustrating when you have an automated phone system and cannot get through to 

anyone re a problem and many people - old people just don't have access to the web - if it is anything like the call centres for example BT or Sky etc 

- it most definitely will not work - you just cannot get through to anybody and there is no way that you can leave a message for them to call you back 

Really still need some form of immediate face to face contact for the vulnerable groups mentioned - eg highly trained triage person to greet personal 

callers at Gateway. Especially as there are now very few advice agencies to assist with online/ automated contact. 

There should always be the option of talking to or meeting with a human rather than dealing with machines. 

Visiting people that cannot leave theirs homes & do not have any family or friends that may help 

making the contact more meaningful first time, giveng the customer the right amount of time to get to understadn thier issue/need and then give the 

right level of information to enable them to act themselves.. Put another way we need to give more time for intitial contacts and balalnce this with 

restricting time for pesisitent enquiries that add nothing to the resolution of an issue for a customer. 

Automated phone services are dire. Cut back overpaid management and combine with other Councils. Front line should be the last to be replaced. 

So many people do not have on line or fancy phones. Think again think customer. 

customers always prefer to deal with people face to face as it is easy to feel 'fobbed off' on the end of a phone.remote contact can be very frustrating 

- you cannot ask a computer questions. there could also likely be a lot of follow up/multiple contacts until customers feel their query has been fully 

dealt with. 1-2-1 appointments will be in demand - perhaps there needs to be additional personal services - LA surgeries for example to make up 

some of the shortfall. 

keeping face to face approach and local housing offices / gate way open full time. 

We know customers like to talk to a person rather than a machine with a script that doesn't extend beyond a limited "drop-down menu" of limited 

options. A reduction in the service we offer to our customers could only be justified if the savings are percieved to be soley advantageous directly to 

SCC rather than just improving the profitability of Capita. 

Explore phone apps. Ensure that the system can deal with all web users. I cant top up my Itchen Bridge account on line as the sytem cannot do this 

from an Apple IMac. The IT system needs to be fit for purpose and allow as many users easy access 

Personal contact is still needed and one of the best 

Staff at libraries, local housing offices (for instance) trained to give some advice 

The range of online services needs to be far larger that at present. For example, the only way I can find out if a person's housing benefit is in 

payment is by telephone, frequently with a long wait. I can send information *to* the council easily, but there is very little information on individual 

cases that can be obtained *from* the council online.  e.g. current rent balance, council tax balance, progress on applications such as school 

admissions, housing repairs or licence applications, place in school admission waiting list and so on.  Look at ways to simplify the language and 

clarify the layout of online services. Deploy staff to train and encourage people to use online services when they arrive at Gateway. Offer structured 

training in using online services at libraries.   But, above all, retain a drop-in advice service for the few people that are not able to cope with online or 

phone services. 

twitter - fast, immediate, personal. Big companies do it all the time now. 

Face to face always works best. The advisers could be placed in local libraries across the cities or local housing offices. 

I'm sure there will be occasions when a face to face contact is required but your proposals appear to cover this. 

No. Having enough staff for face-to-face contact is best. 

I think that there should be someone on hand for immediate consultation without having to make an appointment 

Promote the email address and encourage people to use it. 

not sure 

There MUST always be the option to speak to someone by phone or in person.  Even the most computer literate person sometimes feels that an on-

line system fails to meet their requirements. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 34 

As stated in the alternatives in your introduction, an in house system could be reintroduced - Capita are notorious for giving poor service for money, 

especially when the key priority of the customer is to obtain a reduction in charges/cost as seems to be the case here, rather than providing good 

service 

I feel that there must always be a member of staff available on the phone system and at Gateway 

There should be a place in the centre of town (e.g. desk in West Quay shopping centre) where residents could go to for certain forms (e.g. council 

tax reduction/bulky waste etc). 

Someone to be at Gateway to see people when they come in a bit like the triage system at a hospital, to give them advice on what to do next. 

I am sure that as the services develop it will become apparent who needs extra assistance 

as long as consideration is given to the elderly and non-tech people then online works.  automated phones are not ideal as there never seems to be 

the question that you are wanting to ask. so provided there is back up to an operator if necessary then that would work. 

I would like to see weekend openings for those that are usually at work during the council's "office" hours. Can be very difficult to get face to face 

with council staff if the only time the offices are open require you to take time off work. 

The council should be making better use of local voluntary community organisations, such as the Southampton Cycling Campaign. 

Continue with notices in the local press or the local radio.  Not everyone has access to the internet or have smart phones.  Lots of our neighbours 

are elderly and want things easily accessible, no automated phone calls or press button 1 for this, that or the other. 

Speaking to a live person is always best.. 

Some people still like to write by letter, it is cheaper. Not everyone is on line or wants to use computers. 

I know many elderly folk who do not use computers and are equally unhappy using automated phone services. Please do not cut their ability to 

speak to someone. I am sceptical that 'training' will not help. Many younger psople simply do not understand how worrying these changes can be for 

the elderly. 

Providing the option to receive regular contact from the council online by logging into an account (property based or individual) or by email.  Council 

tax bills and supporting documents sent by email are an obvious cost saving. 

Employ more front line staff who are able to answer a much higher proportion of queries rather than having to pass them onwards.  More staff at the 

front-end agreed, but less in the back offices 

Yes, stayhng as it is. 

Access via a manned phone line (Switchboard)who can connect you with the correct Dept/Person that's what's called "Customer Service" the 

Human!...not the machine! The Older Group within the City DO NOT WANT THIS TYPE OF AUTO SERVICE 

Mobile officers, possibly setting up in various local libraries to be used as a drop-in centre 

Hopefully online via the web will include email contact as I find this the easiest form of contact. 

People need contact quickly and not to have fo fill in a form 

It's crucial to always have the opportunity to speak to a human being where the customer feels this is preferable. This should still be made possible. 

Yesy - personal contact because it was the public (your tax payers) want 

a human is needed for those who have difficulty with phone buttons, waiting in a queue on an automated service is unacceptable, people who need 

to use text phone, how will they be dealt with? 

when I have trouble with rubbish collection I am able to phone and talk to a real person. These people are helpful and polite the same goes for the 

rates department. This is the way I like it, I dont want to talk to a robot. My rates went up this year by the rate set for everybody and the loss of OAP 

discount so I think I pay enough to talk to a real person. 

Post.  This may be a better solution for those without IT skills or access (eg the by using the report a pot-hole cards etc.) 

Increase staff hrs by 20% to bring them into line with the rest of the city , then you would not need to adopt these measures. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 35 

Where the elderly are concerned could something be offered through a doctor's surgery. It is still confusing what exactly is available and a detailed 

list would give some guide. 

Personally I would be very happy to use online services and see it as an enhancement of council services, I'm just not sure it's the approach for all. 

Visiting people who are unable to get out. 

customer contact is what it says contact with the customer TECHNOLOGY tends to move away from this and the personal touch is lost and we end 

uf speaking to computers. 

Yes, face to face contact will still be needed for complex cases and for those people who are unable to use online or phone services. 

need to cut costs, so proposals make sense 

I think if SCC is moving to an on-line system for either enquiries or reporting, if there isn't an immediate answer, residents should be able to track 

their enquiry.  This would enable the resident (such as me) to see what is happening to my enquiry therefore assisting with the communication 

feedback - without SCC needing to get back to me on the status of the enquiry until it is resolved, or I as the resident need to contact someone if it's 

not happening as it should.  I think this would be good for residents and the council. 

depending on the service enquiery it may be appropriate to speak to a member of staff for some personal or delicate matters. 

Could use local housing or other council owned propeties if there are any left. this offers local assistance to residents without the need to come into 

central, bearing in mind council does not like motorists, and for some public transprot is difficult 

Mobile phone app that will allow customers to quickly access SCC resources rather than having to navigate around the website. 

People - face to face polite people - who can respond to a question directly because they know their job - which is what they are paid to do.  They 

can help alleviate concerns and hopefully if they know their job can provide help and suggestions at that time. Its called good customer care. 

Phones should be answered after 2 rings, customers should be given the answer straight away rather than passing it on to other departments.  

There should be no adverts on the phone i.e Capita have fostering care on their phones , elderly clients do not want to listen to this. Its so frustrating 

for them, especially if you have dementia you will forget what you have phoned for?  We need customer care not business centres. 

Gateway face-to-face is important. 

Yes customer service the old fashioned way, people want to speak to a person not a machine. 

We all know how annoying an automated phone service is and how wonderful when you phone up and speak to a real person. 

It is important that the Council encourages residents to ask for help from their local councillors. A lot of residents approach the MPs' offices on 

problems which are local, rather than national. It would help if Gateway produced a simple Guide directing people on which kinds of problems they 

should ask their councillors about - and a reminder of which issues - e.g. Immigration - they should go to the MPs about. I am a City Councillor for 

Bitterne ward and am thoroughly aware of this problem. 

We should always have the option of face to face contact.  Even those that have access to a computer do not necessarily want to use it in all 

circumstances.  The Council should be accessible to all and the citizens of Southampton should not be forced to access services in ways they don't 

wish to use.  The current automated phone service to pay council tax doesn't work.  I have been unable to use the service on a number of 

occasions. 

I cannot think of any except that Local Housing Offices, Libraries etc were good sources of information and help. This of course has been reduced 

with cut backs. 

people still prefeer to talk to an assistant, it is easier to ask questions "on the fly" than through the web 

real people by phone, for the reasons already stated 

may need to be flexible and have some outreach 

Home visits may be appropriate in some circumstances. 

We should not be reducing face to face contact to almost nothing, this will probably result in a rise in complaints as people hate automated contact if 

they don't get to a real person. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 36 

That good old personal contact. Automated phone services are not the way forward 

Letters by post or by hand 

An easy to understand paper handout mailed to each address showing the different ways people can get help. Posters in libraries, police stations, 

and other public places. A full page in the phone directories. 

Yes face to face in person and by telephone and (would you believe it) by letter. 

Yes. Must retain easy personal contact. 

Ithink it would be a good idea to have librarys a place where members of the public could go for help with issue concerning rent rates benefits etc. 

They could have certain days set aside where Gateway staff would be available maybe via a video skype type link. This would still be automated to 

a fashion but also give the face to face contact so needed. Members of library staff would be on hand to assist if required. 

Postal 

Face to face appointments must still be available as in some cases, information is very personal and people may not be able to explain there true 

circumstances on line or over an automated phone service which undoubtably will not have the correct option to every case. 

Face to face and personal contact.  What is being provided with these proposals is "service" in name only. 

Possibly better information 'at source', for example through the Housing Offices, Job Centre etc. (I am not familiar with the whole system as it 

currently stands). 

SCC must ensure that staff adopt a sympathetic and understanding attitude to all types of enquiries, which I find sadly lacking with Capita when 

using the Action-Line service. 

Older people and those with ether learning and mental health problems can be confused and or firghtened by technology and cope much better 

when dealing with a person face to face. 

Is customer contact not one to one?  Surely web & phones take away 'customer contact'. 

I am sure customers would still like to be able to write to the Council in a conventional way.  The Council could also offer a mail service at Gateway.  

Some customers might feel more comfortable writing down an inquiry, particularly if it is of a personal nature, and wait for a written or telephone 

response, particularly in the categories I have mentioned.  You could supply paper head with spaces for name, address telephone no. for response 

and give space for description of request and provide an internal post box at Gateway.  I am aware all Councils would like to get away from paper 

trails, but this does not suit all clients, particularly those areas I have mentioned. 

Online services can be very effective, however a strong phone service back up is also important, particularly for complicated queries. 

Face to face is far more personal and person centered way of doing things.  It would give better customer service. 

Emails, texts, apps. All cheaper than face to face 

The main switchboard for the council is inaffective, calls are not directed to the appropriate place, callers are bounced around to teams that are not 

working with them and then have to have the same conversation with a person in the wrong team who ends up having to contact the switchboard 

themselves taking time away from their actual work. Many of the switchboard operators are unhelpful and quite rude, with the opinion they are right 

and you are wrong. I have rarely had a straightforward conversation with a member of the switchboard and I work for SCC and understand how the 

system works. Names are not always given to callers and calls are often put through blind. I have had calls for children's services workers (I work in 

adults) and have had to deal with exceptionally irate people who have been bounced around several people intially, this caller knew the name of the 

person he wanted to speak to and I found them with no issue in the gloobal address book - why the  person who answered the phone on the 

switchboard couldn't do this is beyond me. Often if the caller asks for a specific person this will be taken on face value without checking the details 

on the PARIS system, this then results in angry callers. I once had a phonecall from a member of the public, who had been put through blind from 

the switchboard who wanted to speak to someone in another team and they were told we would be able to provide the number. Surely this is the 

switchboards job. I believe that the switchboard creates more problems than it solves. I believe extending the contract would be a mistake based on 

the current level of performance from the switchboard I deal with. 

What happened to a letter in the post with clear reference numbers and contact details for customers to reply to? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 37 

Web services and automated phone services make the assumption that the customer knows what Council service they require. From my own 

experience of dealing with out of hours emergencies it is not always easy to establish what service is required. Complex and or unusual issues may 

not be resolved by web/automated services and could put residents of the city at risk 

Let the people who know their job speak to the customers. That might work. Simple but effective. Or alternatively continue to pay a private company 

thousands of pounds, who would not know good customer service if it bite them on the nose, continue as they are? Umm what do you think? Huh? 

I think it would be beneficial to have a mobile "Gateway drop in surgery" that comes to different parts of town on different days like a library bus, 

where people who are not comfortable using phone or internet, and who may not be able to travel into town, can benefit from the triage reception 

system and supported self-service terminal access you described. This would mean that older people who prefer to a speak to a person but cannot 

get into town don't have to feel so isolated and cut off from services they need. 

providing a reception service, where people can come in and speak to a real person when they need someone to help them. 

There's actually nothing to beat real live people! OK, so they're expensive. But if there were some well-trained people available at the entry point, 

who could then 'field' potential clients towards the right service - and most importantly towards the people who could help them use them most 

quickly and effectively, this might be better than providing automated responses first, and then trying to spot those in difficulties afterwards. 

Face to face is what our customers want and expext 

For the benefit of disabled etc, their should be an enquiry line, which would go straight through to a "person", who could fill in online forms etc on 

their behalf. Some people find the internet very daunting & using computers rather a scary prospect.  This proposal will just isolate those who really 

need assistance. 

Ensuring all linked computer systems will work with any changes made. (Eg lagan, Clarence, Confirm etc.) 

There is nothing wrong with online but you need to be able to get to a computer or tablet or phone and then you need to have an email then you 

have to register, then you can do what you need to do. Will Gateway staff be training people how to use computers. Why not reduce Gateway and 

rent it out to another cafe, utilise existing premises like libraries and train up and use staff in locations where people can learn to use a computer and 

get support from trained staff. Also why invest in expensive kiosks at £10k a pop? Make sure that the information and payment interface is good on 

Web pages ( not like the current payments pages)  and offer the payments at places across the City where they already take money like libraries 

from simple PCs and touch screen PCs 

CUSTOMER CONTACT Literally. All these measures you are considering only isolate you from having contact. People are becoming socially 

invisible. 

Ensure e-mail in boxes are checked regularly and responses provided in a timely manner. 

email 

It is not always possible for clients to visit Gateway, ie elderly and infirm. Will the Council have in place means of officers to visit in exceptional 

circumstances? 

The citizens of Southampton deserve a first class service. That we want a service where we can come in and speak to someone is shown by the 

fact that Gateway is always full of people. We could use our local housing offices if the Council opened them all day everyday and allowed us to 

make rent payments in them; staff and train them properly and we could ask our questions there. 

If we are to direct as many calleres/contacts thorugh automated service we must ensure that they are reliable, cover all types of service - not just 

Revs&Bens and Housing and that the relevant support is in place. Online Payments are a case in point. I am fed up with the frequent reports that 

this system is not working and the subsequent efforts required to secure a payment off the back of this poor service. 

reopen housing offices, 6 days a week all day, 

I think it is important that all staff who have direct customer contact need to be trained to listen to what is being asked before redirecting the query.

Social Media presence 

Home visits?  But this is more time consuming so not practical 

I thought Gateway worked very well when I've used it. If you got rid of those people that sit in their ivory towers making decisions then you'd save a 

lot of money that could be used to pay for this customer service rather than pay Capita profit money. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 7 - Other than online via the web and automated phone services, are there other approaches that the council should be 

considering when looking at customer contact? Please give your reasons for your answer.

Page 38 

The present system works.   I understand that the council has huge financial problems but am reluctant to see people put out of work to solve them 

A continued, and perhaps extended and certainly improved , use of  unautomated services. Of course, there are financial implications but this is an 

important proposed change which will further disadvantage those already disadvantaged 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 8 - Over time the council will move as many services as possible to online and/or phone self-service. Are there any services 

that you feel should not be considered for this approach and why do you think they are not suitable?

Page 39 

Not so much services that should never be considered, but there are problems in certain systems where currently only a paper form process will do.   

e.g. Those that require customer signatures, or evidence (such as copies of birth certificates and passports) to be sent in to the council for 

processing.  While it would be good to be able to be able to do all of that online, I'm not sure we're in a space where that's possible. 

Do we not care about Customer service any more?????  I know there are cutbacks but this is ridiculous!

None - it isnt rocket science 

I feel that this is not a good move, a computer or phone self servuce can not hear any inference in the voice of someone that is in urgent need of 

assistance form the council.  There are some that will not stay engaged wating for the write number to press.  These could well be the most 

vulnrable people in the city.  Also the longer it takes for some people to speak to a human can make the final call for the recipient difficult as they are 

by this time rightfully frustrated, maybe in tears or very angry 

Services in particular which deal with vulnerable groups of people 

Yes, I feel all customer facing services should be maintained and none should be replaced by automated phone lines, as I mentioned before Private 

Companies are already moving away from this form of customer contact. All services should be put on the internet but these services should run 

alongside the traditional face to face services, not replace them! 

the needs of teh most vulnerable people must be taken in to account before moving servvices completely to on lione 

Most of Social Services. 

Children's and Adults services - its bad enough having to call a contact centre to ask for help, please dont take the human element out of this 

service 

The Council should not be considering automating the switchboard or phone access nor making automating changes to Gateway or other front 

facing customer services  - where most organisations are reconsidering the automated and online systems SCC/Capita are hurtling towards creating 

a totally automated, personnel limited, impersonal system which will be socially excluding hundreds of your citizens and tax payers. 

Adult and Children Services 

Services for the elderly  - they may need more time and would appreciate a face to face approach. they are less likely to have access to a computer 

and may find phone self service daunting 

Housing repairs, online reporting of urgent issues delays matters being resolved. The service itself is still under going streamlining and this has been 

going on for years and is still not what could be delivered under the private sector. 

I think it is good for as many things to be available to do online, as long as these are not the only options, and as long as the online system is 

efficient and easy to use. 

Whilst I understand the need to save money I feel that by moving away from face-to-face we will be in danger of cutting off people across the city 

who most need our assistance. 

It's not about whether the service is suitable it's about the customers who use it.  Some customers will be happy to access everything online or by 

phone whereas others will struggle. 

Social Services would need to be contacted personally 

All services involved in safeguarding eg social services, local housing offices. All services should still have the option of speaking to an advisor. For 

example, complex issues regarding housing benefit could not be dealt with using an automated system. 

Dementia services 

I'm not sure that there are any that should not be but I think there will be people, and from my knowledge of the demographics of the city quite a lot 

of people, who won't be able to access the support they need because the circumstances of their day to day living will exclude them. 

None I can think of 

Having worked in the community I know that a lot of people struggle to access Internet and call centre services for a variety of reasons, and whilst I 

feel it is a good idea to encourage people who can use the Internet to do so, I think it important that there is no discrimination against people who 

cannot.  I believe that continuing to provide a drop in face-to-face service is vital for such customers. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 8 - Over time the council will move as many services as possible to online and/or phone self-service. Are there any services 

that you feel should not be considered for this approach and why do you think they are not suitable?

Page 40 

No 

social services ie vulnerable people, safeguarding issues, benefit queries 

Housing benefit / those in severe financial need (no longer dealt with by DWP) 

This approach should not be adopted because it's yet another step towards isolation, dehumanisation and erosion of community 

Adults Social Care Queries 

All of them the solution is impersonal. Stop the waste get up to private sector staffing and service and speed. Get private sector management 

experience. Look at what other Councils and organisations do. 

refer back to previous comments 

all front line services need to be face to face 

Wide publicity should encourage the use of online services by the electorate, and the various methods should run paralell rather than being imposed 

if customer service is important to SCC. If cuts are unavoidable, better trust could be engendered if this message is straight and honest rather than 

spun with deceptive language as spin is always transparent and is always treated with distain.. 

All areas of Social Services. Each contact needs to be dealt with considerately and on an individual and condfidential basis. 

Referrals to Childrens Social Care, CYPIS etc 

I do not want to have my personal details on-line; so i should not be forced to do something i do not want to do it. 

It is not so much the services, it is ensuring that all services still have a system in place to help people in person. 

Social services and children's services 

Services involving confidential information - account numbers, personal circumstances, debt etc. 

Filling in a form never conveys all of the circumstances and often leads to having to do the same job twice. The cost of having to have on-line 

access and/or the cost of having to travel to use an on-line service makes it prohibative for those who need the services the most. 

There could be many. What about if I want to complain that my bins have not been emptied? 

I don't know. 

not sure 

None that I can think of at present. 

child services, asb unit, domestic violence. any chance of physical or mental harm must be dealt with immediately. 

no 

Action Line has to date not really worked for me with email. No one confirms action, always have to ring in to get a response from a person.  

Planning control I think is an area which often has critical time sclaes behind it especially for those seek retrospective planning approval for house 

sales etc. 

No 

immediate homelessness, other than that everything should be ok 

Making cash payments. 

It depends on how you are going to deal with proofs? People may prefer personal documents that are valuable/sensitive be dropped into Gateway 

for copying rather than posted, scanned uploaded to web. Maybe maintaining a quick drop off copying service would be beneficial. 

Yes, I believe a lot of elderly folk will have problems trying to access the benefit services in particular. 

ALL services should retain other access methods so as not to disenfranchise those who are unable (in reality or by fear) to use the online or self 

service .... and for those who feel they are not getting any answer - or too long a delay before getting an answer - from auto services 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 8 - Over time the council will move as many services as possible to online and/or phone self-service. Are there any services 

that you feel should not be considered for this approach and why do you think they are not suitable?

Page 41 

Any services likely to need access by the elderly or disabled. 

I DOn't think you shoul be doing this with ANY of it 

I can not really answer this question 

Services that require a lot of form filling and providing personal information this will not fly with the over 50's....Draw a line that everyone over 50 can 

select to have Real Service with a Human or if PC Skilled opt into the new system....All forms should be paper format for over 50's..........you are 

becoming Big Brother...give the elderly the service they should have 

I cannot think of any service that should not be considered but I think there must be an option for face to face appointments for any problem that 

cannot be resolved to the customers satisfaction by these other means. 

Emergencies 

All services should have personal one-to-one contact with the public on first call. 

if you have ever tried to deal with the Inland Revenue then you will know how frustrating and expensive it is, computer systems never work well 

when they are first set up. The road tax system was a nightmare to start with, it is brilliant now but it has taken a few years. Self assessment is a 

nightmare still to figure out how the system works. We dont need any more to deal with. 

All of them. Your staff just need to work harder 

All of them I'm a person not a punter you are there to provide a service which meets my needs not change the whole system to cut Capita 

overheads 

nothing specific comes to mind 

All council services. get people to help people. Not just to make profits for doubtful companies. Look at what happen to Bournemouth. 

action line is  point of contact and you can explain to the staff exactly what is wrong. do you not think it is a cost cutting exercise which will most 

probably go wrong at the cost of people jobs. 

Some services for people with learning disabilities due to the need to ensure clarity and understanding of the service needs on both sides 

No, I'm fully in favour of self-service as it means I can use council services outside office hours. 

All 

I think all should be considered but the decisions should be based on the type of service and the customers/residents they interact with.  I am sure 

there will be a few that would not be suitable. 

some complaints including grounds maintainance 

financial and contractual problems and where paperwork is involved will be much esier and user friendly with a face to face approach. 

as mentioned before they are not suitable for anyone.  You need to speak to a person and not to a automated phone service. 

No service should be totally automated all your doing is making it more difficult for the elderly, less educated and vulnerable people to access help. 

Your also taking away peoples jobs 

Homeless Support 

Online should be offered alongside phone self service with the option to speak to someone. 

Those dealing with personal or sensitive issues eg bereavement 

Sorry - I can't comment on this. 

As stated before, all services should be available face to face.  It should be for the citizens of Southampton to choose and not to be dictated to. 

I am not fully cognicance of all the services provided but I a sure that there will be a need for better information  regarding bus passes etc so there 

must be ways of giving out this information in an appropriate way. 

Reception duties. people should be able to talk to a human being. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 8 - Over time the council will move as many services as possible to online and/or phone self-service. Are there any services 

that you feel should not be considered for this approach and why do you think they are not suitable?

Page 42 

social services . . . when ringing for help in an already stressed state , you don't need the added strain of trying to negotiate automated services 

no - but any systems will need to pick up the vulnerable and have facilities to deal with them more appropriately - less personal contact may make 

this harder 

I really do not know. 

Anything that involves personal troubles financial etc an automated phone service in that case is as much use as a chocolate teapot and that is 

being polite!!! 

No but I only experience a few services 

All services. At some times, all people will have problems with phone and internet access, such as when moving home or having had a problem 

such as identity theft. 

We need an approach which combines the exciting technologies available now and in the future, but we should also not forget and embrace the tried 

and tested ways of providing a  personal service. This is best achieved by maintaining  a first class level of personal customer service which means 

human contact and not automated self service options. 

why not just sub contract the whole lot to a call centre? Honestly where is the public service going here? I'm sure we have all had very bad e 

periences with holding for ever not getting help even when phone is answered. 

Legal, Licensing and HR. 

No, as long as there are always options available for people in special circumstances. 

Urgent queries and those involving social services 

All.  See previous comments 

Probably, but I am not sufficiently familiar with the range of services to comment. 

People with 24/7 care needs should have there lives made easier and kept on a personal basis. I do not think the new system will achieve this. 

All services can and should be online or over the phone BUT they should still be avalable at a physical location where clients/service users can talk 

face to face and not soem should not be by appointment only. 

No 

Social Care should have optional ways of contact as I have described earlier, because of the complex nature of many of our customers social skills 

and needs. 

Libraries / Gateway - it was always set up as a one stop shop. 

No 

Safeguarding issues 

Think really hard about what you are planning here. Is it really working now? Really? Is it? Sad thing is that you really have to ask. 

I am not familiar enough with the different services offered, but I can see a risk that benefit fraud could increase if people claim in a de-personalized 

way via the internet, without ever having to look a gateway consultant in the eye as they discuss their claim and situation. I heard this happens a lot 

in Norway, where benefits are generous and generally claimed online and personal contact with service staff is minimal due to the limited staffing. A 

person can simply fill in an online questionnaire stating they are still too depressed, sociophobic, agoraphobic or whatever to go to work without ever 

having a chat with a suitably trained counsellor to verify their state or provide guidance on and prompts to use treatment options available... 

we can encourage people to use online but i think there will be a significant number who will be unable or unwilling to use online.  My concern is that 

our arrangements to cover for these people may not be adequate. 

Certain advice services need privacy, especially those where people have to plead special circumstances (an example mght be 'bedroom tax' 

issues; other housing issues; things where people have to discuss their family circumstances or financial problems...). 

Many of our customers of all ages and cultures dont have a pc and cant afford internet services, they just prefer to speak to someone on a one to 

one basis. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 8 - Over time the council will move as many services as possible to online and/or phone self-service. Are there any services 

that you feel should not be considered for this approach and why do you think they are not suitable?

Page 43 

Actionline/repairs service, complaints/compliments etc etc. 

I do not think this is a good approach to use for HR since although it may save time for Capita, it creates extra work for managers with large groups 

of weekly paid staff 

All of your services should be face to face contact, promoting staff relationships with their clientele. Communicating with people and validating them 

is critical to anyone's well-being.Pressing option buttons and doing things yourself does nothing but frustrate, cause stress and remove self-esteem. 

How is anyone supposed to feel motivated and positive and want to support something that ultimately is saying, no-one's here, get on with it 

yourself! 

No but providing there is always the possibility of talking to a 'real' person without too much hassle. 

As a on  Council Tax payer, and someone who can use a laptop on occassions, the full range of services should be offered via the full range of 

council offices. Often, when trying to find out where you need to go within the Council or what is needed to address your issue, this only comes after 

questionning. In the longrun, the personal visit is quicker and cheaper as the whole range of issues is addressed rather than just ticking a few boxes 

or buttons on a phone. People are complex, with difficult and multiple issues. 

If this decision is off the back of a customer survey, then please ignore. If it is to make savings then I think we need to understand that this is not 

what many of our customers will want and complaints are expensive to deal with! 

Will someone eporting an incident get fed up with an automated system?  Yes I think they will, they will want to speak directly with someone 

Not sure - I think that when you complain about something on-line i.e via Actionline and you don't get a response, you think the issue is not really 

being dealt with. If everything moves to virtual service you still need to know your issue is being followed up by an email confirmation of action taken.

I have only experience of people with housing related problems and some cases are complex and need face to face contact and there are several 

issues that needs to be resolved. 

Over time the council will move as many serives as possible to online and/or phone self-service. WHY? more people out of a job, more people 

inconvenienced, more anger and frustration when we get put through to a call centre, will they be trained in the answer to everything??? again why 

are you removing human contact - its a sad state of affairs. shame on you all. 

Social services. 

As my earlier comments indicate, I can see very few services which would benefit from these changes 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 9 and 10 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end date 

of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like the council to take 

into account?

Page 44 

As I responded in the previous question, those forms where we need customer signatures or further evidence to be supplied.  Currently we do in-

year school admissions via paper form only (although I have looked at turning that into an online process and didn't see too many issues, it was just 

a case of how that's then linked up with Capita One and the rest of the school admissions information), but the most problematic process that I've 

come into contact with is that for applying for a child employment/performance license. 

Not everyone is online - phonecalls cost for those on low incomes.  People want to speak to someone and know that their issues have been picked 

up! 

No 

There are people who do not have internet accsess.  They will miss a lot of needed information.  This may well save some council finances now but 

will build up a higher level of social need in the future.  This year it was only when reading our weekly bullletin I found I could print out my rubbish 

collection dates.  the information did not get posted through my door till much later when i can only assume people had been asked for this info. 

People need to know what is available for them. They cannot request something if they are not aware of its existence - I feel the Council vastly over-

estimates the number of their customers that are internet savvy 

Benefits claims (Housing etc) would have to be take into account if a person had to wait for a paper form to be sent to them when recording the date 

that the claim was submitted. If there were delays in sending forms this could become a big problem for some service users. 

its hard enough finding your way around SCC website without having to rely on finding the correct online form rather that having paper versions to fill 

in. 

Any of the front facing services. Digital default is a bullying and bullish approach which serves only to save money for the organisation and takes 

away local jobs at primary and secondary levels. 

More hurdles for vunerable people, adding to the impression that the council is out to make things deliberately difficult for people- and they'd be 

right! 

those with English as a second language would find this difficult.  Housing 

Not everyone has a printer, and forms can be many pages long. Even if using public services such as library for printing it costs.  Forms should be 

readily available at housing offices and gateway to just pick up thus reduce postal costs. 

This seems to be dependant on people being pro-active in requesting it themselves - some people may be unsure of what forms they need and who 

to contact in order to request it. 

See previous comments 

As long the information about how people can request the paper form is not just online, else the people who need the paper form won't know about 

it. 

I think wherever members of the public come into council buildings they will ask for a copy of whichever form they need 

As workers we require paper forms to take out to clients as we are not always able to access online forms whilst with a client in their home. 

How will people know when they need to ask for a paper version of a form? 

They should be availiable to pick up in Gateway still and in organisations in the city who help with form filling such as SARC etc 

I don't think so. 

A paper copy is tangible proof, things can go missing on line 

Not everyone has access to web or is able to download forms 

Would be ok if forms can be collected from the local housing offices or Gateway. The expense of printing out of forms is transfered to individuals /  

charities who are even more inable to afford. 

the need for alternative suystems for those without access to PCs is hard to gauge and need toplan to trasntiton from on e system to another. In 

hard times the cost of internet services is a luxury for more people and the demadn may be an increasing one. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 9 and 10 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end date 

of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like the council to take 

into account?

Page 45 

Not sure 

People will not know how/where to request a copy. 

There are a number of forms that are only available on request at present, for example Housing Benefit additional needs and Housing Benefit nil 

income statement. If telephone services are reduced it will take even longer to get through on the phone to request them. 

People may not know how to use the technology to print their own forms, may not have money to spend paying to print forms and also may not be 

able to get to a public computer. 

but it must be clear that they can be requested - not hidden away in small print 

not sure - but please look hard at .gov.uk who have been praised for the ease of use of their system for straightforward things like passports and car 

tax renewals. 

It is very difficult to complete anything on-line. 

Not having paper versions of forms available cuts down the number of applications that you will receive which has knock on effects all the way 

around. 

Not for me. 

this is not appropriate for any service. The new method of access must be better than the existing service, rather than driving people online by 

making existing methods of access worse 

Often people do not know what form they need, or even that they need a form at all - how are they then supposed to request the correct one? 

paper forms should be available at gateway or by post 

As long as there are sufficient phone lines for people to request the paper form. 

No as long as there is a fall back position 

Not everyone can or wants to use computers. 

What do you mean by the 'number of paper forms will be substantially reduced'?  Does this mean you will not be printing stocks of paper forms and 

they will be printed at the Gateway or other locations with customer contact (housing offices, libraries, schools etc.) as required?  How will people be 

able to request forms?  Concerns raised in previous questions apply here as well. Will you carry out a full review of all forms and if they are needed? 

If people have online accounts with the council will there be the option for stored information to pre-populate the form? 

Provided they are easily accessible and not the confusing bunch of papers in the Gateway today 

Make it PAPER FORMAT for the over 50's unless they elect to go on line....I would think 80% of the over 50's in the City would wish to have a 

traditional paper format 

Not that I  can think of 

blind people 

most of them 

How will people know there is a form to cover their specific query if they do not have internet access? 

All of them. Your IT is rubbish 

people with mental health issues and the elderly 

How will we know what forms are actually available.

Yes more Duplicitous Bureaucratic B.S. 

Most areas 

I don't think so, but perhaps a printable version of forms should be available for people to print themselves. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 9 and 10 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end date 

of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like the council to take 

into account?

Page 46 

All 

You will have to que to get a form to then wait again 

If you are going to use on line forms there MUST be the facility for the completed on line form to be sent to the residents/customers e mail address 

(the government departments mentioned in your consultation always sent a receipt (or offer one) to the customer).  If using smartphones to 

complete on line forms you won't be able to print one off, but will need evidence that you did complete one. 

See my previous comments 

I ofen request (from other companies etc) printed copies of forms. This can be a lengthy telephone request which for someone hard of hearing (as I 

am) is not easy. 

Most 

Dustbin collection cards are very useful to have to hand.  It would be very annoying for customers to have to check online if they forget whether the 

re-cycling bin is due for collection. 

Planning issues. 

How will people who do not have aceess/ cannot use a computer know   1.that they have to apply for a paper form 2.where to get a form 3.how to fill 

it in correctly 

I think this approach could actively discourage some users 

As long as it is always clear paper is available online can cause soem people great stress and timing out on online because you are struggling 

happens to even the IT literate any automatic saving system woudl be good 

Any changes cause difficulties!!! 

Any service that needs to be obtained at short notice where waiting for a paper form would not be acceptable. 

If a paper copy is not the first point of communicant then a large number of people may miss important news. 

Its just more hurdles to get through. 

No, as long as the paper option is retained if required. 

You are making life more difficult for those who already have problems. 

See previous comment. 

need to make sure the forms are easy to understand and complete, have helpped older clients complete forms online in the past and some have 

been very diffecult and have need printing off to make sure that they could be completed correctly. Option to save partly completed form, so that 

they can log in at a later date to finish. They should also allow easy movement back and forewards to allow for changes to be made without having 

to retype sections completely. 

Vulnerable & elderly customers 

On line forms for all would not be appropriate for all as described earlier.  Access to forms by the public would need to be easier.  Appreciating that 

clients would still have the option of requesting a papee form, can I suggest that current up to date forms are all dated as to the date when they were 

last revised, and the intranet cleaned up as there still appears to be a lot of old, out-of-date information floating around. 

People get stressed about having to ask for forms, they forget and it will increase the amount of human error such as forgetting to complete a form. 

Council, Craptia or Gateway are not good at informing the public with the deatils of where you can go or call to request forms, leaflets etc 

I see it now! it makes me all warm and fuzzy inside ... really it does ..... Not! 

Libraries 

All council services when computers break down - they often do, even in the best run organisations! 

Not everyone will be aware that they can request paper copy 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Questions 9 and 10 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end date 

of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like the council to take 

into account?

Page 47 

I have had to print on line forms for our weekly paid staff to complete, and they do not work because the drop down options are not displayed on a 

print out. 

Many services are already doing this and it causes issues in libraries for example The Housing form is over 20 pages long. If someone wants to fill 

this in by hand at a library do they pay £2.00 for the form to be printed out or does the library take a hit and effectively pay for someone elses 

printing savings  by printing out for free? 

Surely they will have to print out anything they have done inorder to prove it was done. Constantly putting personal information online also heightens 

the risk of fraud surely. Is it likely that so many people have access to online facilities, how are people able to afford broadband if they are 

unemployed and needing help. A diverse customer base means catering to all, not favouring the capable.

Personal and/or sensitive issues. I've had to use your on-line planning service and the only way I could get what I wanted was to come on to 

Gateway and speak to your staff. This would have been quicker and cheaper. People do not trust technology. What happens if halfway through the 

system goes down? Frequently your pc service in libraries is not available. You are putting a great deal of emphasis on public access to a public 

service which does not exist in reality. 

Paper copies should be available in Housing Offices/Reception etc. 

if the on line systems go down 

Can't think of any 

do you have any idea as to how many people have mental health problems, or have lower intelligence. I have filled in my fair share of forms and 

they are a nightmare, you cannot understand them, they read like foreign novels and the worrying thing is that people wont ask for help from a 

machine, however they would probably step forward if there was a person with a smile to ask. 

How will people know there is a form if they have to request it? 

All important services: those I have identified above would be seriously disadvantaged 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 48 

Personally I'd like to see certain flexibilities given back to SCC when it comes to website development.   The Capita ITS web 

systems developers are already overloaded with requests, so lifting certain restrictions would make SCC more efficient.  For 

example, currently any web shortcuts from southampton.gov.uk have to be set up by Capita. I requested one on Wednesday, and it 

was finally actioned the following Monday. I don't see any reason why the SCC web publishers don't have access to do this 

themselves - it's not a hard task.  We CAN do that on the intranet, so why not on Southampton Online too? It would then take 

minutes, rather than days.  I have no real problem with a contract extension, but the amount of time that services can be left waiting 

for a response from the Capita team is not acceptible. There is currently an 8-week lead in time for any web development work to 

start - if we're trying to progress channel shift, how is long lead-in a good thi ng? 

Has capita saved us money?  For somethings they are cheaper but any extras they cost the earth with no option of going else 

where. 

In current environment and government cutbacks would suggest contract extension or sharing services with other councils are only 

ways forward 

I have not seen an improivement in the services provided. Allowing this contact may save money but does this make us an effective 

council.  Within my job I feel it costs more to our division due to us having to pick up things that are not quickly dealt with in the Adult 

contact Centre. 

There should be greater emphasis on front of house teams run by Capita being more specialist to back office teams, so that they 

develop more expertise in service areas, build a rapport with regular customers and so help to take the pressure off back office 

teams. Also, it should be easier for customers to get straight through to the team they need, if they know who they need to speak to. 

The time taken to answer calls should also be shorter. The pre-capita standard of answering phones within 3 rings was less 

frustrating for members of the public. 

I do not agree with the contract should be extended. I believe that Council Services should be run by the Council - if a third party, 

such as Capita are involved it is because they can make money out of the contract. If the council were running their own services 

that money made by Capita could be put back into the services to improve them - not cut them further - meaning that at least 

Gateway could continue to see customers and offer a service to be proud of! 

dont 

The current standard of service provided under the contract has decreased a lot in the last few years. Capita also produce on line 

forms that are had to find and are not always appropriate. This has added to the time that SCC staff have to spend sorting out 

problems or getting through to get advice from Capita. The initial KPI's were not writtem in a way that was tight enough or are not 

met by Capita at present, but nothing seems to improve only go in reverse.This adds unaccounted costs to the SCC staff which are 

not taken into account. 

Return to inhouse, I have nothing positive to say about the company and I'm sure you are aware of their nickname throughout the 

city. 

Capita is, primarily, a profit making organisation which has no place in an organisation which should be run for and by the people it 

serves.I have no doubt that they are too powerful in Southampton to now easily to be sacked although I believe they should be. If no 

one is able to show the strength not to re-new the contract my only hope is that the renegotiation is undertaken by people who have 

both enough knowledge and ethics to work out a more equitable deal than was done before. 

Keep the capita staff and get rid of Capita 

Should it not go out to tender again? 

As a contact centre focus is on dealing with the customer as quickly as possible, there is no emphasis on repeat contact by the 

customer. Some services would be better linked back to SCC to be with the back office section. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 49 

I'm unsure, but feel that a summary of how successful the past contract has been - whether it has actually saved the council money 

and improved services, and if so how, would be helpful in deciding. 

Has the Council looked at other providers other than Capita? What have been the successes of the contract so far and what has 

failed? 

My personal feelings, as a council employee, are the contract has not delivered what we were told it would before it was agreed, and 

why would reward this with an extension and more money?  For example, we were told it would lead to investment in IT, but we have 

not seen evidence of this (it may be in the background, but we're using outdated software that is only now being upgraded because 

Microsoft are making it obsolete).  As a local resident, I have found the customer contact centre difficult to use and quite unhelpful.  I 

didn't use it when it was still within SCC so cannot say if this is because it is run by a third party. 

I think Capita will probably save the Council money but the level of service will drop considerably and i expect the Council will extend 

the Contract because its all about saving money!! 

Don't - the council should deliver directly and not give money to capita. 

I fully believe that local services, including local authority finances, should be managed in-house and not by large external 

contractors. 

No 

If Capita are to continue providing the service, I think the following changes are important:  1) Named staff - name and surname, so 

that the caller/ visitor knows who they are dealing with and can be contacted again.  We got cut off due to poor mobile phone signal 

when half way through a specialist transaction, and it took ages for council staff to track down who had been dealing with it.  2) Clear 

information on what has been done, what has been agreed and what to expect next - no jargon.  If legal stuff has to be provided/ 

included in wording then a simple covering letter explaining the above needs to be included.  3)If a ring back option is included that 

this is done, and done in a short timeframe  4) Staff adequately trained to deal with queries and to know where to refer people on 

where needed  5) Forms as simple as possible - accessible to people with lower literacy levels  6) Free phone number for residents 

(mobile and landline) if at all possible  to access services.  This is important if there may be a lot of options and a lot of waiting - don't 

want residents not being able to pay rent/ heating charges etc because they have used up a lot of money phoning the council. 

No other views 

no 

I personally don't think it should be extended - vast amounts of money have been spent to date on a number of issues - we are 

paying exorbitant amounts of money for IT issues, moving offices and nearly all of the systems/services being contracted out to 

Capita 

The contract must be structured to enable the flexibility to change without any penality during times of massive change in local 

government. Clear customer focussed performace measures need to be incorporated that are meaningful and not simply easy to 

collect. Incentivisation to improve services and reduce costs is essential with some form of savings sharing. 

I'm against spending public money on private enterprise and the way, in this case, council services have become more like a factory 

production line than a personal service to human customers. This contract certainly has had detrimental effects on my section of the 

Council so please don't extend it! 

The fact that the general public still think that all these services are dealt with by SCC & we are the people that look bad because the 

services are bad!! 

Too expensive. Should be renogiated. 

none 

I would like to see the SCC take it over 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 50 

Re-tender. The cost may or may not have given a saving, but the services run by Capita have definitely been reduced compared to 

in-house provision. At the very least it will send a message to Capita not to up their game. At best we could get a more proffessional 

contractor. 

The support provided by capita appears to have improved in recent years. 

The contract needs to be fit for purpose. I am not convinced it provides value for money when you consider what support services 

are provided eg HR, IT. If it is extended then SCC need to be explaining fully to staff about what they can expect from these support 

servcies in the future. 

Fully costed alternatives to be considered. Sharing services with other councils, Costings from other private providers and bringing 

the service in house for example. 

Why would you extend a contract with Capita and pay more for less? For intance - your "IT" would have cost SCC less if it stayed in 

the house! To lock SCC in the contract with Capita until 2022 is not very wise!  Why this thought that everything could be delivered 

better if it is delivered by private/external companies? 

no. 

as a citizen I feel badly placed to comment. I do know Capita have a very poor reputation in many areas in which they operate so am 

cynical that the City will be the winner (or even a balanced partner) in this deal. 

All services should be provided by durectly employed cuncil employees; this is by far the cheapest option in terms of direct and 

indirect pay; it ensures control over the aims and objectives of the workforce; it ensures that the services are provided for the benefit 

of the service users and not for the profit of the shareholders; it ensures that local residents remain the owners of the services and 

can have a direct say on service provision through the election of local councillors and maintain accountability. 

Yes don't extend the contract and bring all the staff back under the control of the council, so the council has full control of things and 

are not relying on an outside agency to supply services. 

I would have thought the change over could be achieved quicker than 5 years 

Should consider bring service back in house. 

Not sure what services Capita offers you. 

Contract extention can only be made if the incumbent has met or exceeded current service levels 

Think it is a good idea as it will save time and money commissioning alternative provider. 

No problems so long as there are suitable penalties if Capita fail to achieve set levels of service. 

I think that this would be a mistake and overlooks the possibility of providing services in house to ensure that the service delivered is 

the right one for the area and the people, rather than Capita's current standards 

I believe that there should be a tender, if capita come in cheaper as they are already set up then o.k. if not they lose the contract, or 

they reduce their price by the tender costs. 

I feel that it would be important for the council to re-negotiate the contract with Capita to relect changes since the initial contract was 

signed.  However, I do not have any issues with regards to the services that Capita provide. 

I would like to see some of the other tenders for services. Will it go out to tender? 

Hard to say without any information on performance, but one would want transparency on performance and value for money on 

investment. If there is no in house staff with skills, then I see very little option other than contracting out 

Not in a position to comment on how fast the changes can be implemented however another 5 years seems a bit excessive - 

perhaps 3 years? 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 51 

If less people are required because of the new system does it need to be extended as is, or will there be less agency staff? 

No Problem. 

Before the Contract is extended I think you should wait to see if it is necessary to make changes. Don't be too hasty. 

Has the true cost of the contract been audited?  In my personal experience of outsourcing many anticipated savings are not realised 

because the contract did not cover the full scope of work carried out by staff and all 'exceptions' to the contract were chargeable.   

Technology changes very rapidly. If the contract is extended will future cost reductions in services that we cannot for see today 

remain with Capita or pass to the council tax payer? I would like the council to look at cost savings achievable by joining together 

with other local authorities to share services or negotiate contracts as well as look at savings possible bt bringing the work in house 

rather than outsourcing. 

Do much more research with "real people" rather than just the IT Savvy ones - and that is said by someone who has been an IT 

Consultant for more than 30 years !!!!! 

No 

NO EXTENSION...Out to Bid......min of 3 quotes....table of comparison ....make it sealed bid ...open in Public THE CORRECT FAIR 

WAY TO TENDER FOR ANYTHING 

Most contracts of this type usually mean services to the public are reduced as there are less staff due to redundancy and cost cutting 

and using less qualified and cheaper contractors . How can we know that the contract with Capita has bought any benefits to the 

Southampton public. 

Emergencies 

no 

I dont agree with outside agencies dealing with these things, they never work well and usually end up costing more money. 

As a council employee, I am against continuing the extension. 

the council should keep all services in house and not contract out there services 

If the majority vote favours it, then carry on 

How on earth can profits for a company be better value than employing your own people and the council keep all the profits for more 

services. 

the council should be going back to basics and treating their customers as humans. 

No Views 

I think this would be a good decision as Capita have provided value for money and good quality service

I've not heard good things about Capita.  For instance, they've let down the Nursery my daughter attends. 

Need to be clear on the value for money that the contract offers. The world has moved on dramatically in the last 10 years and the 

contract must be so obsolete it might be more beneficial to start again. There must be more providers available than there were 10 

years ago too. Would there be merit in considering bringing back in house and/or merging some of these generic operations with 

other councils in Hampshire or with other public sector organisations in the city? 

The council should put the contract back out to tender. There may be better options than Capita in the market. There may also be 

services that were previously outsourced that are more cost effectivly or better delivered in-house; asking council employees who 

have to interact with Capita daily is probably better than asking me though, and from what I gather they think the company deserves 

it's nickname in Private Eye. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 52 

don't know 

As the Government if reducing funding to Local Authorities, SCC needs to ensure it is getting true VFM from the contract.  The 

contract was written some considerable time ago, I would think the contract would need to be reviewed to ensure it is still fit for 

purpose with the changes that have happened and those in the forseeable future. 

some difficulties with budgets taken over by capita have meant that some work on building maintainance has suffered due to the 

priority of capita and not always considering the service area prioritys 

don't agree that it should be extended 

Contact centre staff is supposedly trained to be able to answer the majority of questions for all council services. The reality is that 

they have no indepth knowledge of most of the services. This may be a cheap way to operate a contact cente, however, the real 

work is very often left for the back office to sort out. When my department used to take the calls, we could immediately advise the 

customer, make a decision and resolve the problem. Now I have look into Lagan, very often ring the customer back to find out more 

information. We also receive more emails as contact centre staff fails to resolve the issue satisfactorily. 

The Council should bring this back in house.  The cost may appear cheaper initially, but anything that was out of scope when the 

contract was signed would cost the Council a lot more that it would if this was back in house. 

To not have captia at all. I have asked them to confirm annual leave giving a start and end date and they have got that wrong. I was 

also told that it would be a 3 day response for this.  I have had a relative who took redundancy/early retirment last year who went 

through several months of paperwork beforehand ascertaining benefits/money etc and then after she left was advised that was 

incorrect and had to pay money back.  Not exactly a small thing to get wrong and could have made a difference to whether they had 

accepted or not. 

Capita do not have time, they rush everything to save their money and do not deliver good customer care. We have complaints 

everyday from clients re capita. Evidence can be provided on request. 

I am strongly in favour of inhouse provision. 

No their useless,most staff with knowledge have gone and when you ring capita HR etc for help it takes too long for a response and 

usually its wrong. The service needs to go back to inhouse as I understand other authorities that have used Capita wish they hadn't 

I would like to see SCC employing directly rather than sub contracting these functions 

I am concerned that Capita carry out all recruitment but only complete part of the process and the remainder is left to SCC. Capita 

send the packs but they could easily be printed off by SCC because they still have to be made up. 

The Capita contract has lots of loopholes so that currently Capita can introduce new services or alter existing ones, and levy a 

charge for these which has not been foreseen. A revised contract which prevented such practices would be preferable. Many 

services seem to have been outsourced which were run perfectly well in-house. To let outside companies perform these duties, and 

make a profit, indicates that there has to be a drop in quality. 

We shall be considering this carefully between now and 2017. 

I would like to see all such contracts ended and all services provided by the Council direct. 

I have no thoughts on the contract but would like consideration be given to the end user the client our customers who have to use 

this system to obtain help 

Is the Council investigating the feasibility of sharing serivices with other Councils. The extention of the contract will undoubtedly cost 

the Council more than an in house or shared service, over the 5 year life cycle of the project. 

I cannot admit to being convinced of the quality of capita work here and in education where I "suffered" with them for 8 years. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 53 

I have seen other colleagues having to deal with issues we were under the impression would be dealth with by Capita and certain 

orders on Agresso appear to be produced twice - once by Capita and then are input to Agresso by SCC staff - the worklad appears 

to increase rather than decrease 

Capita do not have a good reputation, will they just use this extension as an excuse for supplying systems late? 

I cannot comment as I do not have sufficient information. 

I don't see we have much choice but that doesn't mean it is right for the Council, they are making money out of everything! 

Why do you pay a private company to run our services? a private company means shareholders and they like to be paid!!! Surely the 

council running these services would be cheaper. 

Totally unneccesary for the Council with four years to go, but a wonderful gift for Capita!Reviwew in 2-3 years. Any extension must 

be perfomance related with get out clauses for Council amd sigificant penalties for Capita if they perform poorly. 

Who is Capita? 

Not a good idea. Look for robust viable alternatives or bring the necessary portfolio in- house. 

All its been so far is more cuts worse service and unhappy staff the public. Give it back to the council. 

Services currently provided by Capita should be returned in-house as per the majority of all other Local Authorities to reatin more 

control, privide a better service and enable easier internal interaction and dispute resolution. 

As long as a review period is incorporated within the 5 year period to ensure the service and standards are being retained and an 

option to opt is available if the service or standard is not acceptable. 

Providing these services in house gives the council more flexibility in the future and is likely to lead to a higher quality service. 

The contract with a supplier preferably other than Capita (with whom I have had previous dealings, none with any satisfaction. 

I am not impressed with Capita and SCC must ensure that they deliver the services to the highest standard before  any contract 

extension is signed with a clause terminating the agreement if it is not maintained. 

Some changes need to be made and I don't think this is a good idea as they level of service we had from our own staff was far 

superrior to that currently delivered by Capita, if you try to get the same level of service from Cpaita you incur charges. As for the 

Repair serivce it has be a nightmare at times, when they are busy someone else takes the call askes basic details and says that 

someone will call you back and or report. Have had numerous occasions where I've not received a call back and have had to phone 

again to report or the repair has not been logged or logged to the wrong propperty or scheme. I have even had incedents where I as 

a memebr of the scheme staff have logged a repari and them find a Neighbourhood Warden turn up to get more details or to even 

check to see if the repair is a urgent as I have requested it be. 

What are the results of previous years partnership between SCC & Capita?  Has that made a difference?  Obvioulsy there are 

penalties for Capita not meeting targets/standards but individual SCC departments do not get told this information, which is relevant 

to their section.  Not sure if good idea to extend with Capita. 

Extending the contract is definitely not a good move based on the poor services experienced so far as detailed before.  Our team 

frequently has mis-directed calls, callers put through unnannounced and callers who are very upset and annoyed at the time they 

have been waiting on the qeueing system and are suprised that they and their issue have not been announce and they have to go 

through it all again.   It is also very wasteful of staff time to have to queue up with members of the public to redirect callers 

sometimes for as long as 20 minutes, blocking incoming calls as our practice is to waite for a response and introduce the caller and 

the nature of the inquiry.   If decision should be made to extend contract.  Can we please have dedicated direct internal line to 

reduce the waiting time for staff? 

I'm not familiar with the work currently carried out by Capita 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 54 

I wold like to see that the council look to see if there is another option available and maybe even change the contract to another 

provider? 

If the contract is based on revised terms, improved services and better value for money then extend it. Capita are a private company 

with hq staff earning 6 figure bonuses. How the council gets value for money whilst lining the pockets of a private company is a 

difficult one for me to understand. 

It would appear that Capita can change its side of the contract as the switchboard is no longer manned in the evenings and 

Saturdays when the Library is open.  Because of the cuts, we have less staff and this is causing problems 

The switchboard have no idea how the teams operate, adequate training would be beneficial. At the current time I feel extending the 

contract with Capita would be an error and, despite the savings, would cost more in the long run with lost time for staff having to fix 

multiple mistakes and spending time dealing with angry callers who did not start off that way, and wouldn't be if they were dealt with 

accuratley during the first call. 

Part of the proposals is to have customers contacting via on line, what about all the people who do not have the internet at home & 

do not want to travel to gain access to the internet especially the elderly?   What about people who do not speak or read English?   

There have been many problems with Capita and them not being capable of transferring a call to the right team external or internal, 

where you can be on hold listening to the annoying automated issues to the point where you find people have hung up.  Then all the 

problems with HR which gets to the point of being ridiculous, I personally feel my team and I could do our job & work on Capita’s 

switchboard & HR department and do a better job.       The council’s website is not user friendly or updated as frequently as it should 

be, especially contact telephone numbers.      The contract till 2017 is not good and extending it another 5 years to 2022 is just a 

really bad idea. 

I think the specification of services should be reviewed to tie up on areas where a good service is not being currently provided. More 

quality KPI measures to be put in place. Over the years Council services have increasingly had to take over tasks that fall outside of 

the Capita contract, and this should be taken into account when the contract is evaluated to see if SCC are still receiving value for 

money. An example of this is the way that managers are encouraged to do DIY HR. Not necessarily a bad thing, but the cost of 

additional  duties being placed on managers should be taken into account. Do we receive value for money from the Capita Contract? 

I dont know the answer to this, but I think the market should be explored to see if SCC is receiving value for money. I have no 

objection to strategic partnerships so long as they are true partnerships, but I do get the feeling that Capita seem to have been the 

only organisation to benefit from the existing strategi c partnership (it is not a partnership, it is a contract) 

Haaa, haaa, oh my tummy hurts. Stop it, oh please stop! Extend it??? Waaaah.. haaa... oh my! I hurt, I really do. 

Not sure what the current contract is about, but I heard about an exclusive road maintenance contract in place with Balfour Beatty, 

by which the contractor can decide which roads needs maintenance and to what standard and then "pay themselves". That kind of 

system is madness, as it opens the door for contractors to help themselves to council money without the council having a say as to 

how the money gets spend and what repairs to prioritise. I think this approach is dangerous and one should be wary of it. Personally 

I want my council to be in control of these local issues, not some contractor who benefits from the decision to go ahead with 

something or other! 

Do not extend the contract but reemploy workers in house and work with other councils closely to save costs 

Capita has not worked for us all the time, i would not extend the contract. 

This is an 'empty' question - it smacks of Council seeking to tick a 'consultation' box without giving the public it asks to respond any 

information as to the the efficiency /efficacy of the service offered by Capita so far. 

would prefer to see the council moving away from prvate sector 

No comment either for or against 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 55 

While Capita may mean to provide a good service and employ some excellent staff, I have not always seen positie results in my 

area.  Occupational Health problems - not resolved.  Lagan/Total mobile problems - not resolved.  HR issues - too many passed to 

managers. Procurement - lumbered with Wolseley which has caused a huge amount of work for staff as their invoices are rarely 

correct. Solution?  1) Proof of savings from Capita for eg procurement 2) retain Capita for corporate HR issues, but return budget for 

local HR to service areas. 

The issues are not with the services offered by the contract but by the restrictions of the contract. For example network lines - when 

the Council closes a service and there are still a number of years left on a line, the Council pays - there is no incentive for Capita to 

reuse that line or improve infrastructure. If the Council wants to use that line else where the Council pays.  Newer services run on 

adsl lines - these are purchased and paid for by the Council not capita. Effectively the costs are taken by the individual business 

units as an extra cost. 

they are rubbish 

No views 

Why wouldn't you use your own highly trained capable staff. It's a real shame. 

Capita are a waste of space. Please consider other options 

Capita will have to be sure of the quality of their call staff. So far I have found them very unhelpful, unfriendly and unsympathetic 

Capita's only interest is in making profit for its shareholdres. It is quite clear from the dealings I have had with them that they have no 

interest in providing local services to meet local needs; they make it difficult to access services so that they can report to the provider 

that the service is not required and they can delete it. This is the reason why they want to move everything on-line so that those in 

need, who cause them the most cost, are detered from accessing the services to which they are entitled. This is not the fault of the 

staff who do a wonderful job in very difficult circumstances. All council services should be provided by directly employed by Council 

staff with the ethos is a first class service for the citizens of Southampton rather than profit for the shareholders of Capita. If this 

contract is extended, I will be appalled. 

From my point of view the Contract with Capita has increased my personal workload considerably. Electronic forms/requests have to 

be chased/checked, I am expected to be able to interpret answers to questions I do not fully understand, I have to email HR for 

permission to take formal Attendance management proceedings, you rarely get the same person twice and rarely the same advice 

either. I agree the situation was not ideal before, but now for me it is worse. 

There is a disconnect between someone dealing with an issue, and someone taking the details and poor advice given or incorrect 

details taken 

Our service area has received poor service, particulary from HR and O/Health, ever since the contract started. and consequently, I 

am not in favour of extending the contract with Capita. 

In house provision of all services provided by Capita would be better, it would make the council responsible for the service it 

provides, instead of blaming the contractor when things go wrong.  I think you should  take in to account the views of people who 

have to deal with Capita first, to see what the quality of service people think they provide 

I think the Council needs to look carefully at the quality of customer service provided.  It should not be all about Capita for example 

dealing with phone calls within so many seconds when clearly they have not listened to the question the caller is asking & therefore 

putting the call thorugh to the wrong section/dept 

I think it would be cheaper in the long run for the council to run services inhouse. 

Some Capita services are in the process of potentially being cut back, and there are already Council work commitments they have 

set in place at significant cost.  I am concerned that these cutbacks will worsen the service provided by Capita staff, particularly in 

Valuation and Construction, due to fewer staff being available to do the work and therefore COuncil projects suffering as a result. I 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 11 - The council is considering whether to extend its contract with Capita by five years beyond the current end 

date of 30 September 2017. Do you have any views on such a contract extension, or the alternatives that you would like 

the council to take into account?

Page 56 

don't think the business model has been carefully planned, nor that the COuncil's best interests are being served.   That said I do 

think that Capita staff who do the day-to-day work with SCC staff are largely committed to providing a good service. 

Please dont. From what little I know whenever they have been involved in a council scheme, business plan or anything of the ilk they 

have always messed up. it is embarrasing telling outside organisations that things have been delayed and in the most cases it is 

down to incompetance on Capita's behalf. 

I can't answer this without figures on what savings Capita might have made as opposed to in-house Council provision. 

It should in no way renew its contract with Capita which has a proven track record of incompetence and waste in many areas! I am 

not an expert in outsourcing so can not suggest alternatives 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 15 - Any further comments?

Page 57 

It will be a very dark day if this goes through. 

Pleae read above. 

I realise that in the current financial situation the Council needs to save money and make cuts - what better way to do this than to 

save the money they are paying to third parties, who profit out of these contracts and bring the services back into Council hands. 

There by the cuts would come from third party profits and not from services offered to city's disadvantaged residents 

I completely understand that savings are required but I do think you are looking in all the wrong places - to remove human contact 

from so many areas is sending us into such a poor world. I have witnessed several examples of this over the years and it does make 

for a much sadder environment, no-one talks anymore. Supermarkets, Libraries [I miss discussing what i've read with the librarians] 

Drs surgery's where you check yourself in [ours is always breaking with queues out the door as the receptionists are locked away in 

the back room makes for a much colder, impersonal and sadder place to live. 

No 

If this is a cost cutting exercise, which it clearly is you must be upfront about this and publicise how much you'll save widely , not just 

on the website or in coucil minutes.  Otherwise it just looks like a load of council jobsworths making life easy for themeselves 

Please note I work for mental health/floating support services within the Southampton area. 

Getting people who can complete forms online is a good move, but please ensure that there is no discrimination against people who 

cannot, by continuing to provide a drop in face-to-face service that is well staffed. 

Don't agree with extending Capita contract 

how do those customers without IT access know about this consultation and how can they respond? 

none 

My loss of broadband connection during the completion of this form almost led me to abort my contribution. I think this could also be 

a point when considering customers trying to fill in forms using an unfamiliar format? We could see a few less enquiries as a good 

thing, but is it an obvious a step backwards from the high standard of customer care we have been encouraged to cultivate up to this 

point? 

Reductions in face-to-face and telephone services should only be made after online services have been significantly improved, 

enlarged and fully tested. 

Whilst in theory to save money/time putting everything online, it is just not practical for a large percentage of the cities population. I 

also strongly disagree with benefits moving to this in the future also.  Gateway works well at the moment, having a hub for all 

services that you can drop into. Even on a busy day you do not have to wait that long to see staff.  Also telephone automated is 

frustrating for people. 

I think it is the right way to go but please make sure your call centre operates quickly and at reasonable cost. 

I am happy about the online services changes 

None 

Need to put reminder card about council website through residents letter boxes. Or maybe a sticker put on each residents bin? 

This questionnaire is biased as it is being completed online by members of the public with access to a computer.  To get an accurate 

response you must also make this questionnaire available in paper form. 

no 

none 

This survey has no asked whether measures should be introduced to reduce the demand on the Council's services. 

I hope decisions have not already been taken and minds already made up without waiting for the responses of the citizens of 

Southampton. 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 15 - Any further comments?

Page 58 

Your website needs revamping to make it more attractive and user friendly to promote online access.  I use the current website with 

reluctance rather the first point of call it should be to find out about basic things like dustbin collections etc.  The website does not 

always display properly in Firefox. 

Don't fall into the traps of the utilities etc of using automation as an excuse to reduce actual service quality.  We may not be 

"customers" but we still hold the Counciol accountable and can vote with our feet ! 

Many elderly people have a fear of, or lack of access to computers, and because of hearing problems are nervous on the phone.   A 

friendly caring operator at the end of the phone line is essential for them.    I know this from experience with my 95 year old parents 

who still endeavour to be as independent as possible. 

No 

Offer a real Service to your Customers....it will take another 20+ years before the total population will be PC skilled......have a cut-off 

point of over 50's on traditional service unless they select for PC mode....work with them don't frighten them with this leap into the 

future that the know nothing about 

Do not underestimate the need for the council to present a human face to the public, it would be "inhuman" not to 

No automated switchboard please, publish the DDI phone number of the department so that they can be called directly by the public. 

Change is not always for the better and usually ends up offering a worse system than the one it replaces. You cannot substitute 

experience for machines which break down. 

Your rubbish IT setup has taken me 30 minutes to complete this survey. You need to sack the person who runs it and fix it before 

these changes are implemented 

No 

Than for the chance to participate. 

People appreciate human contact. 

No. 

http://www.newstatesman.com/uk-politics/2013/08/nine-spectacular-council-outsourcing-failures 

I hope that during the move to on-line services the relevant services are engaging with interested residents to ensure what SCC think 

and residents think are one of the same! 

a council is a public service, and whilst it needs to be mindful of using public money and how it is used, it needs also tofulfill the 

needs of its residents.  making it more difficult for some sections may decrease their independence and increase their isolation. 

Automating processes is certainly the right way, however, there will always be a number of applications that will fail due to technical 

problems or because the customer does not fit 100% into the preset arrangement. There will need to be very alert back office. 

The Council along with Capita have made good progress in moving forward with Web technology etc.  But I think it is now time to 

bring IT back in with Southampton CC. 

Save some money by reducing the amount of team managers and higher paid staff that we never seem to have a problem with 

having openings for.  Look closer at the people doing the jobs and ask them whats wrong with the systems instead of paying high 

paid consultants, over and over again - who regurgitate the same ideas. Reduce the amount of travelling costs within SCC by 

incorporating dept in same building.   Look at those who dont use car for job anymore and take away their perks of parking, as 

people change jobs but dont seem to lose their perks. Stop paying out huge amounts of money for laptops and laptop trolleys etc to 

people who then dont actually use them for the job it is provided for ( re City care). Stop paying out huge amounts to staff for 

changing their contracts (again City care) who cost us thousands.  Look at why team managers seem to go off on long term sick for 

months and then seem to come back into another role. If thats the lower paid end of scale we  dont get away with it. Flexible 

working: if there is a shortage of staff why are some people still allowed to do flexible working (working 9 longer days instead of 10) 

which means they are not available to respond to queries, answer phone or cover whilst others are out and when they are not in 

others have to take up their queries. Also those who go early before 4(again flexible working) though this seems to be again for only 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 15 - Any further comments?

Page 59 

some levels of staff who claim it through childcare even though their children are over 14. Again then they are not in someone else 

has to pick up their phone calls/work.   Surely their contract hours should be reduced if the position is supposed to be a full time one. 

Sorry but I do not think Capita has been very good for us , charging us for everything where we are capable of doing i.e. IT, phones 

etc. 

I feel the contract needs to be very carefully looked at, especially the IT.  The charges that the Council have to pay for some IT 

equipment/services is substantial.  The Council Tax should not used to make a profit by some Companies. It should be used for the 

good of the City. 

No 

Personally I am happy to do everything on line, but I'm concerned that it may not suit the most vulnerable people in the city 

A move to increased technological access is a positive move but not at the expense of staff.  Face to face contact or an 

understanding voice on the end of the phone can often stop a problem becoming a complaint.  Think about how reliable these 

systems need to be - what will happen when the self service kiosks 'go down' (and they will).  Also - did you ever hear anyone praise 

the excellent customer service they received from a machine? 

No.  Thanks for the opportuniy to comment.  Hope it goes well for the Council and all its service users. No need to wish the same for 

Capita, they are well used to looking after themselves on a national basis. We are small beer to them.

The need to embrace new technologies is important but should not be introduced to the detriment of tried and tested existing 

systems.  I am fortunate to be able to use all the latest communication systems but also I am aware of many people who do not have 

access to the Internet  & e:mail etc so a human point of contact at all times is crucial. 

Basically its a stupid idea that will just loose jobs and leave more confused people unable to get help when they most need it. If it 

aint broke dont fix it. 

We pay Council Tax for a CONTRACT with the authority.  It seems to me to be a one sided contract with the authority providing a 

poorer and more unsatisfactory service as time goes on at an ever increasing cost to consumers who have no choice over whom 

they use to provide the service. 

don't think you want any more!!! 

What will happen to the existing staff @ Gateway?? 

I am not impressed with the contract delivery so far. 

I think we should take pride in the way we work with residents of Southampton and I really believe the more face to face services we 

can offer people makes people feel valued and supported.  Surlely this is what good customer service is? 

Don't be put off by the usual moaners. This is the 21st century. The vast majority are now used to doing business online (utilities, 

insurance, car tax etc). Provide relevant support for the elderly and infirm but don't pander to the lazy and those who will always 

resist change. Even though they are usually the ones with the loudest voices, they don't represent the majority 

I have had many issues with the switchboard which have been raised through internal channels but no resolution is ever 

fortchcoming and the issues remain and often worsen. Extending the contract given their current level of service would, in my and 

many of my colleagues opinions, be a huge mistake. 

Extending the contract to 2022 is the worst idea, isn't it bad enough some 'genius' agreed to Capita's contract in the first place! 

Listen to your customers and listen to your staff. No I mean it. Listen, really listen and take note. You may learn something.. Although 

on second thoughts... I doubt if you could be bothered. 

Thanks for consulting the population of Southampton on these issues, makes me feel that democracy is still worth something in this 

country, even though not always reflected in the arcane British electoral system...  :-) 

My attention was drawn to this consultation by a friend. Could you find some way of publicising more fully that you have such a 

consultation on the go?  I understand that only about 20% of the population of Southampton has access to computers (information 

via GP patient consultation group considering the same issues as you are). This is partly because Southampton has some pockets 



APPENDIX 4 

Detailed comments received as part of the on-line consultation Annex 6 

Question 15 - Any further comments?

Page 60 

of real poverty, so may not be as appropriate a site as some other towns/cities in the South East for the kind of automated 

treatments you envisage here. Same goes for smart phones - lots of people have mobiles, but smart ones are expensive... 

I suggest you extend the consultation time once you have ensure that as many people in Southampton are aware of this 

consultation/proposal. It has not been widely advertised enough. You need to engage a larger cross section. I am aware of the fact 

that the leaflets concerning this matter are still being produced....not good enough. It smacks of a foregone conclusion. 

Your website is very unattractive and often counter-intuitive and has been so for long enough. The Planning pages are especially 

awkward to navigate through. 

I feel it is a sad reflection on society that people are processed and their voices diminished in favour of a finger press option and a 

keyboard. Vocal chords will become extinct and our cognitive skills repressed. Make the person count as an individual, not as a 

statistic. 

Regarding access, recently my bus service was withdrawn under the "improvements" offered by First Bus following your decision to 

cut their subsidy. Effectively, this means I have great difficulty in getting to work. Yet, I note that there are a huge number of buses 

going up and dwon Shirley High Street going into town. Evening and weekend buses ar really poor, another reason why getting to 

Libraries to use a pc is even more difficult. 

Thank you for asking - it makes a change. 

Most people prefer dealing with a real person rather than a machine. Self Service machines still have to be 'staffed'. 

I think its indicative of today's society to remove human beings from certain elements; a couple of weeks ago there was a huge 

outcry in the news about the thousands of elderly that didnt see anyone to talk to!!??? too many changes are being made too quickly 

due to monetary problems and this country as a collective is suffering as a result. the vulnerable, elderly, disabled etc are being 

picked on with benefits, removing human contact, cutting that face to face contact, you go into Asda and are directed to a self 

service terminal, I used to go in to my local library and discuss what I had read with the librarian, who would then pass my 

recommendation on to another reader and vice versa, now we are faced with machines that beep at us. where will this end, if so 

much can be made 'people free' then perhaps it is time to remove, MPs, Councillors and senior members of staff and replace them 

with machines, we would probably have a much fairer soc iety. I am very concerned about the future, I dont mind change but not the 

wrong kind of change. 

This has been a well designed questionnaire. Many of the forms I get from different sources, energy, airlines etc., etc., are not.   

Possibly the latter have influenced my view, but I do think that fewer people would want to lose the human touch than enthusiasts for 

new technology believe. 

It should be clear that I consider the proposal misguided  and  will only be suitable for a certain sector of Southampton's  population 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

1
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

2
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

3
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

4
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

5
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

6
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

7
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

n
n

e
x
 7

 

P
a
g

e
 6

8
 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 69 

  

Emails and a letter have also been received in response to the consultation and these are 

reproduced below.  

I have a general concern regarding your proposals in that the less human contact there is with the 

council the wider the gap becomes between the council and the public. Individuals feel less 

understood, less listened too. That they are just an account number, not a person. A result of this 

loss of connection would be that some will report changes of circumstances more slowly or not at 

all. There is no doubt in my mind that many will find the ability to do more over the internet very 

convenient, especially those in work who have little time to visit or phone the Gateway.  

But I am concerned that waiting times on the phone may increase. One of the most common 

moans we get from clients is from those that have run out of credit on their mobile phones trying to 

call a benefit centre. Hence we have many clients coming in to use our phone. Of course we will 

allow them to use our internet if that is the way things are going, but if the query is at all 

complicated queries are not easily answered online. Plus I have been finding that when I email 

council tax or benefit services queries are responded to within 2 to 3 weeks, the same as letters, 

hence with more urgent matters we have to phone. With the new online services will there be a 

similar delay in responding? If so people/agencies will have to phone in or drop in at gateway with 

the more urgent queries. Below are a few suggestions: 

1.       Can there be a dedicated line for advice/support agencies, like tax credits have. As advice 

agencies have more understanding than the average person of how the system works we will only 

call you if we really need to. I have found it very useful being able to talk directly to the council tax 

enforcement section (please let them know that) 

2.       If phoning up to check progress of a new claim could there be an automated response that 

says how long it is currently taking to process new claims and therefore give a date that we should 

phone no earlier than if not heard anything. (but claims should be processed within 2 weeks 

anyway) 

3.       I can’t emphasise enough the value of customers being able to go through a HB claim form 

with someone at the Gateway. I believe a lot of claims are delayed or not made at all because 

people struggle with the forms. Having the forms online won’t help much with this problem. People 

need someone to go through it with them. 

We are really missing not having a housing office in Swaythling. Just recently had a client who I 

helped make a claim for housing benefit but because there is no longer a local housing office in 

which claim forms can be handed in, she sent it in the post, and consequently the form got lost in 

the post. 

This last point is not directly relevant to your proposals but I think it is important: Non council 

tenants need free ways of paying council tax locally. Council tenants have a payment card, but 

everyone else has to use payment slips that charge. There is no local branch of the Coop in 

Swaythling so can’t pay directly into your bank account. For those who only have a post office 

account or are overdrawn on their bank account, direct debits, standing orders and card payments 

over the phone are out of the question. In these days where everyone under pension age has to 

pay some council tax you need to make it as easy as possible for people to pay. Some debt 

collectors send out payment cards or payslips that are free to use, so why can’t the council? 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 70 

Business South Limited 

Ocean Village Innovation Centre 

Ocean Village 

Southampton  

SO14 3JZ 

T   +44 (0)844 225 3130 

F   +44 (0)844 225 3132 

E   info@businesssouth.org 

W  www.businesssouth.org 

�

�

�

����������	
��
�	�

�


��������

�

���������	��
��
�����
	��
���
�����	���
�������	�
����	���
���������	�
�	��
���	��





���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������������������������������������������� �

�

!������������������������������"���������������������������������������#����������������������$�������

��������������������������������������������#��%�#������ �

�

�

&�����'��������%�

�

�

�

�����
�������


���
���	����
�����


!���������������������������������������(������������������%������������)����������������������

��������������������#�����������*�����%���������+��

��

,�������������������������������������������*�����%�-��������������������������������������.��

�

/���#��������"������������+�

�

0�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0�



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 71 

0)����1��������������� �)����������������%����������������������������� �����)����%�����������������

������%���������������������������0�

0!������������������������1��������������������%����������������������������20�

0)����1������ �)�������������������������������������������������� 0��

0)����������������������������������������� 0�

�

)�����3����������%�����������������������������������������������������)�������������������� �4���������������

�������������������������������������������������5��

�

I am keen to have my voice heard in the current consultation on communication with the council. I have real 
concerns about the buying in of services from other organisations such as Capita and the running down of 
human relationships with the public in preference for virtual ones.  I would like to give a few examples: 

1. the civic buildings as we know them are a shadow of their former selves. once we could walk through 
them, feel we were able to talk to a human being about a particular issue and feel we were part of something 
- this city. Now, the building has been carved up, as a council tenant I have to queue in that building with the 
stinky carpet (where Gateway is situated) and there is no sense that the civic building is ours. The reception 
looks sad and unloved and the poor staff spend ages trying to put us through to people who don't seem to 
want to talk to us much. I was there on Friday afternoon with a couple of other residents, waiting to hang on 
the phone to someone who was clearly arguing with reception staff about taking calls at all and didnt know 
how to deal with us. 

2. you are far more incompetent - I have been trying to raise the issue of a potentially dangerous road 
crossing between Houndwell and Hoglands Parks, where I have seen a few near misses in the last weeks, 
as numbers swell in the new playground and drivers keep forgetting to stop at the zebra crossing. In the past 
I would have walked to the civic centre and spoken to someone or phoned. This time I phoned action line 
and was told roads would ring back. The roads man (now Balfour Beatty) said he would do his best to 
research the road problem but now his work is farmed out to BB they don't liaise with parks and gardens any 
more, so to call parks and gardens. I then phoned actionline again and the woman really didn't want to deal 
with my query. Eventually I managed to persuade her to leave a message for the parks people, but she told 
me that I would have to call the police separately to deal with the speeding cars issue. I cannot believe that 
you seriously expect people to call 3 or 4 different people about a safety issue like this. If a child dies on that 
crossing because one hand no longer talks to the other it will not be worth the saving you have made, will it? 
I worry that you are also preventing us from taking civic responsibility by making it so hard to contact you. 

3. Capita don't seem that great to me. As an employee on a casual basis I have been paid late on countless 
occasions. I miss pay at Christmas - they just shut down and don't bother - and it seems they offer pretty 
dodgy advice on employment rights. I have just discovered that I have some after 4 years of working for the 
council. 

I understand the council needs to save a few bob, but I fear you are participating in your own demise by 
letting these jokers in. After all, the government doesn't really care whether local government sinks or swims. 
In fact I think they would be happy if you quietly imploded. At this rate you look as if you are doing their work 
for them. 

I would like to give my views as a local citizen and as a member of the Labour Party. 
I do not agree with outsourcing, I cant beleive there are any savings to be had.  
It must cost more to provide the services through Capita than to provide them through the council or through 
reularly retendered contracts or through government sources. 
Capita after all have to make a profit on their services which must be around 20% therefore that money could 
be saved straight away. 
You mention savings of £24 million over the next nine years but that is meaningless; how much extra is the 
contract costing overall? Its like when shops discount things by 80% in a sale but they atificially raised the 
price just before hand. 
Capita may have brought 95 new FTE's into the city but how many people have lost jobs? I dont expect that 
95 is in addition to the total jobs transferred to Capita in the first place. What is the real increase from staff 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 72 

that transferred in 2007?  
Capita would never have flexibility on pricing; these sorts of companies make their money on the "extras". 
Look at the NHS and the private financing.  

Corporate Social responsibility? They pay their staff less and pile on the pressure, anyone I have spoken to 
that works for Capita say they are unhappy. Capita are keen to support apprentiships because they want to 
pay peanuts for their staff. They swap skilled people out for monkeys, there is no development or training. 
As for developments in IT? I have relations who work at the council and they say the IT Service is the worst 
its ever been. All the systems are out of date and not fit for purpose. Capita were brought in because they 
were going to invest and keep IT systems current but in reality there has been no change or investment in IT 
since 2007. 
Its impossible for both parties to work together, Capita are out to make money not do the Council any 
favours. Anyone who thinks these things are partnerships are deluded. 
Morale, opporunities and clarity for Capita staff are words and actions they dont experience staff turnover is 
very high.  
It may cost £2m to re-tender or bring back in house but how much would you save in the long run in real 
money, improved staff morale and accountability for the services delivered. 
In my view I would terminate the contract with Capita in 2017 and re-tender parts of the contract for shorter 
terms and bring parts back in house. 
Anyone who understands business knows that is the way forward. Even the Tory government recommends 
not signing long term contracts. You lose flexibility and the ability to drive down costs and get rid of them is 
the service is less that extected. 
  
Listen to Council staff, Capia staff and the citizens of Southampton and get rid of them. No-one wins.

Email was forward onto our team as we have had so many different problems with Capita especially with the 
switchboard & transferring calls which have left customers on hold for too long & put through to the wrong 
departments again & again. This is not just external calls but extends to internal calls too where we are on 
hold and when we finally get through after being annoyed to the point of wanting to hang up with the 
automated messages, the customer have hung up themselves. 

Then all the problems with HR which gets to the point of being ridiculous, I personally feel my team and I 
could do our job & work on Capita’s switchboard & HR department and do a better job. 

Part of the proposals is to have customers contacting via on line, what about all the people who do not have 
the internet at home & do not want to travel to gain access to the internet especially the elderly?  
What about people who do not speak or read English?  

The council’s website is not user friendly or updated as frequently as it should be, especially contact 
telephone numbers.  

The contract till 2017 is not good and extending it another 5 years to 2022 is just a really bad idea.

Regards, H  

�

My comment on the extension of the contract arrangement is as follows. 

It is difficult to understand that an extension of the contract arrangement with Capita can achieve best value 
for the Council.  Providing the City Council engages a sound management system focussed on efficiencies 
and effectiveness than it must be able to achieve better value for two reasons. 

• Capita is a ‘for profit’ company – those profits should be set against overall council savings 
requirements.

• With the service provider (Capita) and the client (SCC) requiring their own management 
arrangements for their aspects of IT, Procurement and HR service functions, to enable the two 
parties to talk each other, if these services were reintegrated their must be an opportunity for further 
management savings.



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 73 

From Cllr McEwing and copied to all Members  

Dear all, 

Working in a call centre environment, I fully understand the difficulties our elderly and vulnerable will 
experience when we go automated. Many of our vulnerable and elderly residents are not computer literate or 
have limited comprehension of technologies and we need our staff to be cognisant of this. Having extended 
waiting times due to not enough agents available will increase levels of frustrations for both parties, possible 
abandonment of calls and residents getting into financial difficulties through not having technological 
capacity and getting frustrated on long phone calls. This needs to be as smooth a transition as possible for 
the elderly and vulnerable of our city. 

Not happy we are moving to more technological systems as I’m concerned we are abandoning those who 
are not technologically aware amongst our elderly and vulnerable. 

Regards 

Cllr Catherine McEwing 

From Cllr Brian Parnell and copied to all Members 

I agree  wholeheartedly with Cllr McEwing. 
  
Cllr Brian E Parnell. 

From Cllr Les Harris and copied to all Members 

Regarding the use of telephone call centres, whilst this is going to be the way forward for many matters, I 
have some serious concerns over security and fraud.

Where applicants use the internet, firstly there is the problem of ensuring proper identification.  There needs 
to be a security system in place fir this 

We need to ensure the applicant is real, and actually resides at the given address.  With the internet it is 
quite possible for someone who lives abroad, to access the system and make out they live in this city, 
especially where such things such as welfare payments of various types are made.. For example if a person 
has lived here (having perhaps come from a European country) and claimed a payment of some sort, they 
could continue to say they here even though they have moved back to their home country, accessing our 
system using the internet. 

Some government schemes work well such as Road tax, but of course they have access to your insurance 
details and MOT records etc, and they are receiving money not paying it out. 

I also think, as mentioned by Cath McEwing, that a lot of people will have difficulty accessing a computer or 
being able to use it for these purposes. 

Consideration should be given to having various centres where the public can go for a training session in 
how to use the system, and where necessary help to fill out the forms etc for the first few times. 

Regards 
Les Harris 
Cllr Bassett Ward 

From Cllr Peter Baillie and copied to all Members 

Cllrs McEwing and Harris make good points & this is a consultation. A substantial body of people are still not 
happy at using the internet to solve problems and they should not be penalised. A body of people are not 
able to use the internet. A robust, personal service should still exist for those who wish to use it - and that 
should include 'drop in' rather than having to make an appointment. What should be improved is the simple 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 74 

internet transactions such as topping up the Itchen Bridge Card - it takes a ridiculous amount of time.

  
Kind regards,

  
Peter Baillie

From Cllr Ivan White and copied to all Members 

I think most points have been covered but on a practical point many people, particularly the old, are very 
hard of hearing and complex and long discussions on the telephone will be very difficult could prove 
problematic leading to errors/mistakes. 

Regards Ivan White 

My comment on the extension of the contract arrangement is as follows. 

It is difficult to understand that an extension of the contract arrangement with Capita can achieve best value 
for the Council.  Providing the City Council engages a sound management system focussed on efficiencies 
and effectiveness than it must be able to achieve better value for two reasons. 

  
Capita is a ‘for profit’ company – those profits should be set against overall council savings requirements.  

With the service provider (Capita) and the client (SCC) requiring their own management arrangements for 
their aspects of IT, Procurement and HR service functions, to enable the two parties to talk each other, if 
these services were reintegrated their must be an opportunity for further management savings.  
  

I work at the Daycentre in Southampton and I do understand the need to streamline and make cuts . My 

experience is that most of our clients which represent this cities most vulnerable and chaotic within society 

cannot cope with this impersonal and automated  approach to service. It leads to feelings of frustration , 

anger and hopelessness. The D.W.P have to some extent tried  to adopt this approach and we pick up the 

devastation thats left in its wake. I think long term its a false economy that causes long  term  even more 

problems.  



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 75 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 76 

Notes from a meeting with Jeff Downing, Spectrum Centre for Independent Living. 

Proposals for changes to Customer Contact Arrangements and Capita Contract 

Extension 

16th July 2013.

I explained to Jeff the main proposals for changes to customer contact as set out in the 

consultation. 

Gateway

Jeff outlined some of the problems that people with disabilities can face when using 

Gateway. Generally, good support is given to individuals who make contact with a member 

of staff, but strangers could just stand inside Gateway and not know what to do (especially 

if they have problems with vision or learning difficulties). No-one is likely to approach them 

in these circumstances. 

The “chicane” to see someone on the reception desk is difficult for some people. Guide 

dogs do not understand these queuing arrangements. 

The cash office screens present a real difficulty for people with hearing or vision 

impairments. 

Reducing or removing human contact could be a problem for many people. The 

floorwalker system (before the move to One Guildhall Square) was better as there was 

someone there to meet people entering Gateway. I explained that floorwalkers may return 

under this proposal as they would be assisting people with the self-service terminals. Jeff 

commented that they must be easily identifiable. 

Jeff asked about screen reading software on the self-service terminals. He said it is not 

easy to use for a lot of people and so still creates a barrier. 

Jeff suggested that there should be an easily identifiable area (perhaps highlighted by 

being a different colour to the rest of Gateway and which can be identified tactilely) where 

people can go and stand if they need assistance. He said airports and stations often had 

facilities like this. I promised to enquire about that possibility. 

Jeff suggested that self service terminals should have large screens and that the display 

should have large text as a default. Hearing loops would be required for the screen 

reading software. He suggested that the design should include good colour contrast for 

buttons – e.g. “press red button to pay”. Terminals will have to be at a range of heights to 

allow for individuals’ needs. 

Jeff mentioned that he had been involved in the original design for Gateway (when in the 

Civic Centre) through the Southampton Access group and thought this led to a good result. 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 77 

Switchboard

I outlined how the automated switchboard would work. Jeff feels this would be a barrier for 

many people. People are generally ok with menu systems (“press 1 for …”) but many 

people find interactive systems difficult – particularly if they have a speech impediment. He 

would want a way to bypass the speech recognition, so that people having difficulty can 

press a key to talk to an operator. 

Capita contract extension

Jeff has strong feelings that this is undesirable as he believes too much public work is 

undertaken by the private sector. He believes this leads to a lower standard of customer 

service.  

  

Paul Medland 

Project Manager 

Subsequent email from Jeff Downing

Thanks for this and on the whole it is fine. 

However my concerns about Capita are a little more complex. 

1 I believe that for local authorities to take up a cheap option with any provider that is 

based on a profit system, is a fundamental mistake and will result in the community having 

to pick up the bill in the end. As in my opinion they will reduce the service to maintain 

profit, until it is no longer a profitable option and then hand it back to the local authority. 

2. Local authority services should be the primary responsibility of the local authority and 

NOT shared with an organization that was not elected and the community have no say in 

whom a contract is awarded too. 

3. In my experience as a Disabled Person, I find the standard of customer care provided 

by all aspects of the local authority in general to be far superior than, what is offered by 

Capita. 

4. There is already evidence that these Capitalist ventures will cost us dearly and provide 

a sub-standard service. G4S for example, 

5. Please ensure my total opposition to this plan is made known to the individual 

responsible. 

Jeff       .     



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 78 

Extract from minutes of Southampton Learning Disability Partnership Board, 10th

September 2013. 

5. Gateway and the Call Centre Changes
Paul Medland came to talk to us about changes to Gateway. 

A lot more is going to be done on the Internet. This will make it easier to access 

services and fill in forms at all times. However, this may not be better for everyone 

and the Council wants to make sure it does not make things more difficult for some 

people. 

The call centre switchboard would be answered by a machine which will put the caller 

through to the department they want. 

We were worried about how the machine telephone service would work for people 

with certain disabilities. For example, the machine might not understand people with 

speech difficulties. 

The telephone service will be voice activated, but if the machine gets it wrong after 

two tries it will go through to a person. 

Simon offered to put Paul in contact with someone who has helped the police with 

their enhanced line for vulnerable people. This is a special number that people give 

information to so the person answering the call knows about them. 

Gateway drop-in is also changing. There are going to be more computers in Gateway 

with someone to help people use them.   

People can still ask to speak to a member of staff but they will need to book an 

appointment. They should be able to make the appointment for the next day. This 

would mean they would have to come back  

We had concerns about safety at Gateway. Paul said there will always be someone 

there.  

Matt asked about renewing bus passes because proof of ID is required. Paul said that 

people may be able to renew their bus passes online at a later stage. When they have 

a way of making this possible 

Matt also pointed out that some people may only have their support worker to help 

them on certain days. This would make it difficult to make an appointment. Paul said 

the Council needs to think about this. 

There is a survey to find out what people think. There is a leaflet and the survey can 

also be done online but it is not in Easy Read. The survey needs to be done by 1st

November. 



  APPENDIX 4 

Responses received through other means  Annex 8 

Page 79 

Brian asked if these changes are a political decision. Paul confirmed that it will be a 

Cabinet and Council decision. 

Paul is going to send Hilary the leaflet when it comes back from the printers so she 

can send it on. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

s
u

rv
e

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 G
a

te
w

a
y
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

n
n
e

x
 9

 

P
a
g

e
 8

0
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

s
u

rv
e

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 G
a

te
w

a
y
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

n
n
e

x
 9

 

P
a
g

e
 8

1
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

s
u

rv
e

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 G
a

te
w

a
y
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

n
n
e

x
 9

 

P
a
g

e
 8

2
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

s
u

rv
e

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 G
a

te
w

a
y
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

n
n
e

x
 9

 

P
a
g

e
 8

3
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

s
u

rv
e

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 i
n

 G
a

te
w

a
y
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

n
n
e

x
 9

 

P
a
g

e
 8

4
 



APPENDIX 5 
DELIVERY TO DATE UNDER THE SSP 

 
PARTNERSHIP OBJECTIVES 
The original partnership objectives set out to: 

• Deliver excellent services 
• Drive efficiency within the Partnership services and across the Council 
• Focus on our Customers at all times 
• Drive transformation across the Council 
• Keep jobs in Southampton 
• Grow a local business to deliver to provide a shared service centre for the 

delivery of services to other clients 
 

KEY PARTNERSHIP FACTS 
• 10 year strategic partnership signed October 2007  
• 650 staff transferred 
• Planned investment of c. £25m– including major ICT programme 
• Cultural shift supported through new HR Pay delivery 
• New Regional Business Centre 
• Enhanced customer services 
• Increased performance across services 

Performance: 
• 80 Key Performance Indicators  
• 158 Performance Indicators  
• 2011/12 – 87% KPI’s achieved  
• 2012/13 – 91% KPI’s achieved  
• 2011/12 – 95% PI’s achieved 
• 2012/13 – 96% PI’s achieved 
• External growth has brought 90.5 FTE into Southampton 

Key service achievements: 
Customer Services Achievements 

• Developed the Gateway one stop shop serving 114,000 customers each year 
• Implemented a corporate contact centre currently taking 900,000 customer 

contacts each year covering 28 services 
• Good relationships with all service areas, working together to resolve issues 

and develop the service 
• Implemented quality assurance procedures 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



• Recent customer satisfaction levels recorded at 96% 
• Developing the OGS call centre as the call centre of choice for new Capita 

Business – bring new employment possibilities to Southampton 
Local Taxation & Benefits Achievements  

• Performance improvements over the 6 years 

Description 2006/07 2012/13 

Processing New Claims (days) 33 15 

New claims decided within 14 days 81% 98.5% 

Claims paid on time or within 7 days 79% 96% 

Processing Change in circs (days) 15 12 

CTAX in year collection 94.5% 96.2% 

• Regular single person discount reviews which have brought income to the 
council  year on year  

• Issuing text reminders so saving on postage – this is steadily growing - 39% 
of those sent paid as a result 

• Documentation sent out is encouraging Council Tax self service and pin 
number requests are regular each month at around 200. This is due to be 
automated soon and customers will be able to log in straight away  

• Maintained Local Authority Error rate below government lower threshold, no 
financial loss 

• Administer subsidy of £130 million per year without any financial loss 
• Benefit caseload 22,681 on transfer, risen by 23% whilst service has 

demonstrated improved performance   
I.T Services Achievements 

• Improved IT infrastructure including a new VoIP telephony system, successful 
desktop refresh programme, server consolidation and virtualisation 

•  IT Disaster Recovery  in place and tested for critical systems 
• Major Upgrades to Key systems e.g. Agresso, Leisure Management  and 

implementation of ResourceLink HR self service 
• Call Volumes have reduced from an average in of 5,246 in 2008 to 3,772 in 

2013  
• Incident Volumes have reduced from an average in of 4,265 in 2008 to 2,892 

in 2013  
• Priority 1 fault volumes have reduced by 45% since the start of the contract  



• The introduction of Service Desk On-Line has enabled customers to self serve 
and log incidents and requests “out of hours”  

•  Provided robust 24/7 home working and remote access solution 
• Key projects delivered 
- Introduced both Customer Relationship Management (CRM) and 

Electronic Document Records Management Systems (EDRMS) to 
enable a streamlined customer focused service to the general public  

- Implementation of The Council’s Blackberry Mobile solution  
- Implemented encryption across all laptop/tablet devices and added 

security features to protect critical data  
- Deployment of a Desktop, Network and Server refresh programme 

across the Council      
- A programme of IT delivery services to support The Council’s ASAP 

accommodation programme  
- Supported the transition of  Council services to 3rd parties  
- Deployment of a new RSA (remote secure authentication) infrastructure  
- Supported the highly successful  introduction  of  Public Health staff  to 

Civic Centre accommodation including critical NHS communications links  
HR & Payroll Services Achievements 

• Implementation of the HR Shared Service Centre, HR helpdesk and online 
access to resources and HR support, Online HR pay & FAQ’s  

• Use of CRM and document management technology to improve work flow 
between front and back office  

• Recruitment portal (Hampshire wide) 
• HR Portal – easy access to all HR procedures and information 
• Self Service – individuals with access to the HR Portal ‘my view’ can access 

their pay slip electronically, book annual leave and change their personal 
details on line. 

• Introduction of:- 
- Risk Model against Employee Relation cases  
- Management Academy to Level 1,2,3 managers in SCC  
- Course Booker to record all training available and completed 
- Introduction of E-bulk to reduce processing time for CRB  
- 2011 T&C’s Project was delivered below the forecasted project budget  
- 2011 T&C’s 613 Queries & Changes were successfully processed, 413 

Contracts were reprinted and delivered to employees. The helpdesk 
responded to 2,922 e-mails & 1,591 calls  

Procurement Services Achievements 
• £33.6M procurement “savings” declared to date  
• Increased the Council’s contract coverage from 28% to 70% 
• Sourcing decisions are now being focussed on reducing total cost of 

ownership and minimising risk.  



• Worked with the Procurement client to develop the Council’s 3 year 
Procurement Strategy  

• Introduced e-tendering - reduced the procurement times by 30% 
 

SSP LOWLIGHTS 
• Relationship in the early years very client contractor and not a Partnership – 

lack of mutual trust, openness and honesty 
• Lack of communication with stakeholders across the organisation 
• Blame culture in parts of the organisation – Capita often an excuse for internal 

SCC issues (no one ever got fired for blaming Capita syndrome)  
• Perceptions that the IT Service was too expensive 
• Inflexible commercial model  
• Persistent service issues within parts of the Property Service – Improvement 

plan now in place 
• Complaints regarding the Occupational Health Service – which is now in 

much better shape 
• Lack of recognition that the HR service was delivering what the Council asked 

it to IE self serve, central help desk  



APPENDIX 6 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Capita has included a number of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities in 
its SSP Relaunch price.  This Appendix describes how Capita will deliver its CSR 
obligations under the new contract and the commitments it is making in this area. 

1. Purpose of the Schedule 
1.1. This Schedule sets out the corporate social responsibility (CSR) obligations 

which the Provider will observe and perform without charge to the City 
Council from 1 December 2013 until the end of the Service Period (unless 
otherwise stated). 

2. Local Business, Employees and Customers 
The Provider shall: 

2.1. Pay the Living Wage to its employees based in Southampton and working on 
the Southampton contract .  This will mean that all of this staff group staff 
employed in OGS are paid at least the Living Wage which currently stands at 
£7.65 an hour outside London from November 2013. 

2.2. Introduce new business to the Regional Business Centre (One Guildhall 
Square, “OGS”), which will ensure that from and including Contract Year 
2015/16 to the end of the Service Period there will be overall no reduction in 
the number of Full Time Equivalents (FTE) employed by the Provider to work 
in OGS in comparison with the number so employed before the 
implementation of savings initiatives within the SSP following the approval of 
CCN155 (SSP Relaunch: Overriding Commercial Provisions).  New roles will 
be publicised to at risk Provider employees as part of the redeployment 
process and also to displaced City Council employees. 

2.3. Undertake a targeted promotion of apprenticeship,  summer internship, and 
work placement opportunities with the Provider within Schools, colleges, 
universities and organisations supporting adults back into employment, 
within the administrative district of the City Council and provide a minimum 
of:- 
(a) 40 apprenticeships; and 
(b) 100 summer internships or work placements of no less than 4 weeks in 

duration. 
2.4. Allow its employees working on the SSP 519 volunteering days per Contract 

Year to work in the Southampton community via the Provider’s employee 
volunteering programme. 

2.5. Run two free of charge workshops per Contract Year for local businesses to 
assist them in developing their businesses. 

2.6. Run an IT innovation fair for local businesses during Contract Year 7, 
(planned for 2014) and also Contract Year 9 (in 2016).  

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 6



2.7. Run one event per quarter in support of the STEM (Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Maths) programme and employability skills initiatives in 
schools. 

2.8. Capita has implemented a new policy to support reservists for the armed 
forces, where any individual undertaking this role would be entitled to ten 
days paid leave per year for training. 

2.9. Support the City Council’s CSR commitments (including the ‘Dragon’s Den’ 
initiative in place for local Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs) by providing 
two days IT Consultancy per Contract Year from the start of Contract Year 
2014/15 to the end of the Service Period to support the set-up of up to 15 
new SME-scale businesses. 


	Agenda
	5 Strategic Services Partnership (SSP) Contract - Proposed Contract Extension
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6


